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Revenue from
continuing operations
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Profit for the year from
continuing operations
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Profit/(loss) for the year from a
discontinued operation
(HK$ million)

Profit/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company
(HK$ million)

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
(HK$ million)

Earnings/(loss) per share
(HK cent)
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report for New Century
Group Hong Kong Limited (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“New Century” or the “Group”), providing an
overview of our performance for the year ended 31 March
2024 (the "Year"). Looking back, it is with mixed sentiments
as we have encountered both successes and challenges in the

past year.

ACHIEVEMENT UNDER PRESSURE

Arising from a combination of geopolitical tensions, tight
financial conditions and shifting consumption patterns, Hong
Kong's economy has faced significant hurdles in recent years,
resulting in the economic slowdown and the persistent
sluggishness of the residential property market and leading to
a surge in the number of residential mortgage loans in
negative equity, quadrupling from 6,379 a year earlier to
32,073 in the first quarter of 2024, the highest since the first
quarter of 2004. Compounded by high interest rates and
increasing housing supply, these adverse market conditions
necessitated recognising provision for impairment losses of
HK$12,623,000 on loan and interest receivables for our
mortgage loans and HK$25,559,000 on our repossessed

assets respectively.

During the Year, the Hong Kong properties were inevitably
affected by the challenging economic landscape. Fortunately,
our proactive leasing strategies played a pivotal role in
achieving an average occupancy rate of 96.9% for the Hong
Kong and Singapore markets. While the Hong Kong property
landscape proved difficult, our Singapore properties provided a
bright spot, delivering fair value gains of HK$23,280,000. It
highlights the benefits of our diversified property portfolio.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFEHES

Despite the unfavourable economic circumstances, the Group
managed to record a profit turnaround, with profit attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$22,413,000 for the Year. In
addition to the above-mentioned fair value gains from our
Singapore properties, key initiatives contributing to this
performance also included the divestment of the
underperforming cruise ship charter service business, realising
a disposal gain of HK$9,834,000 while reducing related
segment losses to HK$531,000. We also adjusted our strategy
by maintaining a small quantum of equity investment in blue
chips, leading to a profit of HK$315,000, and allocated our
resources to bank time deposits offering high interest rates
during the prolonged economic downturn. Through prudent
portfolio restructuring, astute investment management and
diversification of income streams, we demonstrated resilience

and an ability to adapt to evolving market conditions.

CULTIVATING DURABLE GROWTH AND SHAREHOLDER
VALUE

While the Hong Kong government's removal of all cooling
measures earlier this year is expected to stimulate residential
property transactions and restore the economic momentum,
the outlook for interest rates adds uncertainty. Investors agree
the US Federal Reserve is unlikely to cut rates at its 2024
June and July meetings. With more officials signalling, inflation
may take longer than expected to control, further weighing on
the property market recovery and mortgage affordability in
Hong Kong. Even though tentative stabilisation in the
residential property segment occurred towards the end of the
first quarter in 2024, the property market remained fragile,
posing challenges for our money lending and property

investment segments.
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Moving forward, we will maintain stringent risk management
practices and credit review processes to ensure sound quality
of the loan portfolio under our money lending business.
Simultaneously, we stand ready to judiciously expand our
money lending business as the anticipated economic recovery
takes hold. Additionally, closely monitoring property market
developments will enable us to implement timely measures
balancing risk and return. While 2024 appears challenging, we
have full confidence in the long-term prospects of Hong
Kong's money lending and property sectors. Our resilience

through this cycle will position us strongly for the future.

Lastly, allow me to extend my sincere gratitude to our
dedicated team for their unwavering commitment and hard
work. | would also like to express my appreciation to our
esteemed shareholders for their trust and support, which are
instrumental in driving our success. Together, we will continue
to forge ahead with confidence in our ability, overcoming

challenges and achieving long-term prosperity.

Ng Wee Keat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2024

FHELEEEEERAA
Annual Report 2024 %%}

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFHRES

RERK AEEHEEFEEZARER
EBRREEERRE  UBRERETRERS
LEFHAERRE -RE -  RMPKEER

HWQEER BHERERBE T ZHEES -
%%'%w&ﬁ%¥ﬁ%%ﬁﬁgﬁﬁ%%

BERETVTEHRREDR EE - BE T
“MFEREUFTRRE  ERMEEERER
METEZRBAISRZRED - HMELA
Az RBEMORKREERE Z K -

R& AAZRARFPERBRENE 2AHER
FHTERARBZHE - AANTRE I RBH
EWNRRZEEERXE  EHBMAOXD
EHER - BEHHMENNGEL - MK
E-REBAT  RRUB BRAAEK
EERER -

e
H

3

i
il

\

EFEH T -_WWFESA=-1+H



10

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
Annual Report 2024 F3§

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEST R 5T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by 10.3% to HK$88,291,000
for the Year (2023: HK$80,068,000), which was comprised
of (i) interest income of HK$72,744,000 (2023:
HK$72,491,000) from money lending business; (ii) rental
income of HK$15,288,000 (2023: HK$15,530,000) from
property investment business; and (iii) fair value gains of
HK$74,000 (2023: fair value losses of HK$13,578,000) on
listed equity investments and dividend income of HK$185,000
(2023: HK$5,625,000) from listed equity investments in
securities trading business. The increase in the Group's
revenue by HK$8,223,000 was primarily due to a turnaround
from fair value losses of HK$13,578,000 on listed equity
investments last year to fair value gains of HK$74,000 on
listed equity investments for the Year even though it was
partially offset by a decrease in dividend income received
from listed equity investments by HK$5,440,000 in the

securities trading business.

Other Income

Other income of HK$15,434,000 recorded for the Year
(2023: HK$7,386,000) was mainly due to an increase in bank
interest income by HK$8,938,000 to HK$14,982,000 for the
Year (2023: HK$6,044,000) resulting from the higher interest
rates offered by banks for time deposit placements. Last year,
government grants of HK$911,000 and HK$360,000 were
received from the Employment Support Scheme under the
Anti-epidemic Fund and the Technology Voucher Programme
under the Innovation Technology Fund, respectively. However,

no such government grants were received during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative and Operating Expenses

The administrative and operating expenses of HK$46,731,000
(2023: HK$44,104,000) were mainly comprised of (i)
employee benefit expense (including directors’ remuneration);
(ii) depreciation of property, plant and equipment; (iii)
advertising and promotion expenses; (iv) auditor’s
remuneration; (v) building management fee; (vi) government
rent and rates; and (vii) other administrative expenses. The
increase in administrative and operating expenses was mainly
due to (i) an increase in employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ remuneration) by HK$1,959,000 and (ii)

an increase in overseas travelling expenses by HK$417,000.

Fair Value Gains/(Losses) on Investment Properties,
Net

The Group recorded fair value gains on investment properties
of HK$10,149,000 in the property investment business for
the Year (2023: fair value losses of HK$12,292,000), which
was the net effect of fair value gains of HK$23,280,000
(2023: HK$8,008,000) on investment properties in
Singapore and fair value losses of HK$13,131,000 (2023:
HK$20,300,000) on investment properties in Hong Kong.

Provision for Impairment Losses on Loan and
Interest Receivables, Net

The impairment losses represented expected credit losses
(“ECLs") on loan and interest receivables in the money
lending business. The measurement of ECLs is based on
probability of default, loss given default (i.e., the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default), historical delinquency ratio of
loan and interest receivables, collateral values, economic
indicators on forward-looking information and adjustments for

factors that are specific to the debtors.

The Group recognised a net provision for impairment losses of
HK$12,405,000 on loan and interest receivables for the Year
(2023: HK$2,794,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEstmE S T

Below is the breakdown of reversal of/(provision for)
impairment losses on loans and interest receivables, net,
incurred from mortgage loans and unsecured personal loans

for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023:

Mortgage loans BRIB\ER
Unsecured personal loans EEPALABER

Provision for Impairment Losses on Repossessed
Assets, Net

During the Year, a total net provision for impairment losses of
HK$25,559,000 (2023: HK$1,941,000) was provided for
repossessed assets in cases where the carrying amounts of
the repossessed assets exceeded the value for sale under
repossession performed by an independent professional
valuer less costs to sell or the net sale proceeds when the

repossessed assets were disposed of during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$22,413,000 for the Year while a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$36,866,000 was
recorded last year. Such turnaround from a loss to a profit was
mainly attributable to (i) a decrease in loss from the
discontinued operation of cruise ship charter services by
HK$60,212,000 to HK$531,000 (2023: HK$60,743,000); (ii)
a gain of HK$9,834,000 on disposal of the discontinued
operation of cruise ship charter services (2023: Nil); (iii) an
increase in fair value gains on Singapore investment properties
by HK$15,272,000 to HK$23,280,000 (2023:
HK$8,008,000); (iv) a decrease in fair value losses on Hong
Kong investment properties by HK$7,169,000 to
HK$13,131,000 (2023: HK$20,300,000); (v) an increase in
bank interest income by HK$8,938,000 to HK$14,982,000
(2023: HK$6,044,000); and (vi) a profit of HK$315,000 from
securities trading business (2023: a loss of HK$7,963,000).
The effect was partially offset by (i) an increase in provision
for impairment losses on repossessed assets by
HK$23,618,000 to HK$25,559,000 (2023: HK$1,941,000)
and (ii) an increase in provision for impairment losses on loan
and interest receivables for mortgage loan by HK$10,358,000
to HK$12,623,000 (2023: HK$2,265,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Money Lending

The Group’'s money lending business is conducted through
ETC Finance Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, holding a licence for conducting money
lending activities under the Money Lenders Ordinance

(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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7,963,000 7T) FTE - BT EELHHAT
FEFEE : (VEEEAENREBEREL
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In order to minimise the risk of recovery of default debts, the
Group is mainly engaged on providing mortgage loans secured
by first legal charge against real estates located in Hong Kong,
including residential, commercial and industrial properties,
village houses and car parking spaces, to individuals and
corporations. During the Year, the Group granted 40 (2023:
53) mortgage loans in principal sum of HK$255,960,000
(2023: HK$334,560,000) to individuals and corporations with
principal amounts ranging from HK$460,000 to
HK$55,000,000 (2023: HK$130,000 to HK$49,000,000) at
interest rates ranging from 8.0% to 13.0% per annum (2023:
8.0% to 13.59% per annum) with maturity profiles varying
from 12 to 180 months (2023: 12 to 240 months).

The Group also provides a small portion of unsecured
personal loans to individuals who are mainly owners of real
estate assets under the Home Ownership Scheme and the
Tenant Purchase Scheme, as well as private residential
properties. During the Year, the Group granted 5 (2023: 8)
unsecured personal loans in principal sum of HK$2,520,000
(2023: HK$7,170,000) to individuals with principal amounts
ranging from HK$100,000 to HK$1,200,000 (2023:
HK$300,000 to HK$1,200,000) at interest rates ranging from
20.0% to 22.0% per annum (2023: 18.0% to 21.0% per
annum) with maturity profiles varying from 36 to 120 months
(2023: 36 to 120 months).

CHELEEEEFEBERAA
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$$%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ460,000%’57_1555,000,0007‘%73
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TZE—ANTEA(ZZE==F: +=
“BEN+@EAR) -

REBTRBEA(FEARBEEEE AR
EINHEERREFEMAEERMEZEENA
TUARFATEMENEE A) REE—
DEERLAER RAFE  AKERE
ABESE(ZT_=F:8%) BEFLA
B BEA S B R25200008 L (ZF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In light of the downturn in Hong Kong's property market, the
increasing financial struggles among mortgage borrowers
and widespread negative equity situations, the Group's loan
and interest receivables decreased by 12.0% from
HK$823,423,000 as at 31 March 2023 to HK$724,516,000
as at 31 March 2024. There were 114 mortgage loan
customers (2023: 115 customers) with loan and interest
receivables of HK$715,029,000 (2023: HK$810,733,000)
and 22 unsecured personal loan customers (2023: 28
customers) with loan and interest receivables of
HK$9,487,000 (2023: HK$12,690,000), representing 98.7%
(2023: 98.5%) and 1.3% (2023: 1.5%) of the total loan and

interest receivables as at 31 March 2024, respectively.

In terms of the Group’s loan and interest receivables
of HK$724,516,000 as at 31 March 2024 (2023:
HK$823,423,000), the loan and interest receivables from the
largest customer and the five largest customers accounted for
7.6% (2023: 8.1%) and 26.0% (2023: 26.0%) respectively.

The Group recorded a slight increase of 0.3% in interest
income from the money lending business to HK$72,744,000
for the Year as compared to HK$72,491,000 last year. The
increase was due to the increase in interest income from
mortgage loans by HK$986,000 to HK$70,370,000 (2023:
HK$69,384,000), which was partially offset by the decrease in
interest income from unsecured personal loans by
HK$733,000 to HK$2,374,000 (2023: HK$3,107,000).
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group engaged an
independent professional valuer to assess the provision for
impairment losses on loan and interest receivables under the
ECLs model of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
Financial Instruments. The Group recognised a net provision
for impairment losses of HK$12,405,000 on loan and interest
receivables for the Year (2023: HK$2,794,000). As for
mortgage loans, a provision for impairment losses on loan and
interest receivables of HK$12,623,000 (2023: HK$2,265,000)
was recorded for the Year due to the decrease in market value
of the collaterals and the increase in default cases. As for
unsecured personal loans, a reversal of provision for
impairment losses on loan and interest receivables of
HK$218,000 (2023: a provision of HK$529,000) was
recorded for the Year due to decrease in the total amount of

unsecured personal loan and interest receivables.

In the recovery of credit-impaired loan and interest receivables
in the money lending business, the Group obtains rights to
rent or sell the underlying collateral assets through court
proceedings. For the Year, a total net provision for impairment
losses of HK$25,559,000 (2023: HK$1,941,000) was
provided on repossessed assets which the carrying amounts of
the repossessed assets exceeded the value for sale under
repossession performed by an independent professional
valuer less costs to sell or net sales proceeds when the

repossessed assets were disposed of during the Year.

Therefore, the money lending segment recorded a significant
decrease in profit by 62.1% to HK$20,766,000 for the Year
(2023: HK$54,730,000).

RREBRR  AEBZRE 7 HEMER -
RESEMBRELENFESRLSH T AN
HEABAEATHERERRFEARE
BEEE RNAFEE AEERERER K
S HE SRR 1B B 18 B F §512,405,00078 T
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B BRERRcTSEAET®RRENE
RIEM - FERAFE R ERE R RTS8
1SR E R 1B 512,623,000 L (ZE ==
% 12,265,000 7T) - EREEIFLAER
HRERERRLABREFN B8R -
E R A F St W E R R A B RS R E S
BREME 2 B E218,0008 L (ZE_=F « #
1#529,000% 7T) °

W B R E R 2 215 RRERKE R &
B RNEEEBEREEE FES H S
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EREEEEARREGEEREBGE TR
25,559,000/ 70 (ZZ = =4 : 1,941,000/8
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Property Investment

Facing macroeconomic hurdles, such as high interest rates,
low investment appetite and sluggish inbound tourism, Hong
Kong's commercial property market showed mixed results
across sectors. Anticipating such challenges, the Group's
management team consistently centred their efforts on risk
management and devising leasing and property management
tactics, enabling the Group to preserve stable occupancy level
within its Hong Kong property portfolio and ensure steady
rental income generation. Simultaneously, its Singapore
properties recorded a 14.9% increase in rental income
together with positive fair value gains, demonstrating the
Group's ongoing successes in geographical diversification and

validating its ability to adapt to ever-shifting market forces.

The Group’s segment revenue from property investment
decreased by 1.6% to HK$15,288,000 for the Year (2023:
HK$15,530,000). The rental income from investment
properties in Hong Kong decreased by 4.4% to
HK$12,675,000 (2023: HK$13,256,000) mainly due to
reduction of rental rate charged to a new tenant of shop units
at Dundas Square, Mongkok. The rental income from
investment properties in Singapore recorded an increase of
14.9% to HK$2,613,000 (2023: HK$2,274,000), which was
resulted from an increase in rental rates charged to tenants of
conservation shophouses upon the renewal of their tenancy

agreements.

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties were
revalued at fair value based on valuation performed by
independent professional valuers. Net fair value gains of
HK$10,149,000 on investment properties were recorded for
the Year (2023: fair value losses of HK$12,292,000). The
investment properties in Hong Kong recorded fair value losses
of HK$13,131,000 (2023: HK$20,300,000) while the
investment properties in Singapore recorded fair value gains of
HK$23,280,000 (2023: HK$8,008,000).

EEET RS T
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As a result, the property investment segment recorded a
turnaround from a loss of HK$389,000 last year to a profit of
HK$21,644,000 for the Year.

For the Year, the Group's investment properties achieved an
average occupancy rate of 96.99% (2023: 99.5%) with an
average annual rental yield of 2.8% (2023: 2.8%).

Securities Trading

The Group's portfolio of listed equity investments consisted of
the blue chips in the Hong Kong stock market. As at 31 March
2024, the Hang Seng Index stood at 16,541, reflecting 18.9%
decline over the Year. Trading turnover in the Hong Kong stock
market contracted as investment appetite waned, largely due
to external macroeconomic factors and weak investor
sentiment hit by uncertainties around geopolitical tensions,
global economic outlook and high interest rate environment.
High interest rates prompted investors to reallocate from
stocks to safe-haven assets such as placement of time
deposits in banks. Nevertheless, optimism over further policy
stimulus to support the Mainland economy helped the Hong
Kong stock market recoup some losses. In response to the
challenges and uncertainties, the Group only maintained a
small quantum of equity investments in blue chips with high

dividend yield during the Year.

The securities trading segment recorded a profit of
HK$3 15,000 for the Year (2023: loss of HK$7,963,000). The
turnaround from a loss to a profit was mainly attributable to
the fair value gains of HK$74,000 (2023: loss of
HK$13,578,000) on equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), and the profit was partially offset by a
drop in dividend income from equity investments at FVTPL by
HK$5,440,000 to HK$185,000 (2023: HK$5,625,000).
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As at 31 March 2024, the Group's equity investments at WR-ZT-_ME=F=+—0  EHHEE:T
CAEBZRAFEBESABSNRER

FVTPL amounted to HK$15,375,000 (2023: Nil) measured at £
market value. There was no individual equity investment at & 415,375,000 L (— 2 - =4 : &) o &K
FVTPL held by the Group with market value more than 5% of  &£EIEFEETBEEE A EEDEEFE
the net asset value of the Group. The details of the Group's  #B3iB5%H B & A F B E 5+ A I8 25 59 i% 4
equity investments at FVTPL as at 31 March 2024 were as #®&E - R -_ZE-_WMF=ZHA=+—H A%EE
below: BATEBEFABRNRERE ZFESH
wmes
Percentage to
Name of stock listed on the Number of  Percentage of net assets
stock exchange of Hong Kong shares  shareholding Investment Market value of
(Stock Code) held held cost value the Group
REBBIMLTZRAER BERG BERG RE hrEEEE
(R ) 288 ZEDH B mE FEZAIL
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHT
China Construction Bank Corporation 1,100,000 0.0005 4,785 5,192 0.27
REZRRITROERLA
(0939)
China Mobile Limited 60,000 0.0003 3,921 4014 0.21
HEREERAA
(0941)
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. 60,000 0.0008 3,004 1,983 0.10
mEFZRE (EB)ROHBERA
(2318)
Bank of China Limited 1,300,000 0.0016 3,615 4,186 0.22
RERITRHD AR A
(3988)

15,325 15,375 0.80
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES HAEE

As at 31 March 2024, the Company had outstanding ®R—-_ZT-—mME=F=+—H AQFTLTFH
guarantee of HK$70,000,000 (2023: HK$70,000,000) given  #7 5k {8 i #& R %8 /570,000,000 7t (= &

to a bank to secure general credit facility for a subsidiary. No = = 4 : 70,000,000 7T) ' #E 5 — K B
credit facility was utilised by that subsidiary from such AFEE—REEHRE K - R—-Z 1
guarantee as at 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil). F=ZA=+—8  ZWHBRA G WESBLTHE

FERENERBE(CT_=F:8) -
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 March 2024, the Group's self-occupied office units

and a car park unit at Shun Tak Centre with an aggregate net
book value of HK$108,681,000 (2023: HK$113,378,000)
and listed equity investments with fair value of
HK$15,375,000 (2023: Nil) were pledged to banks and
securities brokers for aggregate loan facilities of
HK$80,968,000 (2023: HK$70,000,000) granted to the
Group.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not use any loan facility
(2023: Nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group maintained a sound financial condition. As
at 31 March 2024, the Group had net current assets of
HK$1,164,969,000 (2023: HK$1,060,608,000) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company worth HK$1,561,876,000
(2023: HK$1,548,147,000).

As at 31 March 2024, the aggregate cash and cash
equivalents of the Group were approximately
HK$518,251,000 (2023: approximately HK$456,027,000
(including cash at bank of HK$17,000 of a disposal group
classified as held for sale)), which were held predominately in

Hong Kong dollar, Singapore dollar and United States dollar.

A loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the
Group's subsidiary as at 31 March 2024 was approximately
HK$24,087,000 (2023: approximately HK$71,823,000).
During the Year, partial repayment of approximately
HK$47,736,000 was made by the Group. The loan was
denominated in United States dollar, which was unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

EEEH
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As at 31 March 2024, the Group had an amount due to an
intermediate holding company of HK$80,000,000 (2023:
HK$80,000,000) which was unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Stringent cost control measures have already been
implemented to monitor day-to-day operational and
administrative expenses. The management will continue to
closely review the Group's financial resources in a cautious
manner and explore opportunities for potential financing and
equity funding from financial institutions. Taking into
consideration the Group’s current financial resources, the
directors believe that the Group will have adequate fund for

its continuing operations and development.

GEARING RATIO

The Group's gearing ratio, calculated as total indebtedness
divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company, was
6.7% as at 31 March 2024 (2023: 9.8%). Total indebtedness
represents a loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary, amount due to an intermediate

holding company and lease liabilities.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Market Risk

The Group's business performance is closely tied to the
economic conditions and property market dynamics in Hong
Kong. Potential economic downturns or deterioration in the
property sector could impact property transactions, which in
turn could limit the growth of our mortgage loan portfolio. In
addition, drop in property prices will cause declining collateral
value for our mortgage loans and in turn, increase the risk of
impairment losses. To mitigate these risks, the Group will
closely monitor the property market trends and collateral
valuations affecting our mortgage loan portfolio. This proactive
approach allows the Group to promptly identify market
fluctuations and implement appropriate risk mitigation

strategies from time to time.
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Credit Risk

The Group mainly focuses on entering into loan and/or lease
transactions with high-quality customers and obtaining
sufficient collaterals and/or deposits as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults. Before entering into
these transactions, whether they are new or renewal, the
Group will conduct due diligence, including but not limited to
identity check, credit report and legal search on the customers,
together with land search and latest valuation on the

mortgaged properties, if applicable.

The Group has loan committees of different levels comprising
directors and senior management to approve and grant
different loan products with various loan-to-value ratios and
loan amount requirements. The Group continuously monitors
the property market and the collateral value of the underlying
mortgage loan portfolio to proactively manage risks. Through
the audit committee of the Company, the Group has
conducted a regular review on the internal control system and
identified no significant areas of concern that could affect the

operation of the money lending business.

The Group closely monitors whether customers make timely
repayment and liaises with them for settlement if there is late
repayment. The Group will take legal actions, when necessary,
as a means to recover the debts in default. In addition, the
Group reviews the recovery of each individual debt, including
but not limited to rental receivables, mortgage loan and
interest receivables, and unsecured personal loan and interest
receivables at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are provided for irrecoverable

amounts.

For further details of the accounting policies regarding the
impairment of financial assets (including loan and interest
receivables) and the financial risk management policies in
respect of loan and interest receivables, please refer to note
2.4 and note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,

respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Equity Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in securities, which are listed on the stock
exchange of Hong Kong and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. The management
manages this exposure by monitoring price movements and
changes in market conditions that may affect the value of the
securities and will consider taking appropriate actions to

minimise the risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group's revenue and costs were denominated in
Hong Kong dollar and Singapore dollar. The Group's cash and
cash equivalents were held predominately in Hong Kong
dollar, Singapore dollar and United States dollar. A loan
advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the Group's
subsidiary was denominated in United States dollar. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should that need arise.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had a total of 32 (2023:
31) staff, including 7 (2023: 6) executive directors but
excluding 4 (2023: 3) independent non-executive directors.
The employee benefit expense (including directors’
emoluments) of HK$22,663,000 was recorded for the Year
(2023: HK$20,704,000). Remuneration packages for
employees and directors are periodically reviewed according
to market conditions as well as individual and the Group
performance. Benefits plans maintained by the Group include
salary increment, mandatory provident fund scheme, medical
insurance and discretionary bonuses. The Group offers
occupational training in form of external seminars to the
employees and has subsidy plans for employees to enhance

their knowledge and skills for performing their job duties.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATES

Disposal of a Subsidiary

In March 2023, the Group decided to discontinue its cruise
ship charter service business. The cruise ship charter service
business was classified as a discontinued operation. On 28
April 2023, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement as the
vendor with an independent third party as the purchaser,
pursuant to which the vendor agreed to sell and the purchaser
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital (the “Sale
Share”) of Kingston Maritime Limited (“KML") and the
shareholder's loan (the “Sale Loan”) owed by KML to the
vendor at a consideration of S$7,650,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$44,982,000). KML was solely engaged in
cruise ship charter services, with the principal asset being the
cruise ship "Aegean Paradise”. The Group recorded a gain of
approximately HK$9,834,000 on the disposal of a subsidiary.
The disposal of the Sale Share and the Sale Loan constituted
a disclosable transaction and was subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. For details on the disposal, please refer to the

Company's announcement dated 28 April 2023.

After the completion of the disposal on 28 April 2023, the
loss from the discontinued operation of cruise ship charter
services fell significantly to HK$531,000 for the Year (2023:
HK$60,743,000).

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in this annual report,
the Group had no significant investments held, material
acquisition and disposals of subsidiaries and associates during
the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled to
be held on Tuesday, 24 September 2024 (the "Annual
General Meeting"). For determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 19
September 2024 to Tuesday, 24 September 2024, both days
inclusive, during which period, no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, all transfers of shares, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 17 September 2024.
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The board of directors of the Company (the "Board”) is
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices at all times. The Board believes that
good corporate governance helps the Company to safeguard
the interests of its shareholders and to enhance the

performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 31 March
2024.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code")
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of
the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, all of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance. The Board has delegated to the
senior management of the Company the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group. These responsibilities include implementing
decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating day-to-day
operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the
Board, formulating and monitoring the operation and budgets,

and supervising and monitoring the control systems.

Board Composition

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the

Board comprises eleven members as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)
Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng
Ms. Chen Ka Chee
Mr. Yu Wai Man
Ms. Huang Si Teng
(appointed on 1 June 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung
(appointed on 1 June 2023)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Composition (continued)

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board has at all times met the requirements of rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one of the independent non-executive
directors possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise and the
appointment of independent non-executive directors

representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a written confirmation of their
independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that each of them is independent in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the directors (including the relationships
among members of the Board) are set out under the section
headed “Directors’ Biographies” on pages 81 to 87 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed on pages 81 to 87 of this
annual report, the Board members do not have any family,

financial or business relationship with each other.

In compliance with code provision C.1.8 of the CG Code, the
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of potential legal action against its directors. The insurance

coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Attendance of Board and Committee Meetings and
General Meeting

During the Year, the Company held four regular board
meetings to review and approve annual and interim results

and to review quarterly management accounts.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EEg(H)
Attendance of Board and Committee Meetings and ESeRZEEEEURRR RS ZH
General Meeting (continued) B (&)
The attendance of each director at the meetings of the Board, EAZK FE - SEFHREEFTE FHZE
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the RBLTEE EBRZE f??;%% VA R % 5

Audit Committee and the annual general meeting during the @EK@Z&F&H@R%EIJQDT :

Year is set out as below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
HE/ BTERNE
Annual

Audit  Remuneration ~ Nomination General

Directors Board  Committee Committee ~ Committee ~ Meeting
RRBF
2 EZg BRZEEE ¥FHZzEE REZEE PN
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Ng Wee Keat HEGREE 3/4 - 4/4 2/2 1/1
Ms. Sio lon Kuan EEELL 3/4 = = = /1
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda BERELT 4/4 - - = 1/1
Ms. Lilian Ng BERBRL 4/4 - - - 1/1
Ms. Huang Si Teng (Note 1) EHE L (M) 4/4 = = = /1
Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRI Bzt 4/4 - 4/4 2/2 /1
Mr. Yu Wai Man RENEE 4/4 - - = 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok REB LA 4/4 2/2 4/4 2/2 1/1

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth BEREE 4/4 2/2 4/4 2/2 1/1

Mr. Ho Yau Ming o] % A 7 A 4/4 2/2 4/4 2/2 1/1

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung (Note 2) & & 5t 4 (FfisE2) 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1 1/1

Notes: B &

1. Ms. Huang Si Teng was appointed as an executive director of the 1. RZZEZ=F-A—H Si%ELITEESR
Company on 1 June 2023. ERERRBIHITES °

2. Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung was appointed as an independent 2. RZ-Z=_=F A—H EFZHELLEEEZ
non-executive director of the Company and a member of the EARRRAIBLFNTESREREZEE
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the THEZEESRIRREZEG ZKE °

Nomination Committee on 1 June 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed directors will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the businesses and operations of the Group and full
awareness of director's responsibilities and obligations under

the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in order to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed

and relevant.

During the Year, all directors have participated various external
webinars relevant to the directors’ duties and responsibilities
or the accounting issues. The Company has received from
each of the directors their individual training record for the

Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles

of chairman and chief executive should be separate. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.
The Company did not officially have a position of chief
executive officer since 2 March 2012. During the Year, Mr. Ng
Wee Keat, the chairman of the Board, provided leadership to
the Board to ensure that the Board worked effectively and all
important issues were discussed and dealt with in a timely
manner. The Board will continue to review the effectiveness of
the Group's structure as business continues to grow and
develop in order to assess whether any changes, including the

appointment of a chief executive officer, are necessary.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years as referred to the bye-law
84(1) of the Company where provides that at each annual
general meeting one-third of the directors of the Company for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three
(3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation. The Company has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established three board committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee (collectively, the “Committees”) with clearly-
defined written terms of references. The Board delegated the
authority to the Committees and provided the Committees
with sufficient resources to perform their duties. Upon
reasonable request, they are able to seek independent

professional advice at the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the

Remuneration Committee Members are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ng Wee Keat
Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok (Chairman)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung
(appointed on 1 June 2023)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

The Company has adopted the model whereby the
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive

directors and senior management.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for

developing remuneration policy;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

2.

to review and approve the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals

and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management. This should include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or

termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair

and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and

appropriate;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

to review and/or approve matters relating to share

schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the Year:

1. to review the remuneration package of the directors; and

2. to recommend to the Board on the year-end bonus of

executive directors.

The remuneration of members of the senior management for

the Year is set out below:

In the band of Number of individuals

Nil to HK$1,000,000 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

N O b

Nomination Committee

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the

Nomination Committee Members are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)
Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung
(appointed on 1 June 2023)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee

are:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the

Company's corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for

directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-

executive directors; and

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive.

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the Year:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

2. to assess the independence of independent non-

executive directors; and

3. to recommend to the Board on the reappointment of the
retiring directors and the appointment of the new

director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Diversity

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in September
2013, which set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to, gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that

the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Board consists of a diverse mix of the members with
different appropriate skills, knowledge, experience and gender

to promote and achieve better performance of the Company.

The gender ratio of the directors of the Company as at 31

March 2024 is set out as follow:

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

directors directors

Male 6 55
Female 5 45

The Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the
Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and
experience to the Company's businesses, the Nomination
Committee considered that the existing Board was
appropriately structured and no change was required. The
Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,

as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Diversity (continued)

In addition, the total workforce (including senior management)

by gender of the Group as at 31 March 2024 is set out as

follows:
Percentage of
Number of the Group’s
employees employees
Male 13 41
Female 19 59

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy in January
20109.

Objective

The objective of the nomination policy is to provide a
framework and set standards to assist the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship so as to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the

requirements of the Company's businesses.

Selection criteria
The Nomination Committee shall consider the following
criteria (as reference) in assessing the suitability of a proposed

candidate for directorships:
1. character and integrity;
2. qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,

knowledge and experience that are relevant to the

Company's businesses and corporate strategy;

FHELEEEEERAA
Annual Report 2024 %%}

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEREBRE

EEEBRTHEES (H)
REEEE (H)

ZTlt (&)

o RZB-ME=A=1+—0 ~%H
ETHB(BRERREERE) BMRIFHZ
DIHIIT

HAEH
BTz
EEAH Bk
B 13 41
pegca 19 59
TEHE R
AARBER-_ZE—NEFE— AFRMIRZEER
1=N:0}

Tm%ﬁﬁlﬁZEE’JEEAkﬁiﬁ[ AR BRE R
HHREEEGRENERESHREA I
MEREEFSREBEALBDELMABEER
TR KREZENBHEARE -

ki E R
ETHEREEARTREEETESR 7
BREEGRAZRTINER(ERZ2E) :

1. miER#EIE

2. BE BREERRFZEDNEFEKE
HENEXER X6 Bk &R

@

37



38

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -
Annual Report 2024 F3§

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Nomination Policy (continued)
Selection criteria (continued)

3. willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a Board member and other directorships and

significant commitments;

4. requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the

Listing Rules; and

5. board diversity policy and any measure objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving

diversity on the Board.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the

discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director of the Company
and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in

relation to their standing for election as a director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if considered

necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

Nomination procedure

1.

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a
meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its
meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward

candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee
shall
consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to

make recommendations for the Board's

stand for election or re-election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the

Board for its consideration and recommendation.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election at a general
meeting, and to invite nominations from shareholders, a
circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will set
out the lodgment period for shareholders to make the
nominations. The names, brief biographies (including
qualifications and relevant experience), independence,
proposed remuneration and any other information, as
required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included

in the circular to shareholders.

The shareholder of the Company may also propose a
person for election as a director, details of which are set
out in the “Procedures for Proposing a Person for Election
as a Director by Shareholders” which is also available on

the website of the Company.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for

election or re-election at any general meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Nomination Policy (continued)

Review and disclosure of the nomination policy

1. The Board will from time to time review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the

Nomination Policy.

2. The Company shall disclose this nomination policy in its
corporate governance report in compliance with the

Listing Rules.

Audit Committee

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the

Audit Committee Members are as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok (Chairman)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung
(appointed on 1 June 2023)

One of the independent non-executive directors possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules. Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of

its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor's independence

and objectivity;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report, and to
review significant financial reporting judgements

contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, the risk

management and internal control systems;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies

and practices; and

to review the external auditor's management letter and to
ensure that Board will provide a timely response to the

issues raised in the external auditor's management letter.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the Year:

1. to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023 and to recommend

them to the Board for approval;

2. to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the unaudited interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September
2023 and to recommend them to the Board for approval;

and

3. to review the risk management and internal control

systems of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions as required under the CG
Code:

1. to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior

management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’'s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (continued)

4.  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

directors; and

5. to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the above corporate governance functions
have been performed and executed by the Board and the
Board has reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the Year under review, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company's auditor, Ernst & Young for audit and non-

audit services to the Group, is set out as below:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$

Audit services 1,900,000
Non-audit services

— Review of interim financial information 450,000

— Other non-assurance services 20,000

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2024.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the

Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
its responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 96 to 105 of this

annual report.

FHELEEEEERAA
Annual Report 2024 %%}

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEREBRE

ﬁ%amﬁﬁ%w
E'J&é%ﬁ?ﬂ%(ﬁuﬁ) P R

5. MEARREBTEEERTHBRLK
E(EEBERBS) AW E -

RAFEE %%Aﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬂutﬁ
RREE  URBFRGERAARRRIEST
ERSTRIZIEMR -

BB &

REBEFER AR ZZBED R KT
EHMARAAREERE M) EZMIERZ RS M
EN/ERZBMHEINMT

FT 1R 14t AR 75 BN EBNER
BT
Z AR 7 1,900,000
IEAZ BR R 75
—F P E B E R 450,000
— H {th IEEE 75 IR 75 20,000
BERZEH

EEemRAEARAEARRBE_T _F
A=t BLEFEZUBBRRNAEE -

E=gY T%D*ﬁikT%Eﬂ%Fﬁzl LA
CREFEARAFELLENRES -

ARBIMNEZBEI RS MR Z EEEAH
RAFREICE1058 2 [ B 1% BRI RS ]
A o

43



44

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -
Annual Report 2024 F3§

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems for the Group. The systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established internal audit
function. Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring the maintenance
of proper accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensuring

compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Board has overseen the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls has been
conducted, and considered that the systems are effective and
adequate. The review is conducted at least annually. For the
year ended 31 March 2024, the Board has conducted a
review on the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications,
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

functions and considered that they are adequate.

Whistleblowing Policy

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted a whistleblowing policy on 14 March 2023. It
provides employees and the relevant third parties who deal
with the Group (e.g., customers and suppliers) with guidance
and reporting channels on reporting any suspected
improprieties in any matters related to the Group directly
addressed to the Audit Committee. All information received

from a whistleblower and its identity will be kept confidential.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy

In compliance with code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted the code of conduct which provides guidance
and the standards of behaviour in relation to the anti-
corruption and anti-bribery, the responsibilities of employees
to resist fraud, to help the Group defend against corrupt
practices and to report any reasonably suspected case of fraud
and corruption or any attempts thereof, to the management or
through an appropriate reporting channel. The Group would
not tolerate all forms of fraud and corruption among all
employees and those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity
on behalf of the Group, and in its business dealing with third

parties.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Group is fully aware of its obligation of handling and
dissemination of inside information under the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"). The Group has a policy on
disclosure of inside information which sets out the system in
place for monitoring the developments of our businesses so
that potential inside information can be escalated to the Board
so as to decide whether announcement in relation to such
inside information is to be made, in order to comply with the
Listing Rules and SFO. In addition, all employees are required
to follow the guidelines of the code of conduct and the staff
handbook to keep unpublished inside information strictly

confidential.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Suet Yi, is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance

matters.

During the Year, Ms. Ng Suet Yi has complied with the relevant
professional training under rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene a Special General Meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company, shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business or resolution specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held in the form of a
physical meeting only and within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists may themselves convene such physical meeting in
accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of the

Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Send Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time to send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board as follows:

Unit 3808, 38th Floor,
West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong

Telephone @ (852) 2530 1668
Fax : (852) 2530 1233
Email : info@ncgrp.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the

general meetings of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(i) The procedures for proposing a person for election as a

(i)

director of the Company at shareholders’ meetings are

set out in the “Corporate Governance” section of the

Company's website.

The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company may submit a
written requisition to propose resolution(s) through

requisition of a special general meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of
the voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders
of the Company may submit a written requisition to

propose resolution(s) at the next general meeting.

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must

@

(b)

©

(d)

state the resolution(s) with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the shareholders’

meeting;

be signed by the requisitionist(s);

specify the full name and address of the
requisitionist(s), as appear in the Company's share

register of shareholders;

specify the class and number of shares which are
beneficially owned by the requisitionist(s) on the

date of such written requisition or notice; and
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)
(e) be deposited at the registered office of the Company
with a copy to the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit
3808, 38th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the board of directors of the

Company or the company secretary of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings and other general meetings to communicate

with them and encourage their participation.

In addition, the Company also communicates to its shareholders
through interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. All such reports, announcements and circulars can also
be accessed via websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

The shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly
by the Board to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with

the prevailing regulatory and other requirements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) in January 2019.

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount,
the Board shall take into account, among others, inter alia, the

following factors:

(i) the Group's financial results;

(i) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity

position;

(i) the Group's expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

(iv) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each of the members of the Group; and

(v) any other factors that the Board may consider

appropriate.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the bye-laws of

the Company and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be

proposed or declared in any given period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there was no change
in the Company's constitutional documents, and these
documents are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Rig - HERELGRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report provides an update of the environmental, social
and governance ("ESG") of the Group during the period from
1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 (the "Reporting Year") and is
prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide under
Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules (the “ESG Report").

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board Statement

A company's success is not solely measured by its financial
performance, but also by the extent to its contribution to the
lives of its customers, employees and other stakeholders from
a wider world. Therefore, as an important leadership role of the
Company, the Board has full responsibility for the Company's
ESG strategy and reporting by taking environmental, social and
corporate governance considerations into its business
operations and ensuring the awareness within the organisation

of the importance of sustainability to its long-term success.

Over the past years, the Company has conducted materiality
assessments of ESG issues concerned by its stakeholders, in
which the Board participated in the evaluation, prioritisation,
and management of important ESG issues and put in place an
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
supervision system. The Company has also set environmental
targets associated with its businesses and conducts regular

reviews of the progress of environmental targets.

A more comprehensive review of the Company's performance

is provided in the Group’s ESG Report in the following section.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

We have taken the following reporting principles into account

in development of the ESG report.

Materiality

The ESG Report is structured and based on the materiality of
respectively sustainability issues as assessed and identified with
stakeholder engagement. The Board and the management
regularly review the sustainability issues that are most significant
to our businesses and operations, and consider the issues

discussed in the ESG Report to be material to the Group.

Quantitative

The ESG Report provides information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools. Source
of conversion factors used for the reporting emissions and
energy consumption are mainly referred to the ESG Reporting
Guide.

Balance

The ESG Report provides an unbiased picture of the Group's
performance during the Reporting Year to avoid selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that may inappropriately
influence the decision or judgement made by the report

reader.

Consistency
The Group uses consistent methodologies to allow for
meaningful comparisons of ESG data and enables the

stakeholders to understand the Group's performances.

REPORTING BOUNDARY

Unless otherwise stated, information disclosed in the ESG
Report covers the Group’s businesses including money
lending, property investment and securities trading for the

Reporting Year.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT FOESH

The Group understands its responsibility to all stakeholders ZAEBHABHEURESHENEET TETE
and recognises that understanding the needs and expectations ~ THFMHEMNTERBE AAEBRKINHE
of stakeholders is the key to success of the Group. Therefore, & - Eitt - REBERTEFHHE K R
the Group values the views of different stakeholders and their ~ MFESHAEEEFENIRE L NEARE
opinions on our businesses and ESG matters. A summary of HWER - HMHE BINEEUARERE

the stakeholders, topics concerned and communication

channels are as follows:

Stakeholders
F0E

Stock Exchange

Bt X P

Government and Regulatory
Authorities

B M EE S

Topics Concerned

BE KR E

«  Compliance of listing rules,

timely and accurate publishing

BRENT

Communication Channels

«  Meetings, training, workshops,

programs, website updates and

of announcements announcements
M E AR EE RO R @i B TIEY B
B AL BHEHRAS

«  Compliance with laws and

«  Government inspections

regulations BT R

EFIERE KA «  Compliance report or
«  Fulfilment of tax obligation questionnaire

FB1T &= 55 EHRmENHES

«  Statutory filings and notification
EE R KB A
e Taxreturns

WK



STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholders
50E

Investors and Shareholders

BREEMBRR

Customers

BF

Business Partners and
Suppliers
EES YA

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7 53
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Topics Concerned
B X AR

+  Corporate governance
TEEER

. Business strategies and
performance
EBRBERKRE

. Investment returns
& [0

«  Quality services

BE R

*  Reasonable price
BEER

. Protection of privacy
REMLE

*  Quality of products or services

EmERBHEER

RR - HEREGRE

K ESRR)

Communication Channels

BERE

«  Shareholders’ meetings

RERE

+  Annual and interim reports
FRE P RS

«  Announcements and circulars

«  Company website

YNGIFENS

*  Emails and phone
BH LTS

«  Site visits
B IR

+  Business meetings
EEE

«  Company website

N A Ak

. Business meetings
BEeEE

«  Contract and agreements
B K N

«  Emails and phone
B REF
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholders

Topics Concerned

BFHE B RE
Employees *  Remuneration and benefit
(== ¥ B K @ A
+  Employee compensation
BEMIE
«  Training and development
Bl R R
«  Working hours
TR 8
*  Working environment
THRIRER
Community +  Environmental protection
o REBRE

Employment

IS

Helping people in need and

poverty relief

EDEFEENEKE

HHELEEEEERLA

K ES R R

Communication Channels

BERE

Interviews with employees
HIEE G H%

Employee performance appraisal
BEXRREZ

Internal meetings
RERE

Training and seminars
=SS

Employee handbook

& 8 F i

Emails and internal memos
EB AR ESE
Suggestion box

BRAE

Supporting charitable
organisations

XIFRERE

Employees’ voluntary participation
in community activities
BEBR2ELEES
Charitable donations

EERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions
Due to the Group's nature of business, the operations do

not involve any production process, hence there is no

obvious exhaust emissions.

The Group’s air and greenhouse gas ("“GHG") emissions
data during the Reporting Year and the year 2023 are as

follows:

Unit
B
Air Emissions
BERBER
Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) kg
Rt T
Sulphur Oxides (SO,) kg
ey T
Particulate Matter (PM) kg
fRT RAR TR
GHG Emissions
BERBHER
Scope 1: Direct emissions tCO,e
$BE: BEEYR WE LI E 2
Scope 2: Indirect emissions tCO.e
FE2 : FEER W —fLiEE
Greenhouse gas intensity tCO,e
(per employee) WE—EALIRE =
RERBEE

(8%

)
ﬁﬁ

8)

Al.

5 - dEREGHRE

RIB

BE R

ERAEBEERED  HEEEBAL
A RAT I A E B - Ak I A {] BF

BRERERR -

AEBMNREFER T - —FENE
fSERBEERE(CR=RE)) EnEE
mF

2024 2023

—F-omE —
2.27 1.58
0.05 0.04
0.17 0.12
8.50 7.21
65.32 64.11
2.31 2.30

95
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Al.

HEREGRE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Notes:

1. Scope 1 refers to the direct emissions from vehicles that

are owned by the Group.

2. Scope 2 refers to the indirect emissions resulting from the
generation of purchased electricity consumed by the

Group.

3. The emission factors used are based on the requirements
in “How to prepare an ESG report — Appendix 2: Reporting

Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock

Exchange.

We have adopted energy saving initiatives mentioned in

the section “Use of Resources” of the ESG Report.

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

The Group recognises the importance of waste reduction.
Waste management measures have been introduced to
minimise the amount of waste generated and reduce
impact of our operation on the environment. The small
amount of hazardous waste generated from the
Company's office activities, such as toner cartridges, is
collected by qualified organisations for environmentally
friendly disposal. Non-hazardous waste includes waste
papers of approximately 1.06 tonnes (2023: 0.92
tonnes) which are collected by specialised recycling

company on a regular basis for effective recycling.

Due to the Group's business nature, it is not aware of
any non-compliance of laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A. BRIE (&)
. Use of Resources A2. ERERA
The Group's energy and resources consumption data AEBRREFERS_=FEME
during the Reporting Year and the year 2023 are as BRREERBFEEENT
follows:
Unit 2024 2023
By —E_NEF =

Direct Energy Consumption

BEERRERE
Petrol Litres 3,600.57 3,053.31
i 7t
Intensity (per vehicle) Litres 1,200.19 1,017.77
mE (G#HE) 7t

Indirect Energy Consumption

8 2 e FUH #E
Electricity kWh 137,473.00 132,343.00
B T L
Intensity (per sq.m. of floor area) kWh 124.85 120.19
BE(BVHAEEERE) T 5B

Resources Consumption

BIRH
Paper Tonnes 5.61 541
i M8
Intensity (per employee) Tonnes 0.18 0.17
EE(BREER) 7]
The Group is vigilant to conserve energy, water and REBEBEHORLR  KMER A&
resources as to relieve global concern of resource BERHERMBENES - Bt - M
depletion. Hence, we have initiated the following EHEITATNENE + MR E B & fFE A

measures to promote responsible use of resources. BIR o
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Electricity Consumption

«  The Group advocates employees to switch off idle

lightings, computers, office equipment and air-

conditioning systems when they are not in use.

«  The Group has adopted energy saving practices in

its office building.

«  The traditional fluorescent tubes have been replaced

by LED tubes in the offices from time to time.

Fuel Consumption
«  Regular maintenance on the Group's vehicles is
carried out to ensure a high fuel efficiency to reduce

emissions.

Water Consumption

«  Water saving notices have been posted in pantry to

promote water conservation and usage awareness.

«  Prompt repair and maintenance when there is

dripping, spraying and leaky faucets.

Water consumption of the Group is entirely generated
from domestic usage in the office building. However, the
head office in Hong Kong has no water consumption
recorded as the water consumption charges are included
in the building management fee so that the water bills
will not be calculated separately. Since the main source
of waste water came from domestic use, the overall level

of water pollution is relatively low.

A2.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
A2. Use of Resources (continued)
Paper Consumption
«  The use of digital copies is promoted in the office to

save papers and to recycle envelopes that are used

for issuing internal documents and letters.

«  Double-side printing and copying.

¢ Electronic means of corporate communications to
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to
receive corporate communication documents by
using electronic means through the Company's

website so as to reduce the paper consumption.

« Increasing the portion of digital marketing tools and

cutting down the paper advertisement.

Packing Material Consumption
«  The Group, as a non-consumer goods manufacturer,
does not consume any packaging materials in its

principal businesses.

A2.
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A4.

HEREGRE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
The Environment and Natural Resources

The business activities of the Group have no direct/
significant impact on environment and natural resources.
The Group nonetheless commits to using natural
resources efficiently while we encourage the reuse and
recycling of materials during our daily operations. In
addition, the Group is committed in applying industry
best practices and complying with legislation, establishing
and reviewing safety, security, and environmental goals
and targets, effectively using energy and materials,
reducing waste and emissions, and communicating our
environmental protection policy to all employees. The
Group also places surplus cash with a bank for
sustainable deposits of which all assets reference against
them align to the United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals addressing, including but not limited to, climate

change, poverty, health, financial inclusion and education.

Meanwhile, the Group recognises that businesses must
take responsibility for being a role model of industry in
relation to sustainability of the environment, and we
should bear the responsibilities and fulfill the obligations

in protecting them.

Climate Change

Climate change has attracted widespread international
attention. The Group has recognised the potential risks
and impacts of changing climate that may adversely affect
the Group's business and financial performance. The

potential climate-related risks are as follows:

A3.

A4.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Climate Change (continued)
Physical Risks

With the increase in frequency and severity of extreme
weather and climate events such as typhoons, rainstorms,
floods, thunderstorms and fire, the Group acknowledges
that climate change is a global issue that will impact
individuals and worldwide. Extreme weather events will
have adverse impacts on the Group's businesses and the
health and safety of our employees. In addition, extreme
weather events may cause damages to the Group's
properties, including collateral properties under our
Group’s mortgage loan portfolio. To minimise the
potential risks, the Group has established mitigation plans
including flexible working arrangements and precautionary
measures during bad or extreme weather conditions and
closely monitored the weather updates. The Group will
also perform regular assessment of office and building

facilities to secure a safe working environment.

Transition Risks

More stringent existing and emerging requirements in
policies and regulations related to climate change may
lead to higher operating costs to ensure compliance. In
response to the policy and legal risks, the Group
constantly monitors any changes in laws or regulations
and access the risk posed to the Group timely to mitigate

the effects on the Group.

In the future, the Group will continue to closely monitor
the effect and potential risks of climate change, and to
improve and implement precautionary measures to

reduce such climate-related risks.

A4.
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SOCIAL

. Employment

Employees are regarded as valuable assets and core
competitive advantage of the Group. Policies and
regulations principally adopted by the Group in respect of
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare have

been clearly stated in the employee handbook.

During the Reporting Year, the Group complied with all
the relevant laws, regulations and requirements, including
but not limited to, the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57),
the Employee’s Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282), the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap.
485) and the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608) and
did not find any violations of laws and regulations and

requirements in relation to Employment.
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As at 31 March 2024, the Group had a total number of

32 full-time employees (2023: 31 full-time employees).

The key performance indicators related to the employee

structure and the employee turnover rate for the

Reporting Year and the year 2023 are as follows:

Employee structure
By gender
Male

Female

By age group
Under 30
Aged 30 to 50
Aged over 50

By category
Senior Management
Middle Management

General Employees

By geographical region
Hong Kong

Singapore

wEEH
R P
B

o

RERER B2
308 A T

303 2505%
508% A £

BER 82
AREIEE
TREERE
—RIER

Bt EE 5
E
AN

HE (&)

. B (&)

R-ZE-_WNF=ZA=1+—H AEEZ
2REBAHDDA(ZTZ=F: 28
BE3IIAN) RBEFERZZTE_=F
EEHEERBEREERKL XA

MR

2024
—E-NFE
Number of
employees

BEAH

13
19

14
15

14
11

23

2023
—T-=F
Number of
employees

BEAH

13
18

15
15

13
12

24
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Note: Turnover rate refers to total number of resigned/retired

employees divided by the average number of employees

during the Reporting Year and the year 2023.

B. SOCIAL (continued) B. #& (&)
B1. Employment (continued) B1. {E1& (&)
2024 2023
—E-mF —E=%F
Number of Number of
resigned/ resigned/
retired Turnover retired Turnover
employees rate employees rate
33 B
RES RIKEE
AB RKbE=R A VNS
(Note) (Note)
(Bff =) (FF&E)
Employee turnover rate {EER KL=
By gender R RI & D
Male S1 1 3% 1 3%
Female 7 0 0% 1 3%
By age group RERA RS D
Under 30 30BR A T 0% 0%
Aged 30 to 50 30B% £505% 3% 0%
Aged over 50 508k A | 0% 6%
By geographical region Z#tEE S
Hong Kong BB 3% 6%
Singapore A3 0% 0 0%
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. Employment (continued)

Compensation and Dismissal

The Group offers competitive remuneration and benefits
to attract and retain the talents. The remuneration of each
employee will be determined with reference to a number
of factors including educational background, experience,
job duties, professional skills and technical capabilities, as
well as salary level for similar job positions in the industry.
An employee may be dismissed in case of serious or
persistent breaches of discipline or convicted of a criminal

offence.

Recruitment and Promotion

The Group treats all employees equally. Their
employment, remuneration and promotion will not be
affected by their social identities such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation,
marital status, pregnancy, disability and political beliefs.
The level of compensation of our employees is reviewed
annually in an annual appraisal on their performance
basis, during which process each employee is given equal

opportunity for promotion.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group understands the importance of “work-life
balance” to its employees and adopts five to six days
workweek dependent on level of duty and nature of
operations involved to ensure that the employees have
adequate rest. The Group determines working hours and
rest periods for the employees in line with Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and employment contracts with
the employees. In addition to statutory holidays, the
employees are also entitled to other paid holidays
including annual leave, sick leave, marriage and
compassionate leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and

compensation leave.

5 - dEREGHRE

HE (&)

. B (&)

B R B 1
AREBERBEAEBRF HOFHEERN
Wl RREBAS - BEREHF @ﬂl)’b*%

ZHAEXETE BREREEER &%
THEBE  BXRIERXMEN ARk

TTEABUTAERAL A 2 KF
BES Ei&%éﬂz%ﬂz%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ%?&ﬁﬁﬁ
EERIRES WARIE -

HERET

AEBMYIEHEMERE -HER #
WhEATEZIRK Bk HE-
’\"_{E‘J*T%Z Fie MEm - EEAMR

ERCBRRBARERFLES D
ﬁﬁ?/a c AKBEBFRNETRFNZRE
RIEE NME B 2 KRB W EHEAKFE
EZBiET  ZRERBVDEEFEFEAK

&= o
=]

TIER 2R IRA

AREBERB[TIEEAFNFEH]HE
BREMEZN  WREEES MAOB
ERENEELERRAEENRNIE
B UERESEARHNKE - AEE
REFE(ERBGEID) REREFT W
EBRAVETCEENITIERHERRE -

BROAEBRBI BENMEREMBEFR
BREFR BEKR- BHREEME -

ER - FEREMER-

65



66

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

Annual Report 2024 F3§

HHELEEEEERLA

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE - HEREGRE

SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

Diversity, Equal Opportunities and Anti-discrimination

The Group believes in the power of diversity, as it
believes that a varied workforce is essential to business
continuity. Therefore, the Group is committed to creating
and maintaining an embracing and collaborative
workplace culture. The Group aims to provide equal
opportunities in all aspects of employment and ensure
the workplace is free from discrimination, physical or
verbal harassment against any individual based on race,
religion, colour, gender, physical or mental capability, age,
place of origin, marital status, and sexual orientation. The
Group also strives to ensure that complaints, afflictions
and concerns, including whistle-blowing, are dealt with
promptly and confidentially. The Group has zero
tolerance for sexual harassment or abuse in the

workplace in any form.

Benefits and Welfare

«  Benefits plans maintained by the Group include
mandatory provident fund ("MPF") scheme, medical
insurance, group life insurance, long service reward

and discretionary bonuses.

« Eligible employees are rewarded through the
Group's share option scheme and have the
opportunity to acquire shares of the Company

through this scheme.

«  Providing free fruit at work and encouraging our

employees to make healthy food choices.

«  Festive gifts were given to the employees.

«  Birthday celebrations were held for employees from

time to time.
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Benefits and Welfare (continued)

On top of the statutory requirement, the Group makes
voluntary contributions to the MPF to enhance retirement
protection of the employees. The Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Group have received the Good MPF
Employer Award for several years presented by the

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing employees a safe,
healthy and hygienic working environment. The following
sets out the practices adopted by the Group in relation to

workplace:

«  Office employees are assigned with individual
workstations. Offices are properly lit and ventilated,
kept clean and tidy with ample space between

workstations;

«  Office furniture and fittings are well-maintained and

replaced when necessary;

+  Smoking and drinking alcohol in workplace are

strictly prohibited;

+  Cleaning of air-conditioning systems and disinfection

treatment of carpets are carried out regularly;
«  Air defender and purifiers are equipped to protect
environment with antibacterial efficacy and to

remove air-suspended dust and odour;

«  First-aid boxes are set up in the offices;
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B.

B2.

B3.

SOCIAL (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)

«  The Group supported the employees’ roles and
responsibilities to their families and strives to
maintain a family-friendly work place for our
employees. We welcomed their kids to come to our
workplace in case of any suspension of classes for all
secondary schools, primary schools, kindergartens,

child care centres and special schools;

. Hand sanitizers are available at the reception areas;

and

. Public areas of the offices are cleaned and

disinfected every day;

There was no work-related fatality occurred in the Group
during the Reporting Year and the past three years. Apart
from these, there was no lost day due to work-related

injury during the Reporting Year.

Development and Training

The Group acknowledges the importance of training for
the development of the employees as well as the Group.
The Group encourages and supports employees in
personal and professional training, through seminars,
workshops as well as reimbursement for external training
courses to enhance their competencies in performing
their jobs effectively and efficiently. For the Reporting
Year, 31 employees (2023: 30 employees) have
received training, representing 97% (2023: 97%) of the
employees of the Group. A total of 239 training hours
(2023: 163 training hours) were offered to the relevant
employees, of which 97 training hours (2023: 56 training
hours) for male and 142 training hours (2023: 107

training hours) for female.
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B. SOCIAL (continued) B. #& (&)

B3. Development and Training (continued) B3. BEKRIFA (&)
The percentage of employees received training by gender RBEEFERZT_-FEF  EHX
and category for the Reporting Year and the year 2023 BRIESNEEXIBSLMT

are as follows:

2024 2023
—E-NmEF —E-=F
Percentage of Percentage of
employees employees

received training  received training

ZilEEZ XilEEZ
Ao Bkt
By gender R & D
Male 5L 39 40
Female Eegid 61 60
By category RER 85
Senior Management EBRERE 23 20
Middle Management RARERE 45 43

General Employees —REE 32 37
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B3. Development and Training (continued)

For the Reporting Year, the average training hours per
employee received training was 8 (2023: 5) and the
breakdown of the average training hours per employees

received training based on gender and category are as

follows:

By gender
Male

Female

By category
Senior Management
Middle Management

General Employees

BB & 2
St

g

BER &85
= AR E IR
PAREERE
—R1EE

B. #& (&)

B3. &R KRIEI (&)
REEFE  BEXIEE FHZIIE
HAS(ZEZ=F:5) MELEIR
HANBE M EEZIEEB FIZIIRE
BRI T ¢

2024 2023
—EB-lE —ER-=F
Average training  Average training

hours hours
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Labour Standards

The Group complies with all relevant laws and regulations
and the requirements of the governing authorities and
strictly prohibits the employment of child and forced
labour. Through the well-established recruitment policies,
the Group’s human resources department will carefully
check the identity documents of all applicants during the
recruitment process in order to ensure that all the
Group's employees are above the minimum legal working
age and no forced labour is hired. During the Reporting
Year, all the Group's employees were aged over 18 and
no child and forced labour had been employed (2023:
Nil). The Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with child and forced labour-related laws and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57) and other laws and regulations
relating to employment and labour practices that would

have a significant impact on the Group.

Supply Chain Management

The Group mainly engages third party services providers
to provide services such as information technology
services, advertising services, legal and professional
services, and also daily routine office equipment, office
supplies, stationery and printing materials. There was no

major procurement involved.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Supply Chain Management (continued)

The Group strives to develop and maintain long-term and
stable relationships with our suppliers who are committed
to high quality, environmental, health and safety standards.
In selecting the suppliers, the Group takes into account
their prices, quality, services capabilities, credibility,
environmental and social performance. Meanwhile,
the Group regularly evaluates supplier performance,
strengthens the management of environmental and social
risks, promotes the sustainable development of the
enterprise, in order to build up the corporate social

responsibility.

During the Reporting Year, there were 59 suppliers
(2023: 58 suppliers) of the Group, all of them are

located in Hong Kong.

Product Responsibility

The Group strives to adhere to applicable laws and
regulations with regard to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating products and
services provided in our businesses, and to maintain
effective communication channels for redress. As the
Group is also conducting money lending business
through holding a money lenders licence in Hong Kong,
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163) constitutes a
significant influence to the Group's money lending

business.

During the Reporting Year, there was no non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on the Group relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided.
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Product Responsibility (continued)

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group values its intangible assets as much as its
tangibles. The Group protects its businesses against
intellectual property theft by refusing the use of illegal
software or anything without copyright or patents. The
Group supports the use of legal and intangible assets
with trademarks while protecting itself from expose to

cybersecurity threats.

Customer Privacy Protection

We only collect personal data for operational needs and
clearly inform all customers or persons about the
intended use of the data and their rights to review and
revise their information. All collected personal data is
treated as confidential and securely kept and processed

only for the purposes of which it had been collected.

During the Reporting Year, we were not aware of any
significant non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. We did not receive any compliant concerning
breaches of clients’ privacy nor we have identified any

leak or loss of client data.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
responsibility and integrity in all aspect of the Group's
affairs. The Group has a zero-tolerance policy towards
behavior in association with bribery, corruption, extortion,
fraud and money laundering in its business operations.
Employees should not offer, solicit or accept anything of
material value to or from his/her colleagues, customers,
suppliers or other business partners of the Company. Our
code of conduct has provided guiding principles for the
employees regarding to the acceptance of gifts,
declaration of interest and other misconduct. Employees
are required to declare any conflict of interest by
completing the required form as instructed by the
Group’s Human Resources Department. Accepting
voluntary gift must be declared and have undergone the
approval process as administered by the Group’s Human
Resources Department. During the Reporting Year, the
Group provided internal training on anti-corruption for all
directors and employees of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

The Group encourages the reporting of suspected
business irregularities within the Group and provides
reporting channels specifically for this purpose. When
suspected wrongdoings, such as breach of duty, abuse of
power and receipts of bribes are identified, employees
should report to senior management for investigation and
verification, as well as other relevant regulators or to the

law enforcement authorities when necessary.
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Anti-corruption (continued)

To prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist
financing, the Group follows the “Guideline on
Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders” issued by the Companies Registry and has
incorporated policies and procedures in its operations and
credit guidelines and policies, which include procedures
for customer due diligence, enhanced due diligence,
reporting of suspicious transactions, record-keeping and
employee training. Any suspicious case of money
laundering or terrorist financing which comes to the
employees’ knowledge would be reported to the money
laundering reporting officer ("MLRO") of the Group. Taking
the relevant information into account, MLRO will evaluate
the suspicious case on a case-by-case basis and when
necessary, will report to the Joint Financial Intelligence
Unit of the Government of the Hong Kong Special

Administrative Region as soon as practicable.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations in respect of anti-corruption, and no legal
cases against the Group in respect of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering have been recorded during

the Reporting Year.

Furthermore, the Group encourages its employees to
report alleged malpractices or misconduct through various
channels. The Group has also adopted a whistleblowing
policy and procedures for all levels under the Group. The
Group's whistleblowing policy encourages all internal staff
to report actual or suspected improper conduct, in
confidence, to the Group's executive directors or the
Group's Audit Committee if the suspected improper

conduct involves the Group's executive directors.
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B7.

B8.

SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption (continued)

During the Reporting Year, there was no concluded legal
case regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Group or our employees (2023: Nil). The Group
endeavours to protect the whistle-blower from common
concerns such as potential retaliation and is assured that

the identity as a whistle-blower will be kept confidential.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to supporting the public by
means of social participation and donation and putting
the best effort into helping the local communities and
people in need through community services and

engagement, social support and sponsorship programs.

The Group contributes and gives back to the community
by donating to various social organisations and engaging
in community service activities, to fulfil its corporate social
responsibility. We encourage our employees to take part
in charitable activities and volunteer community services.
During the Reporting Year, the Group made donations in
aggregate of HK$51,280 (2023: HK$41,800) to certain
social and charitable organisations, to support
rehabilitation and community services for the needy. Also,
our employees participated in volunteer community

service activities organised by the said organisations.

In addition, certain companies in the Group have been
awarded for decade the “Caring Company” logo by The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of its

contribution to society and serving the community.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company comprise investment
holding and securities trading. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries comprise money lending, property investment,
securities trading and cruise ship charter services. In March
2023, the Directors decided to dispose of Kingston Maritime
Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, which was solely engaged in cruise ship charter
services. Upon completion of the disposal on 28 April 2023,
the Group had discontinued its cruise ship charter service
business. Other than this development, there were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal

activities during the year.

Discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a fair review of
business and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s businesses, can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report
and note 1 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report. Such discussion forms part of this “Report of

the Directors”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the

Group's financial position at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 106 to 264.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any

dividends in respect of the year.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 265
and 266. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share options during

the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

There were no movements in the Company's share capital

during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to HK$680,977,000.

Under the laws of Bermuda, the amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$354,993,000 as at 31 March 2024 may be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$162,587,000 as at 31 March 2024 is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances as

prescribed by section 54 thereof.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$51,280.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate revenue attributable to
the five largest customers accounted for 18% of the Group's
total revenue and the aggregate revenue attributable to the
largest customer accounted for 5% of the Group's total

revenue for the year.

No major suppliers were identified.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest

customers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)
Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng
Ms. Chen Ka Chee
Mr. Yu Wai Man
Ms. Huang Si Teng
(appointed on 1 June 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth
Mr. Ho Yau Ming
Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung
(appointed on 1 June 2023)

In accordance with Company’s bye-laws 84(1) and 84(2), Ms.
Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ho Yau Ming and Mr. Cheung
Chun Kwok will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election.

The Company has received from each of Mr. Cheung Chun
Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth, Mr. Ho Yau Ming and Mr.
Wong Steve Cheuk Hung an annual confirmation of
independence and as at the date of this report, still considers

them to be independent.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

(a) Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat Chairman of the Company and the
Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 47. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
Director in January 2003 and was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in April 2004. Mr. Ng
was re-designated from the chief executive officer to the
chairman of the Company in March 2012. Mr. Ng has
also held directorship in various members of the Group
since January 2003. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics awarded by Indiana University
Bloomington. Mr. Ng is a director of Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited (“HWHL"), the immediate holding
company of New Century Investment Pacific Limited
(“NCIPL"), which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. In addition, Mr. Ng is a director of NCIPL. Mr.
Ng is a younger brother of Ms. Lilian Ng and an elder
brother of Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Huang Si
Teng. Mr. Ng is a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. Mr. Ng is
also a son of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng, who is the
settlor and the trustee of a discretionary trust which holds
the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Ms. Lilian Ng,
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda, Ms. Huang Si Teng and Ms.
Chen Ka Chee are executive Directors. Mr. Ng did not
hold any directorship in other listed public companies in

the last three years.
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Aged 57. Ms. Sio joined the Company as an executive
Director in October 2002 and was appointed as the
deputy chairman of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Sio has also held directorship in various members of the
Group since August 2000. Ms. Sio has over 29 years of
extensive management experience in various fields
including retailing, property investment, tourism and
entertainment. Ms. Sio is a director of HWHL, the
immediate holding company of NCIPL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, Ms.
Sio is a director of NCIPL. Ms. Sio is the mother of Ms.
Huang Si Teng, who is an executive Director. Ms. Sio did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies

in the last three years.

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda Chief Operating Officer

Aged 46. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
Director in June 2003 and was appointed as the chief
operating officer of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Ng has also held directorship in various members of the
Group since November 2003. Ms. Ng holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree majoring in Telecommunications and a minor
in Computer Science awarded by Indiana University
Bloomington. Ms. Ng brings to the Group experience in
the fields of real estate management, human resource
management and retail operations. Ms. Ng is a younger
sister of Ms. Lilian Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat and an elder
sister of Ms. Huang Si Teng. Ms. Ng is a cousin of Ms.
Chen Ka Chee. Ms. Ng is also a daughter of Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee
of a discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, Ms. Huang Si Teng and Ms. Chen Ka Chee are
executive Directors. Ms. Ng did not hold any directorship

in other listed public companies in the last three years.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)
(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Lilian Ng (also known as Ms. Huang Lilian)

Aged 50. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
Director in July 2002. Ms. Ng has also held directorship
in various members of the Group since September 2002.
Ms. Ng holds a Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration awarded by San Francisco State University.
Ms. Ng has extensive experience in real estate
management. Ms. Ng is a director of NCIPL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Ms. Ng is the
elder sister of Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
and Ms. Huang Si Teng. Ms. Ng is a cousin of Ms. Chen
Ka Chee. Ms. Ng is also a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee of a
discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew
Lang, Linda, Ms. Huang Si Teng and Ms. Chen Ka Chee
are executive Directors. Ms. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years.

Ms. Chen Ka Chee Member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee

Aged 59. Ms. Chen joined the Company as an executive
Director in May 2000 and was appointed as the member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in July 2022. Ms. Chen has also held
directorship in various members of the Group since
August 2000. Ms. Chen holds a Bachelor of Commerce
degree awarded by Murdoch University and is an
associate member of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants. Ms. Chen has over 36 years of
experience in the accounting field, including 4 years in
auditing. Ms. Chen is a cousin of Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ng
Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Huang Si
Teng. Ms. Chen is also a niece of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the
Company. Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew
Lang, Linda and Ms. Huang Si Teng are executive
Directors. Ms. Chen did not hold any directorship in other
listed public companies in the last three years.
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Aged 59. Mr. Yu joined the Company in August 1997
and was an executive Director from October 2004 to
June 2022. Mr. Yu was appointed as an executive
Director in November 2022. Mr. Yu has also held
directorship in various members of the Group since
September 1997. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of both the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
has over 39 years of experience in the accounting field,
including 3 years in external audit and 2 years in internal
audit. Contemporaneously, Mr. Yu has acquired over 31
years of financial experience in companies listed in Hong
Kong and London. Mr. Yu did not hold any directorship in

other listed public companies in the last three years.

Ms. Huang Si Teng

Aged 29. Ms. Huang joined the Company as an executive
Director in June 2023. Ms. Huang holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree awarded by the University of the Arts London
and a Master degree awarded by the University College
London. Ms. Huang has over 9 years of property
investment and management experience in Southeast
Asia. Ms. Huang is a younger sister of Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr.
Ng Wee Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda. Ms. Huang is
a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. Ms. Huang is also a
daughter of Ms. Sio lon Kuan and Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the
Company. Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew
Lang, Linda, Ms. Chen Ka Chee and Ms. Sio lon Kuan are
executive Directors. Ms. Huang did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years and any other positions with the Company or

other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)
(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 59. Mr. Cheung joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in June 2012 and
was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee in September 2012.
Mr. Cheung is also the member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Cheung graduated from Edith Cowan
University of Australia and received his postgraduate
diploma of financial management from the University of
London. Since returning to Hong Kong in 1990, he has
been extending international opportunities for Chinese
large state-owned and privately-owned enterprises. Mr.
Cheung is a Practising Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
Certified Practising Accountant of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants and a Certified Tax
Adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr.
Cheung is the director of Global CPA (HK) Limited
(Representative of Integra International) and has
extensive experience in mergers and acquisitions and the
tax aspect. Mr. Cheung oversees the day-to-day running
of the finance function and is directly responsible for
financial reporting, corporate governance, tax and
corporate finance for multi-national companies including
state-owned enterprises and listed enterprises. Mr.
Cheung also has extensive international accounting
experience and has worked in CPA firms in the US and
Australia. Mr. Cheung has served as a member of the
Small and Medium Practitioners Committee, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Professional Service Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council and International
Committee and a Certified Business Intermediary of the
International Business Brokers Association. Currently, Mr.
Cheung is a member of the Small and Medium
Practitioners Committee of CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years and any other positions with the
Company or other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Aged 77. Mr. Kwan joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in April 2003. Mr.
Kwan is also the member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Applied
Science degree in Civil Engineering and a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree with Honours from the
University of Toronto and the University of Windsor
respectively. Mr. Kwan has 8 years of experience in the
accounting and tax auditing fields together with over 43
years of experience in the real estate business and
business agent. Mr. Kwan did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years and
any other positions with the Company or other members

of the Group.

Mr. Ho Yau Ming Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Aged 73. Mr. Ho joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2003. Mr. Ho is also the
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ho holds
a Master degree in Finance from the University of
Leicester in England. Mr. Ho had worked in the banking
industry for over 27 years in official and senior executive
positions including The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and Dao Heng Bank Limited. Mr. Ho
did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years and any other positions

with the Company or other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Aged 78. Mr. Wong joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in June 2023. Mr.
Wong is also the member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wong completed an advanced level
course in real estate at Ryerson University (currently
known as Toronto Metropolitan University) and was
admitted as Fellow of the Real Estate Institute of Canada.
Mr. Wong is currently a Real Estate Broker and was a
Professional Appraiser with over 56 years of experience
in real estate business. Mr. Wong was qualified and
registered as a Professional Appraiser of Alpha Appraisal
Association of Ontario, Canada and a member of Toronto
Real Estate Board and The International Institute of Public
Appraisers Ltd., Chicago, US. Mr. Wong was a co-founder
of Toronto Chinese Business Association (the
“Association”) in 1968 and was elected as the president
of the Association in 1975. Mr. Wong did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years and any other positions with the Company or

other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, no Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to Directors’
duties, qualifications, experience, level of responsibilities
undertaken, contribution to the Company, prevailing market
conditions and the recommendation of Remuneration
Committee. Further details can be found in note 8 to the

financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
During the year ended 31 March 2024, a permitted indemnity

provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
was in force for indemnity liabilities incurred by the Directors

to a third party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of the
Company’s holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow

subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

FHELEEEEERAA
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EERBRETRAEBRKRSG - HE
BROKEER Z2EERAXR

RZZE_WNF=ZA=+—H XRAIEERK
EETBABRAR RS EEMHEEERE (F
EABLFLBEGRA(TEHLBAEEL))
EXVE) 2 gty - RO MEEZFTES
RIBEES N E KA EIS2HEEEBLAR
RAFMREECMACEZRARE  JIRE
BT AESETESFRINEETA 2
REMBANEARAREEHERIANER
DA ([BEBBZM)) 2 EE AT ¢

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

BEEERBE  SOREHRNE

Directly Through Percentage of the

beneficially controlled Beneficiary Company's issued

Directors owned corporation of a trust Total share capital

gl BAARE BT

Bs EREEES EEREQA ErRZEaR A BF BRAZBEDL

Mr. Ng Wee Keat - 220,192,000 3,556,133,691 3,776,325,691 65.33
HEGREE (Note 2) (Note 3)
(Bt E2) (B 5E3)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan 52,000,000 220,192,000 3,556,133,691 3,828,325,691 66.23
mEELL (Note 2) (Note 3)
(PitaE2) (B5E3)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda - 220,192,000  3,556,133,691  3,776,325,691 65.33
BEAMAT (Note 2) (Note 3)
(H¥2) (WiE3)

Ms. Lilian Ng - 220,192,000 3,556,133,691  3,776,325,691 65.33
AEAEZ T (Note 2) (Note 3)
(HiE2) (WE3)

Ms. Huang Si Teng - - 3,556,133,691 3,556,133,691 61.52
ERELT (Note 3)
(P E3)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee 8,400,000 - - 8,400,000 0.15

RIB Szt
Mr. Yu Wai Man 3,360,000 = = 3,360,000 0.06

REXLE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2024, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 5,780,368,705.

2. 220,192,000 shares were held by New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited, a company limited by guarantee being a
charitable institution of public character of which Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian

Ng are members and members of its council of management.

3. 3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited, which is ultimately owned by Huang Group (BVI)
Limited under a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ng Wee Keat,
Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda, Ms. Lilian Ng and

Ms. Huang Si Teng are the discretionary beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2024, the following interests and short

positions of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the

Company were recorded in the register of interests required to

be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Shareholders

S

New Century Investment Pacific Limited

Huang Worldwide Holding Limited

Huang Group (BVI) Limited

Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
=REBEEE

Notes:

Notes

B &

1. As at 31 March 2024, the total number of issued shares of the

Company was 5,780,368,705.

2. Huang Group (BVI) Limited is the ultimate holding company of

New Century Investment Pacific Limited. Huang Worldwide

Holding Limited is the immediate holding company of New

Century Investment Pacific Limited. Accordingly, Huang Group
(BVI) Limited and Huang Worldwide Holding Limited were
deemed to be interested in a total of 3,556,133,691 shares.

3. Huang Group (BVI) Limited is held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow

Leng in his capacity as the settlor and the trustee of a

discretionary trust.

FHELEEEEERAA
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FERREHEMATRRG REH
R zEERAXE

RZEZWNF=A=+—8  (hEARAD%H
TR A% A £z T3 kAR ThiR#&
BHE R EKEG 336K M EBLALRA R
FrirRTEZ = E L

RARAREBRZHR

Number of Percentage of the
Ordinary Company's issued
shares held share capital
EARLAE BT

FEEBERHE BREzBDL
3,556,133,691 61.52
3,556,133,691 61.52
3,556,133,691 61.52
4,206,729,691 72.78

1. RZE-_ME=A=+—H KRRz %
1TR% 5 48 8155,780,368,7054% °

2. Huang Group (BVI) LimitedZ&New Century
Investment Pacific Limited Z & &2 AR A &) ©
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited &New
Century Investment Pacific LimitedZ B 45
i A7 o Bk - Huang Group (BVI) Limited &
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited# 4% & # A&
& #£3,556,133,691 AR5 < # 2 -

3. Huang Group (BVI) Limitedh & MR B %t 4 A
—[EAEREEEZETARGBREAIORE °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

4.  3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. 220,192,000 shares were held by New Century
(Huang's) Foundation Limited while 430,404,000 shares were
held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng. Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng is one of the members of New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
was deemed to be interested in a total of 4,206,729,691
shares. New Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited is a company
limited by guarantee being a charitable institution of public

character.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, no person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2012, an ordinary resolution was passed for
adoption of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”). The
Scheme expired on 3 September 2022. No new share option
scheme was adopted afterwards. The total of 116,200,000
outstanding share options under the Scheme lapsed on 3
September 2023. As at 31 March 2024, the Company had no
outstanding share options. The details of the Scheme are

disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses the movements of the

outstanding share options granted under the Scheme during

the year:

Name or category
of participant

SREKAAER

Directors

Bz

Mr. Ng Wee Keat
BRELE

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

mARLL

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
ERBTL

Ms. Lilian Ng
BRELL

Ms. Chen Ka Chee
BRELT

Number of share options

BREHR
At Lapsed At
1 April during 31 March
2023 the year 2024
R-B-=F RER R-Z-@F
A—EH %% =A=1-H
21,000,000  (21,000,000) -
11,000,000  (11,000,000) =
18,000,000  (18,000,000) =
18,000,000  (18,000,000) =
16,000,000  (16,000,000) -
84,000,000  (84,000,000) =

FHELEEFTEERQA
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BREE (&)
TERERERAFE  REZA SR DM E AR
T B2 28
Date of Exercise Exercise
grant of period of price of
share options share options ~ share options*
BRE BIRE BRE
Biti B 68 @
HK$ per share
kAT
03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—T-=F —2--ENAZBE
NAZAR “TZ=FNAZH
03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—T-ZF% “E-ZENAZHZE
nA=ZAR —T_=fAAZH
03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—T-=F —2-=ENAZBEZ
nAZ=A “ZZ=FNAZH
03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—E-=F “2--ENAZHR%E
hAZAR “EZ=FNAZH
03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—2-Z=F “F-=FNA=AZE
nAZA “ZZ=FNAZH
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) R AEST 8 (&)
The following table discloses the movements of the TRBEBERAFE H RIFZHEIRLMEAR
outstanding share options granted under the Scheme during 71 2 Bk 2 &) : (48)

the year: (continued)

Number of share options

BREHA
At Lapsed At Date of Exercise Exercise
Name or category 1 April during 31 March grant of period of price of
of participant 2023 the year 2024 share options share options ~ share options*
R-BZ=F RER R-F-RF Bk BRE B
SREREHET mA—-B %% =ZR=t-H REBH T8 fTREE"
HK$ per share
gRAT
Other employees
HifEg
In aggregate 32,200,000 (32,200,000) = 03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
= =% “ZT-ZFENR=BZE
nAZAR —E_=fAAZH
Total 116,200,000  (116,200,000) =
CHI

*  The exercise price of the share options was subject to * BERSHRE Y (T (B 0] [ FE AL AR Sk B ATAIR ¢ 3k
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar RRRRA 2 EAbEPA B il T LA E -

changes in the Company's share capital.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the

public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong
20 June 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIEBETR &

e
EY=x

To the shareholders of
New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 106 to 264,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HHELEEEEERLA

RRETEE ()

Key audit matter

RREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMNETNMEEEARETSER

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receiva

FE W & K R B HY R E RS

bles

As at 31 March 2024, the Group's net loan and
interest receivables amounted to approximately
HK$724,516,000, which represented approximately
36% of the total assets. Provision for impairment
losses on loan and interest receivables under the
expected credit loss (“ECL") model amounted to
approximately HK$16,978,000.
RZEZNF=ZA=+—H  EBEENEKRER
KA B FERKI724,516,00008 7T © 15 B & E K36% °
BREARAGEAEX ((RHERBEXDERX  FHE
W B SRR A SRR E B 18 B 8 4916,978,000/8 7T °

The measurement of ECLs is inherently subjective and
involves significant management judgements and
assumptions regarding the probability of default, loss
given default, historical delinquency ratio of loan and
interest receivables, collateral values and economic
indicators on forward-looking information.
AERHERABARAE LAIEME U RAHE
WERRMEENEE BHNBRX BELHERX
bR - EFEREE ARBRALEBERENAELE
BHEXNERE A& RRE -

We obtained an understanding of the Group's policy
on granting loans to its borrowers and the Group's
credit and impairment assessments including the
related credit control and loan monitoring process. We
evaluated the reasonableness of management's loss
allowance estimates on loan and interest receivables
by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current conditions and forward-
looking information and examining the actual losses
recorded during the current financial year and
assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowances.
We carried out procedures, on a sampling basis, on
the settlement made by borrowers during the year
and their subsequent settlement with reference to the
repayment schedule, and tested the existence and
accuracy for the classification of stages of loan and
interest receivables applied in the ECL model as at
the end of the reporting period. We involved our
internal valuation experts to assist us in reviewing the
valuation methodology and approach adopted by
management in the ECL model. We also considered
the adequacy of disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.
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WL BENIR&
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRETEE (E)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRETSEE RPN ETNAEERRESSEE

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables (continued)
EWE R R R E R ETE (E)
The accounting policies and disclosures are included in | #{fi5t EEEBEMEERIARTFEZTUAL E£HEH
notes 2.4, 3 and 17 to the consolidated financial | & MBEFEHNRER (BEAEANEEZH LER

statements. ERRE)RG TR AMEEBBEEETERERIUE
BRI BELBEHNGAMBREMT24 -3 | KEABHENER (BB IAELEZOHIENER
B17R - M) FFEELEARIERSIREE AR R K AT E

ERELBEERE URBENAMBFEREESFNH
ERBR UAFHEEEARRERERRESDS
FEREOTR M EEEBEHREEEREH
EHEBEREEGHTNAEN - RAREESRX - 2
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ERZ2E BHRMAEREEEERBERERE
AFAEANGEETEZRTA - BHATEZRES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HHELEEEEERLA

RRETEE ()

Key audit matter

RREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMNETNMEEEARETSER

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

REMEN N FEEME

As at 31 March 2024, investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$555,300,000, which represented approximately
27% of the total assets, with the corresponding net
fair value gains recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$10,149,000. The Group engaged
external valuers to perform the valuation for the
investment properties. The valuation process was
inherently subjective, and dependent on a number of
significant unobservable inputs, such as the market
price per square foot, market rent per square foot and
capitalisation rate.

RZEBEZNME=A=+T—H URTEEFENER
B Y X #555,300,0008 7T * HERBEEL27%
THEEEZANERRATEERZFHELD
10,149,000/ 7T - EKXEINEMAEMERE M FHE
TEE-FEBAEAELAIEME YARFET
BERTAIBEGAE B FHFRTISER
FHRRASHEERERNMCEE -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
ERSHBRERKEHN G M BERRME24 3
K14R e

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation experts engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the work
of the valuation experts. In addition, we evaluated the
appropriateness of the work performed by the
valuation experts. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data used
as inputs for the valuation by comparing them to
market data if available, and assessing the relevance of
the major assumptions and methodologies adopted in
the valuation. We also involved our internal valuation
experts to assist us in evaluating the assumptions and
methodologies for the valuation of the investment
properties held by the Group. We also considered the
adequacy of disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

BHMEZE BEEEMZENGEEZERNESN K
RERFEME - it THEBEEZERNIE - tbHN
BTG THEERMETOHIERTSE BB
1535 18 B T 5 BUR (AR BAS ) 1T L BT B e
BERAENRENEBE TEERERNE AR
AEEEPARBNEIERRETEZRGEHE - &K
PITFERFAATNEEERSE BRI
EEEMFARBEMENGERZBRERAE - &K
MMEZRBEEMBRRANKERDEH -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

FHELEEEEERAA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBENRE
HHEREFHRANEESR

BERAEEFHEMENBE - ALERE
EHEREFRANMBEER  ETRERE
MBwELBAIOZBE RS -

BAEGEEMBBRRNBERL NREEME
B BRATRTHZFEMERBERTAER

HYEERE 5 ©

BEEMYSEEMBRENET > HANE
TEMEEMER  EUBRET  ZTEHEM
EHERBEEMBHRRABMETTBE
hRTTRNERFEEREBEREUTFRE
EARBRBUANER - ERHMADHITHT
tF MREMBREMERNTFEERHERR
A BMFEREZEE -EEHhmE - B
BB EMRE -

EERAAVBBRRARENER
BERAIEREABARBEAGHMASHEM
MEBHBRELENRFB(R AR B
BREATREBEEMT ENGES W HRE
VTHERBREEAVBERROBHIFE
BN BRM BN EANERRIL AR
AR HI B & -
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&
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIEBETR &

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

HHELEEEEERLA

EERARAVBBRRARENER
(&)
EREGARMBHRRE . EAFERAE
Al BEREBERBELENRN  YHEERB
ATHREBEEFELEAMNEER URER
SEEERGRER  KRIE BERARERH
B BEREFRIFLELE  HBIEHM
ERENEBERTR-

EZZEEHY BERARNEFEETEE &
SENYHEREBIENEIE -

BREBMB BT REMBRREARN
B
AMMBEBRUEANBREAERRT TS
1 B 7O B B o 88 28 T 28 B0 BA 8 BRI B
BEBRE  YHASERMERNZKKRNE
HE - ROMBERBEEREOBIF AT
E)EBOOKERZBRRMBE - ML
Hh B & - REVEETIARE 0 R A LHER
HEth AT B ERAEBELE -

EERRBEGKRKTOHRE  BTERIRR
BB ERETHER %Eﬁi——E§7k§§ER
SRt 77 7E B 48 BE 3R 3R - 5 AR AT A FR X
ﬁ%%%t’W%A@ﬁ%bﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ\
FER AT RE 2 B AR A M S R (£ A & KRB 15
TR AR R EEORTE - RIA B RO 88 SRR At
ARAREERX -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

Annual Report 2024 F3k
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B BETER &

BB BET RSB RREAEN
BE (&)

ERBERBETEANETEFNBRES R
PEEMTERHE  RIEFTEXERMEE -
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FAARBITEAETFARE LR - A
R FE R A E M ERRE - FAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIEBETR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

HHELEEEEERLA

BB BET RSB RREAEN
B (&)
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FMESEE SHLE BEARFER

HEERAKEKLESTERNKEN
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Chau Suet Fung, Dilys.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

20 June 2024
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HHELEEEEERLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

ZFeEEE
Year ended 31 March 2024

HE-_ZT-_NEF-_A=+—HIFE

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REVENUE

Other income

Administrative and operating expenses

Foreign exchange differences, net

Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary

Fair value gains/(losses) on
investment properties, net

Finance costs

Provision for impairment losses on
loan and interest receivables, net

Provision for impairment losses on
repossessed assets, net

PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Loss for the year from a
discontinued operation

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

HECERY
A

HigA

THREZERAX

EHER FR

Pt /8 2 R U3 S 1 4O B 4R

kEMEZLFEE
W/ (BR) - F8

AR

FE B 5 R A B RO R E
BERE 3R

BEEENRESR
B FE

FRCERBELM
B 0 A i A

FEHER

FEERACERY
EAKER

ERIEREER
RERE—HEKLE
REXBELNEE
HEHB LR K

EEERF(BR)

R A LRSS
AREEEA
R

Notes

o

31

2024 2023
—¥-ME —B-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
88,291 80,068
15,434 7,386
(46,731) (44,104)
(547) 28

- (270)
10,149 (12,292)
(M 4)
(12,405) (2,794)
(25,559) (1,941)
28,631 26,077
(2,943) (9,222)
25,688 16,855
(531) (60,743)
9,834 =
34,991 (43,888)
22,413 (36,866)
12,578 (7,022)
34,991 (43,888)




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FHELEEFTEERQA

Annual Report 2024 F3k

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

ZFeEmE (8)
Year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_ZT-_NMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic
— For profit/(loss) for the year

— For profit/(loss) from
continuing operations

Diluted
— For profit/(loss) for the year

— For profit/(loss) from
continuing operations

Note
B &

RATLBRRE
BEAEGEESR
BA,/ (&E) 12

HEAK
—KREREN,/ (BR)

~REREXBELN
w#,/ (BR)

- AEEEHN/ (BE])

~-RERERBELN
wH,/ (BR)

2024
—E-ME
HK$'000
TAERT

HK0.39 centi& 1l

2023
—E-=%F
HK$'000
FET

HK(0.64) centi&1ll

HK0.29 centi& 1l

HK(0.01) centi& 1l

HK0.39 cent& 1l

HK(0.64) centi& 1l

HK0.29 cent& 1l

HK(0.01) centi& 1l
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HHELEEEEERLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEZEWER

Year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_ZT-_NEF-_A=+—HIFE

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences:
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Reclassification adjustment for a
foreign operation disposed of
during the year

Release of exchange reserve upon
deregistration of a subsidiary

Net other comprehensive income/(loss)
that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in
subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income
that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Change in fair value of an
equity investment designated
at fair value through
other comprehensive income

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EEERF (BE)

Htt2mEKE
(B#])

VA1& B ] g ST
DREBREN
Hip 2 EWR e,
(B8)

PE AR
BERIMEE X
EEWELZER

RAEE B ERI
REEEM

DRRAE

A M B X A RE
By fi% R B 54 £t 5

A1 B A e S T
DEEBRHEWN
Hip 2,
(BR) F8

LA T2 EHN
DEEREW

Hi 2w

55 B A TS
SR 2 i 2
PR IR B ) A T
et

REEHMEE
Wi (B8
R R

rEER2EKE
(B RE

AT AR :
ZN/NIES 2SN
FEIE R R

Note
B 5

31

2024 2023
—E-NEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FiET
34,991 (43,888)
(3,415) 4,393
(9,487) =

= 270

(12,902) 4,663
362 945
(12,540) 5,608
22,451 (38,280)
13,729 (31,557)
8,722 (6,723)
22,451 (38,280)




NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Prepayments and
other receivables
Loan receivables
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Lease receivables

Amounts due from security brokers

Loan and interest receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Repossessed assets

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accruals, other payables and
deposits received

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Due to the intermediate
holding company

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary

Liabilities directly associated
with the assets
classified as held for sale

Total current liabilities
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Notes
B o
kERBEE
W BENEE 13
EE 14
EEARANFEE
FFAHE M2
MR R E 15
FENRIER
H 4th e UK BR X 16
e E X 17
EERIBEE 24
IERBEEBEE
REBEE
= 18
W 78 5 A 42 Y FROE 19
FE W B FR % F) B 17
FENRE - -Eek
H b B Y BR X 16
BEEE 20
BEAFEBERA
BmARERE 21
Al W B 74 18

HERREEEY 22

PEABEGEN
HEEEMEE 10

B A E R

RBEaE
FEETFRIE - HAb et
RAREEBIZE 23
HES®E 13
JE S FE

FE A R R IR R A

A 32(b)
AEEHBATZ
IE4E B AR R

A2 ER 32(d)

HEABEAREFTE
MEEHR
HENEE 10

mEBAEARE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HFEMBIRRAFE
31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

2024 2023
—E-mE T =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH& T FET
113,429 118,900
555,300 547,700
3,347 2,985
445 546
81,904 167,711
2,002 -
756,427 837,842
1,242 357
9,341 27
642,612 655,712
8,757 6,976
80,982 58,133
15,375 =
3,200 =
518,251 456,010
1,279,760 1,177,215
- 66,317
1,279,760 1,243,532
10,425 8,405

- 72

279 1,291
80,000 80,000
24,087 71,823
114,791 161,591
= 21,333
114,791 182,924
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

HFEMBRAFR (48)
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

2024 2023
—E-NF —E=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B ot THE T THET
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,164,969 1,060,608
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERRE
CURRENT LIABILITIES aE 1,921,396 1,898,450
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deposits received B WL & 23 2,620 1,184
Deferred tax liabilities BIETRIBEAE 24 16,851 17,792
Total non-current liabilities EmEB B EETE 19,471 18,976
Net assets BEFRE 1,901,925 1,879,474
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners KRREEAEML
of the Company Ew
Issued capital B ITRR AR 25 14,451 14,451
Reserves 1 27 1,547,425 1,533,696
1,561,876 1,548,147
Non-controlling interests FERER 340,049 331,327
Total equity W 1,901,925 1,879,474
Ng Wee Keat Sio lon Kuan
EEA Rk
Chairman Deputy Chairman

E &IEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GREEREEIR

Year ended 31 March 2024

HE-_ZT-_NMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

Atrbutable to owners of the Company

RLRREARE
Share Share Asset Exchange Nor-
lssted  premium option Contibuted  revaluation  Fairvalue  transltion Merger ~ Retained contrling Totdl
apital - aount feserve suplus fesenie fesene fesene fesene profs Tt inteests equly
& kfi EhE RE  REEE  QVEE Ei aft i 2R it
b E% fif B4 i i i i & &it i 1

BRSO HKSOOD BRSO HKSOD  HKSODD  KSOOD  HKSODD RSO HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSOmO  HKSO
TAn fEn TR TR Thn TER AR AR TR TR TR T

At 1 Aprl 2023
Proft for the year
Other comprefensive income/
(lss) for the yeer:
Eichange diferences on
fransaion of oregn operations
Redessficaton acjustment fo
3 forein operaton disposed of
uring the yer (note 31)
Change infir value of an

14451 354993 5068 162587 4853 2205 2,008 (Tg40) 1079622 1548147 B3 1819474
= = = = = = = = 0413 n413 12578 34991

} ) . - - - B = = (3354) @) (@)

(5690) - -G8 G M)

equiy investment desinated
atfair vale through other

comprehensive ncome - - - - - 362 - - - 362 - 362

Tota comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year (

Transfer ofshare option reseme NEREXIHE
pon fapse of e apions REfEzs
(note 26) (ko) - - (5,068) - - - - - 5068 - - -

= = = = 362 (3046) = 0413 137129 8722 N1

At 31 March 2024 HZ-MEZR=t-A 14451 354,993* S (7174 4853 2567 (038 (640 1007103 1561876 340049 190195

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * WEFEREENGEVBRARFHOEE
HK$1,547,425,000 (2023: HK$1,533,696,000) in the T #1,547,425,0008 L (ZZE = =
consolidated statement of financial position. 1,533,696,000/ JT) °
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HHELEEEEERLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
GFEEREEIR (8)

Year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_ZT-_NEF-_A=+—HIFE

At 1 Aprl 2022
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
forthe year.
Eichenge difrences on
franlgton of foreign operatons
Relase of exchange reseme upon
Geregistaton o a subsidary
Change infir value o an
equiy invesment designated
atfir vlue thiough other
comprehensie incore

Tota comprehiensive income/ oss)
forthe year

Transferof share opfon resenve
upon lapse of share aptions

At31 March 2023

Atbutzbl to owners of the Compény

RRTEEARS
Shere Shere Asset Bichenge

ksted  premium opin  Conbowted  reveuation Fanvale  transafon Merger Retained
apiel account Tesene suplis fesene fesene fesene fesene rofs Tot

& by B B4 ERER  LVER B &k f#
e b B By B ik ik ik il aif
Hk$ 000 Hks00 Hks000 Hks000 HK$000 HK$000 H$000 Hk§000 HK$ 000 Hk$ 000
n T Tin Tin fin Tin T A1 #n n
N-EZZERA-A 1441 354993 5862 162,587 4853 1260 (2.356) (77640 1115694 1579704
TEREE - - - - - - - - (%8 (36966)

TERANRE

- - - - - - 4m - - sm
- - - - - - 162 - - 162
= - = = - % - = - 9%
= 8 - s = % 43 - (%) (1)
- - (1%) - - - - - % -

i 1 14451 354993 5068 162,587 4853 2005 2,008 (17640 1079622

1508147

Non-
conoling
nerests
R
s
Hks 000
T

3050
(10)

191

108

Totdl
quiy
£
£
HkS000
Tin

1917758
(3566)

439

m



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/(loss) before tax:
From continuing operations
From a discontinued operation

Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Dividend income from
equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Depreciation
Fair value losses/(gains) on
equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, net
Fair value losses/(gains) on
investment properties, net
Deficit on revaluation of a cruise ship
Loss on deregistration of
a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Provision for impairment losses
on loan and interest receivables, net
Provision for impairment losses
on repossessed assets, net

Decrease/(increase) in loan and
interest receivables

Decrease/(increase) in lease
receivables and amounts due from
security brokers

Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Decrease/(increase) in equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Increase in accruals, other payables and
deposits received

Increase in repossessed assets

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -
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KeZPeREnE
BHRAEF (BR) :
REBELERES
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KEREZ
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&

A
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KiERkEz A YEE

BR/ (k) - 38

RENZZAVEE
B/ (B&) 8
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k=l NG 6
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BRER FE

BEEERESRRE

FH

EREMEZ
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RIEHFELZ
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10, 31

20
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GZEHRSRER
Year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_ZT-_NMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

2024 2023
= ks -
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRR TR
28,631 26,077
9,303 (60,743)

1 4
(14,982) (6,044)
(185) (5.625)
5,573 12,981
(74) 13,578
(10,149) 12,292
- 35,580

- 270
(9,834) -
12,405 2,794
25,559 1,941
46,248 33,105
86,502 (88,919)
(10,199) 8,458
(1,681) (1352)
(15,301) 66,497
3,976 6,893

(84,906)

(21,882)

113



114

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B E B E R 2 A
Annual Report 2024 £

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Year ended 31 I\/Iarch 2024
HE_Z-_MF=A=1+—HILFE

2024 2023
“E-ME “E-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(i TR FET
Cash generated from operations REXBMELAS 24,639 2,800
Net proceeds from sale of HEREEEN
repossessed assets FBRIBFE 20 36,498 15,166
Interest received EUFIE 14,982 6,044
Interest paid BRI M ©
Hong Kong tax paid, net ENEERE  F8 (9,871) (7,700)
Overseas tax paid BfEIHE (222) (148)
Dividends received from equity investments BERRERATEBTA
at fair value through profit or loss BROREREZRE 185 5,625
Net cash flows from REEBFRG
operating activities Reng#s 66,210 21,783
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHzRERE
Purchases of items of property, BENE - BE
plant and equipment R#EER 13 (102) (7,418)
Subsequent expenditure on RENZEH
an investment property BELH 14 (531) -
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits ROTERZRL/ (E1) (174,551) 31,992
Net proceeds from disposal of HEMBLRRMNMERE
a subsidiary ekl 3 44,632 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) REEBMG/ (FA) 2
investing activities Hemng#s (130,552) 24,574
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ BEEB2 B4 hE
Principal portion of lease payments HENTBENRE TS 53 (72) (134)
Repayment of a loan advanced from a ERASEMBLRZ
non-controlling shareholder of the FHERRR
Group's subsidiary BRZEH 33 (47,736) -
Increase in an amount due to the intermediate  FEff s B IR A R B 2
holding company 2 = 40,000
Net cash flows from/(used in) BETHMG/ (FTA) 2
financing activities Bemngds (47,808) 39,866
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents attributable
to a discontinued operation

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of more than
three months when acquired
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
attributable to a
discontinued operation

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position

RERREEEN
£/ (8) F8

RENZBER
ReSEN

NEEXRDZ YE

RERZBER
REZEY

RERREEENZ
GEAN
RERBITER
BAKREEmSER
Te=MAZ
BEATHER
—HERIEEEXBREN
RERBEFED

GRRTRERAMLH

RERALFED

8B R E i E R

BRE=EAZ

BT HER

W —HEDRERE
FHEERERER
REFED

RABBMRRAM LA
RERRAEFED

Notes

it

22

GZERSRER (&)
Year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_ZT-_NMF=ZA=1+—HILFE

2024 2023
—ECmE “E--F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET
(112,150) 86,223
387,597 301,126
(177) 248
275,270 387,597
90,846 111,127
184,424 276,453
= 17
275,270 387,597
242,981 68,430
= (17)
518,251 456,010
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal activities of the Company comprise
investment holding and securities trading. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries comprise money lending,
property investment, securities trading and cruise ship
charter services. In March 2023, the directors decided to
dispose of Kingston Maritime Limited (“KML"), an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which was
solely engaged in cruise ship charter services. Upon
completion of the disposal on 28 April 2023, the Group

had discontinued its cruise ship charter service business.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century Investment
Pacific Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. New Century Investment Pacific Limited is
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. In the opinion of the directors, Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, which is beneficially and wholly
owned by a discretionary trust, is the ultimate holding

company of the Company.

ADREMER

N EEE AR AR BERRET
MR 2BRRA - ARA 2=
iz i ’*Clarendon House, 2 Church

Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ©

ARAZ FEXBHBRBEREERNE
EE-HNBA TZIE%% W
B MERE BHREENEHEER
B-RZTE_=F=F EFRELEE
APz —HBEEFEZ2ENE QA
Kingston Maritime Limited ([KML]) -+ #%
AEERFHREERE - EHLEFHE
RZZBZ=FMA -+ N\BRKE &
SEERIEEBRBAIRGES -

XA 7] &New Century Investment Pacific
Limited (R R BRE X B S EMAKA L 2 2
al) 2K B 2AAF - New Century
Investment Pacific Limited/5Huang
Group (BVI) Limited (R =B R Z B ST
MM 2 RE) 2EEE2EHBARF

EERA B EH2EETEaNEE
i‘fﬁﬁZHuang Group (BVI) LimitedJ3 7%

RNAZREER AT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Name

=1

ETC Finance Limited
SRFTIBEERAA

Gaintech Investment Limited

MERERRAT

New Century Group HK
Investment Pte. Ltd.

New Century Properties
Investments Limited

MELDERERRLA

Senic Investment Limited

BHBREERAA

Wise Century Investments
Limited
ENEEBRRA

Place of
incorporation/
operations
A
R

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Singapore

IR
Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
ER

Hong Kong
FB

Issued
share capital

BRITRAE

HK$700,000,000
700,000,000/ 7T

HK$2
28T

S$1
17T

HK$2
28T
HK$2
2B

HK$1
17T

All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held

by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected

the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of

the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

RAREEHESR (&)

B 2 ARV E R
ARAREEZMBRARZFBET

Percentage of

equity attributable Principal
to the Group activities
AEBEN
BEzAEAL TEXK
2024 2023

—EoNE —E-=F

60 60 Money lending
&

100 100  Property investment
NERE

100 100 Property investment
ES S

100 100  Property investment
ES 8

100 100  Property investment
NERE

100 100  Property investment

ES &

ANERMBTENRBRARHAARREE
SR

ERAIIZARARIMBERARIESZRR
HBAKRBARFEXREAERTEIEXR
SEFEETELD BEFRR - W5
HEMKBRBZFT  RIESBNIT
Eo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss and an equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income which have been
measured at fair value. Disposal group held for sale is
stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell as further explained in note 2.4.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2024. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability

to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the

date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

2.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as

an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the exchange
fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in
profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or

liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial

statements.

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Insurance Contracts

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

International Tax Reform - Pillar
Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 12

HHELEEEEERLA

2.2

EETECR (&)

fim S EL % ()

A EE(E)

WMREFERIGRER LAt iR 6 =
ALEF-HXZEAZ  AAKHEHE
EHMAGERTIDAESRRET - i
—RNBARZEAEESLIREFHM
WEEBREERE - IBRZEIR
RIEDRS °

MRAEERET HHEB R R AT
B BRIEREHEE (BEBEE) -
BE  EFIEERED RELFEE X
ERTARERENAFEENRERD
MELZEARRLEM - NEB LA
ERNEMEmEEBREY BEE
EM DB ARD  JRERN  EE
B EAEEERNEEHEERARE
P& E&EMER -

EXERBERKE
AEEERAFENMBEHRERAE XK
RIATEH SET MG EFTNER BT RS
ZH| -

BRMBREENE TR REEH

BEEHENR IR BAHRNRE

BAMBREER

EBRES2RZEFT

BAGMENF R B BHAEE

&3]

BREMENF IR RE-XFELH

5] EEHNREFBH
ELHE

BREMENR IR HEHEXE-

5] FXHEARA



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised

HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described

below:

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather
than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosures. The Group has
disclosed the material accounting policy information
The

amendments did not have any impact on the

in note 2 to the financial statements.

measurement, recognition or presentation of any

items in the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies. Accounting estimates
are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. Since the Group's
approach and policy align with the amendments, the
amendments had no impact on the Group's financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

©

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable
profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments had no material
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements
better understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two
income taxes, including the disclosure of current tax
related to Pillar Two income taxes separately in the
periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective and
the disclosure of known or reasonably estimable
information of their exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted
or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The
Group has applied the amendments retrospectively.
Since the Group did not fall within the scope of the
Pillar Two model rules, the amendments did not
have any impact to the Group.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements. The Group intends to apply these
revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become
effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21

an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback!

Classification of Liabiltties as Current or
Non-current (the "2020
Amendments")"¢

Non-current Liabiltties with Covenants
(the "2022 Amendments")"*

Supplier Finance Arrangements'

Lack of Exchangeability?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no

change in conclusion
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31 March 2024
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described

below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
was removed by the HKICPA. However, the amendments

are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in
a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that
relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 April 2019). Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's

financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that
only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is itself
accounted for as an equity instrument would the terms of
a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with
which an entity must comply on or before the reporting
date affect the classification of that liability as current or
non-current. Additional disclosures are required for non-
current liabilities that are subject to the entity complying
with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments shall be applied
retrospectively with early application permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice
versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The
disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended
to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an
entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.
Earlier application of the amendments is permitted. The
amendments provide certain transition reliefs regarding
comparative information, quantitative information as at
the beginning of the annual reporting period and interim
disclosures. The amendments are not expected to have

any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate
at a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking.
The amendments require disclosures of information that
enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier
application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate
component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of
initial application. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial

statements.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in

their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and non-current assets/a
disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of

cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

@) the entity and the Group are members of the

Same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of

the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or

fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iiiy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of

the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity;
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies: (continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of

the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of

which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or

valuation less accumulated depreciation and any

impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and

equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part

of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not

depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with

HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for

"Disposal group held for sale”. The cost of an item of

property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase

price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the

asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates

them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the values
of property, plant and equipment are dealt with as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the
difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset's original cost. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the
asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a

movement in reserves.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis, with
the exception of motor vehicles which are calculated on
the reducing-balance basis, to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 4%
Leasehold improvements 33'/.%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 15%
Motor vehicles 20%

Cruise ship 7%

Drydocking costs represent major inspection and overhaul
costs and are included in cruise ships and depreciated to
reflect the consumption of benefits, which are to be
replaced or restored by the subsequent drydocking

generally every two to three years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the

year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the

year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property
and/or accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held
as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change in use,
and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”

above.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Disposal group held for sale

Disposal group is classified as held for sale if its carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to
be the case, the disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
disposal group and its sale must be highly probable. All
assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a
disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless
of whether the Group retains a non-controlling interest in

its former subsidiary after the sale.

Assets of a disposal group (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and
fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and
equipment classified as held for sale are not depreciated

or amortised.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the

underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated

useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 23 to 44 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful

life of the asset.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment

occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying

asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of car parking
spaces, office equipment and public space (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not

contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of

its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as

revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the

lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at

fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective

of the business model.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and

measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the

Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified

or impaired.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded
in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value

with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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Annual Report 2024 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.
Material accounting policies (continued) 2.4
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on the equity investments are also
recognised as revenue in profit or loss when the right of

payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of

the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or

loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

+  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

«  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are

integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECLs).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECLs).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers
that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking

into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash

flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in

calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include other payables
and accruals, deposits received, lease liabilities, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company and a
loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the
Group's subsidiary.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities at amortised
cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as

through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally
within three months that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting

short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and

form an integral part of the Group's cash management.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower
of their fair values less costs to sell and the amortised
costs of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, and the related loans and advances
together with the related impairment allowances are
derecognised from the consolidated statement of
financial position. Subsequently, the repossessed assets

are measured at costs less impairment.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is

presented in profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

«  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible

temporary differences; and

« in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

« when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible

temporary differences; and

« in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax

rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or

assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, for which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for

those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

CHELEEEEFEBERAA

EETECR (&)
ERSTEE &)

WA R

EFPEHZHA

BEP A ZWAR B m sk IR a0 12 5 4%
EREEPEER ZoBERRAKE
MR EEmARGIE A EERH
KB

P AN

EANTHRERSAIZLER |
fﬁafﬁi‘%@ﬁ%}f'%%%?ﬁmﬁ}zﬂﬁwﬁﬁ

J/\

REBEMERESHREDRE A ERE

EEHRBRMHLRERE  BEH
A &R B B A N E OB BR S  RET

ERRBBWASEBRAIETIEELEBAWR

A o

EANTRERERD  RATFPEER

BAmaAREASEPRERHBBE —FNEK
B E M By - WA IR R UGR IR A R E 5T
B HEHRBAEAKBEREFEAMNMA
EE%W@%*%$@&%%%E$%
R BANTEEMERDY  REAKE
h#? FAENERMBH = - R
BRANERNBEABHEANBEREE
BRAZOXB MO N BFR - SRBEARM
BHRELERFISHE P EREBIRED
A BRTEPXMNEREREED A
BmXERFZENEBLS—FRER
HENEH  ITEREAREKRD D
TERBIZER -

30|



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms.

Cruise ship charter service income is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Group.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading
are recognised on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses are recognised on changes in

fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Dividend income from equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and

the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest rate method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”). The
cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further details

of which are given in note 26 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

HHELEEEEERLA

BBR (&)

BEESFEE (&)

KR 17 73 E B T35
RARREERENE - XEEHEES (B
REZF)ABAROAERONTRFR
BB < - e 8 12 f AR 75 LA IR B iR
TEH(AREZEZRS]) -HEE
EITURBEE IR G ZEAE - 2%
RELBBHzAFEENE AT EE
MINE G ERMBE B BT EER
BT BEE—SPHBEVBREWNT
26 -

ERBLR /SRR GEERITHOHME
EHEANBZEENIZERAREERR
ML R AREMNER - £ BB
HAl > RERERRER ABELEE
ZRP2ZR2FAX  RREBHSER
MORAGSEEZRESRBE I RET
AHE 2 REMG - EX—HRARNER
s IR EETA - TI BRI H 1) K
RERZ BRI 2B -

EEERBRTENATFEER X1
ERRS G RIEMISR[GN - B8
ERASEHEEREERBARETA
M EWREGBFH—MOFENE
BRIFA R BEME - M RBIGMHFERT
BERFEESRER - 82E) AT
fa] B At o 18 (1B 75 78 A8 B iR 755 2 k)
BRIERBIRM - SER BRI E R
REFBEFRE  KIFERKEFERS
R/HRBIGN - BRIRBSERER
RFX -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are

satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised

immediately.

This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous

paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

FHELEEEEERAA
Annual Report 2024 %%}

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

R EER (&)

EEEBE (H)

LR 17 23 R Ay 1734 ()
HRAREFEFTBRAR LRB
Wi T AR R B B 0 1R - TR R
B o AN R SM B IET IS 1 LI BB
Pt B R T W R TS R IR
B REAMAARRKLRH
HEHBIARR - AR DHRIECHE -

fie LA BSL#E #6555 2 B2 B 2 1R R B FTHE AT
Ffr e 58 B 2 Ak b 7B 2 BB A AR SR SR AE
HERT 2K - I R IR R 1K & B
17 o W5 W B RRIERT S EAR D BE
RONRZERAFEEBMEM  XE
R A REEHREMF S - A B %
FBEFTHERFAX - MARESE 2 BB
W  BRESBUNE REHE AR
JB - (A i R e R 2 SR B R S B B By

7
am °©

ERREANKENES EFEEARNY
THRB IR REEBITH MR - R
i WA B A H R - AR
R BHEE SR ER B FEHE
By N 4R B - Y940 A ER B FE AR AR R R
TRBZEFT

AAEERBNE  MARTEBREZ#
BUEE RR SRR EE -

157



158

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

Annual Report 2024 F3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting

fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. Interim dividends are simultaneously
proposed and declared, because the Company's
memorandum of association and bye-laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or

loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or profit or loss, respectively).
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or

receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange translation reserve, except to the extent that the
differences are attributable to non-controlling interests.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign

operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Income tax

The Group is engaged in the cruise ship charter service
business and accordingly may be subject to income taxes
in different jurisdictions depending on the routes of the
cruise ship and the operations of the relevant companies.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes worldwide, if any. The Group
does not recognise any liability for income tax based on
management’s judgement that the Group is not subject
to income taxes of any of the jurisdictions outside Hong
Kong based on the existing routes of the cruise ship and
the operation of the relevant company. In addition, the
Group has obtained an indemnity letter from the
charterer to confirm that all relevant tax exposures of the

Group's cruise ship would be borne by the charterer.
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31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and a cruise ship

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases and other contracts. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.
In making its judgement, the Group considers the fair
market value by reference to independent valuations.
This conclusion is supported by independent professional
appraisers who were engaged by the Group during the
year to perform valuations on the Group's investment
properties and cruise ship. As at 31 March 2024, the fair
values of investment properties amounted to
approximately HK$555,300,000 (2023: HK$547,700,000),
which were arrived at by reference to quoted second-
hand market prices. As at 31 March 2023, the fair value
of a cruise ship included in assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale amounted to approximately
HK$66,300,000, which was stated by reference to

quoted second-hand market prices (note 10).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The gross deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2024 were
HK$9,140,000 (2023: HK$8,473,000). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2024 was
HK$283,936,000 (2023: HK$270,538,000). Further
details are contained in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Provision for impairment losses on loan and
interest receivables

The Group uses judgement in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs to its ECL calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting

period.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customers' actual default in the
future. As at 31 March 2024, provision for impairment
losses on loan and interest receivables amounted to
approximately HK$16,978,000 (2023: HK$4,573,000).
The information about the ECLs on the Group's loan and
interest receivables is disclosed in note 17 to the
financial statements.
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, B WEH
For management purposes, the Group is organised into EREERSE  AEBBREEEKEY

business units based on their businesses and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the money lending segment engages in the provision
of mortgage loans and unsecured personal loans;

(b) the property investment segment invests in prime
office space and commercial shops for their rental
income potential; and

(c) the securities trading segment engages in the trading
of marketable securities for short-term investment
purposes.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group's
profit/loss before tax except that bank interest income,
loss on deregistration of a subsidiary, corporate income
as well as corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, tax
recoverable, deferred tax assets and other unallocated
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude a loan advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REIHES (R)
(continued)
Money lending Property investment Securities trading Total
H& NERE 2588 ait

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2003 2024 2003
ZECME C-E--E CBCME CE--E ZECME CEC-E CECPME -Eocf
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000
TEn Tén TEn Tén TEn Tén TEn Tén

Segment revenue ABUA

Revenue from external MxEZ

customers WA 12,744 72491 15,288 15,530 259 (7,953) 88,291 80,068
Intersegment sales APRNHE - - 2520 3071 - - 2520 3071
Other income Bt 238 817 139 pl! 65 4 44 845
Total segment revenue AHRAR

and other income R A% 72982 73,308 17,947 18625 34 (7949) 91,253 83,984
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of fiEABEY

intersegment sales HE (2,520) (3,071)
Total revenue and BEMEXBELN

other income from BAREMBEA

continuing operations a8 88,733 80,913
Segment results AR%E 20,766 54,730 21,644 (389) 315 (1963) 4,125 46,378
Reconclliation: -
Bank interest income FANEHRA 14,982 6,044
Loss on deregistation of a i} e ERalifg

subsidiary B - (270)
Comporate and other PERE

unallocated income RARMA 10 497
Corporate and other BEREH

unallocated expenses KARRX (29086 (26572
Profit before tax from REEEEEELH

continuing operations Gyl 28,631 26077
Segment assets AHEE 811751 886613 557517 548849 24,716 125 1393984 1435587
Reconclfgtion; -
Corporate and other PEREM

unallocated assets KIWEE 642205 579470
Assets related fo & EB-EBHAEE

discontinued operation EBNEE - 66,317

Total assets BELE 2,036,187 2,081,374
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BRESHBER (&)
(continued)
Money lending Property investment Securities trading
id HERE 2588
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
ZE-C@ME -EI-cf ZRoME CF-cF CRoWE CFocE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TR TiEL TER TiET TER TiEn
Segment liabilities AHEfE 6,001 3,469 4,457 3,558 - -
Reconclliation; iE:
Corporate and other rEREM
unallocated liabilftes APRGE
Liabilies related to a BE-RER8E
discontinued operation Ehnak
Total liabiltes afes
Other segment information ~~ £ AH&H
Depreciation Mg W 246 - - - -
Fairvalue losses/(gains)on ~~ REME 2 ATER
investment properties, net BE/ (k%) 38 - - (10149 1229 - =
Fairvalue losses/(gains) o~~~ A F(EEF
equity investments BRNRERE,
at fair value through ATEEER/
profit o loss, net (z)  ¥8 - - - - (4 13578
Provision for impaiment losses A& 21 F & A
on loan and interest HEEE
receivables, net B 58 12405 2,79 - - - -
Provision for impaiment losses ~ HEAEHEEEE
on repossessed assets, net BE 5 25,559 1,941 = - -
Capial expenditure® LySing 28 46 531 - - -

*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to office
equipment and investment properties.

Total

i

2024
k- a1 1:3
HK$'000
TiEn

10,458

123,804

134,262

247

(10,149)

(14

12,405

25,559
559

2023
“EI-E
HK$'000
ThEn

7027

173,540

21333

201,900

246

12292

13,578

2,79

1941

*OBARHBERLAERBERREY X
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4., OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers and other

Annual Report 2024 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

N

gesBER (&)

A

(@) SNRESZMALE A

income
2024 2023
—E-NFE —E =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Hong Kong i 86,120 78,640
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong R (PEEES) 2,613 2,273
Total revenue and other income WA R E YA LB 88,733 80,913

The revenue and other income information of
continuing operations above is based on the

locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

LR EEE XA RE AU
ABRARPEREAER -

(b) FEBEE

2024 2023

—E-mF —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Hong Kong B 553,878 657,857
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong RED(TREES) 197,200 177,000
Total non-current assets IERBEELTE 751,078 834,857

The non-current asset information from continuing
operations above is based on the locations of the
assets and excludes an equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income

and deferred tax assets.

PRBBEREXRBHIERDEEER
HIABEMREREAER LT 6
BEEREATEESARGEZE
W E B IAEE °
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WARHEMBEA
Revenue represents interest income from mortgage loans WAAREERBEERRBEERLAE
and unsecured personal loans, gross rental income from HEOFBWA - REMEZHSBALR
investment properties, fair value gains/losses on equity BHEATFEEFABGNRERE 2
investments at fair value through profit or loss and NEEERE BB UREATEE
dividend income from equity investments at fair value STABZRRERE ZRBIA -

through profit or loss during the year.

An analysis of revenue and other income from continuing

operations is as follows:

Revenue N

Interest income from mortgage loans 1218 B R & K R
and unsecured personal loans FLABEREFE A

Gross rental income from KREWMEZHE
investment properties WA 4258

Fair value gains/(losses) on BAFEETAERA
equity investments at fair value RHERE 2 A TFEE
through profit or loss, net Wz, (E518) - F8

Dividend income from equity investments 1% A F @ Ext A B R
at fair value through profit or loss IR E 2 IR B WA

Total revenue NG

Other income H g A

Bank interest income RATH B WA

Government grants (Note) BT w8 B (B &%)

Others Hh,

Total other income H A A 4258

Note: The balance represented subsidies from the Government

of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under
the Employment Support Scheme and the Technology
Voucher Programme. There were no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies attaching to these
government grants that had been recognised by the

Group.

SEEEEBELENRAREMBKRAZ

DT
2024 2023
—E-mEF  —

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi FHT

72,744 72,491

15,288 15,530
74 (13,578)

185 5,625

88,291 80,068

14,982 6,044

_ 1,271

452 /1

15,434 7,386

ME: BB RMEFE R AFFET

W ER & B 45 Bl 1T B R IR A 2 # BY ©
ZEBRR AL ENEEEREE
REORBITIRIFREMBEIEER -
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax from continuing operations

is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation e

Auditor's remuneration: ZEE S -
Audit services % BBk %5
Non-audit services I BR
Total a5t

Employee benefit expense & 818 M B <
(including directors’ (B EM 8z
remuneration in note 8): BEEME) :
Salaries and allowances e KRR
Pension scheme contributions* RIKE 5t 8 F0*
Total &&h

Lease payments not included TEEEHE
in the measurement of BfEFTEN
lease liabilities THE R

Foreign exchange differences, net [E X =% - JF 58

Loss on deregistration of (P=NCIR S € Eaaiiin:y)
a subsidiary &8

Direct operating expenses BREIR B E 2
(including repairs and 1 & i 2 £ 5
maintenance) arising from BEELERX
rental-earning investment (BFE#E
properties MRE)

Fair value losses/(gains) on REMEZ ANFEE
investment properties, net BE (ka=)  FE

Provision for impairment losses on & & 7 & &I S B R (B
loan and interest receivables, net iR - F5E

Provision for impairment losses on 1 f& & £ H) )6 (5 &5 18
repossessed assets, net BE - HE

& There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of

contributions.

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

B B¢ A 2% 7
AEEFELEXBORB AR N E
B (GEA)

2024 2023

—ENEF —E-=F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FH T FET
13 5,573 5,897
1,900 1,850

470 438

2,370 2,288

21,629 19,968

1,034 736

22,663 20,704

13(c) 504 541
547 (28)

= 270

3,334 3,093

14 (10,149) 12,292
17 12,405 2,794
20 25,559 1,941

Y EAEEEREIANAHANER
RUE R - DUBE IR B B TR -
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B F5 3R R B
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is

7. BMERK

as follows:
2024
—E-mE
HK$'000
THET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFE 1

8. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ remuneration

SEREEBELNRERADNNAT :

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
T T

8. EERINESHEENE

() EEM=

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed REEEBHAERZIMERAR (SR

pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2

of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Eees

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind
Discretionary bonuses
Pension scheme contributions

Subtotal

Total

BEZ]) FHF EMBR(TET
WAL - BBLRABKBO)E
383(1)(a) * (b) * (o) R(DHEMU K&
(PRI (KBESEMREHR) RO
EOHWENANFEZTEMEUT :

2024 2023

—E-NF —EZ=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET T T

W 575 450

Habii < :

e 2R

EYF = 8,412 7,364

BB IEAL 1,245 1,289

RIRE T B X 484 400

/NEE 10,141 9,053

AFF 10,716 9,503
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8. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

0,

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok o SR B 5 A
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth B RR iR St A
Mr. Ho Yau Ming Al REAKE
Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung mEERE
Total A&k

There were no other emoluments payable to
the independent non-executive directors during
the year (2023: Nil).

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

EERIUESHFEEME (F)

() ESM = (&)
() BUIHFHTEE
RAFESNTELIFERNT

EFzHEESNMT
2024 2023
—E-MF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
150 150
150 150
150 150
125 =
575 450
RAFEE - WEEMNBEIIEDN
NTEBZEMME (==

FE) o
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B ¥5 R R M 5E
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERANESHFEEMS (&)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EEM < (&)
(i) Executive directors () #BiITEF
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
F& 28 Biké

REMAZ BERA BERE MemsE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FTET FTET FTET
2024 —E_mF
Executive directors: HITESE:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat HEHEE 1,879 277 108 2,264

Ms. Sio lon Kuan ERHEzL 1,927 289 111 2,327

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda ®HEBE L 1,166 178 67 1,411

Ms. Lilian Ng BENERL 1,050 150 60 1,260

Ms. Chen Ka Chee Ri& B+ 896 140 52 1,088

Mr. Yu Wai Man RENLE 1,114 178 65 1,357

Ms. Huang Si Teng* BnFR L 380 33 21 434

Total =X 8,412 1,245 484 10,141
2023 =%
Executive directors: HITES:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat HEREE 1,552 175 86 1,813

Ms. Sio lon Kuan EEETLT 1,600 186 89 1,875

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda HBEBZ T 971 117 54 1,142

Ms. Lilian Ng BARERT 862 91 48 1,001

Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRAR B £ 861 104 47 1,012

Mr. Yu Wai Man RENEE 1,518 616 76 2,210

Total BT 7,364 1,289 400 9,053

*  Ms. Huang Si Teng was appointed as an R —_FE_=FxA—H =

executive director of the Company on 1 June FEXLTEEZEARLRAA

2023. HITES -
There was no arrangement under which a RAFE  WESMESEL
director waived or agreed to waive any MEXREREEAME <

remuneration during the year. ZHk o
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DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees during the year
included five (2023: five) executive directors, details
of whose remuneration are disclosed in note 8(a)

above.

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2023: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for
one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2023: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2023:
8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at
16.5% (2023: 16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

operates.

Current — Hong Kong B8R — &
Charge for the year REEER
Current — Elsewhere BN AR — E fth 3th (=
Charge for the year REEER
Overprovision in prior years BEFEEERE
Deferred (note 24) FEFEFIE (M 5E24)

Total tax charge for the year from

continuing operations

MR & AR

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

EERIUESHFEEME (F)

(b) TEEHEEHS
RAFE  AfukesHEERRER
f

fﬁ(:%:zir VRTEE -
HES 2 #E R L X8R
W -

Frig®

RAFE BENSHIREEEESE

ZIhETERBE M IZ165% (2T ==
F:16.5%) 2 B EEE HEREFNG
MAAG  AEE-KWBRABAEE
% E S - Z M B A & &2,000,000% JT
—ZF = = : 2,000,000/ 7T) & E R
Bt M 45 128.25% (ZF =4 : 8.25%)
BB A A ER AR &R A Bl IR
16.5% (ZZT Z =4 : 16.5%) AT K&K
B o Efthith @ 2 fE AR B E R B IR TR ]
REBEBAERZEBER 2RITHE
HE -

2024 2023
—ENF —E_=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT THT
5,606 8,799

280 219

= (19)

(2,943) 223
2,943 9,222
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit

before tax at the statutory tax rates for the jurisdictions in

which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates,

HHELEEEEERLA

9. FrE®H (&)

RARNRBRERNBOMHE QR E

ZANRE R ZREMR R R ZRBA
BAGER 2 AR BIRERRERE
ZRIAR X Z 0K - DA N A AR R (BT

and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the FEEMER)HEEBRMRER 2HERIOT ¢
statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as
follows:
2024
—EZOF
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
BA Hitist B CH
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THEL THEL TAT
Profit before tax from BRERERELN
continuing operations B AT A 3,168 25,463 28,631
Profit before tax from a —HERLEEEE
discontinued operation EERRTAEN 9,303 - 9,303
Total At 12,471 25,463 37,934
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREATLHE 2,058 165 4,329 170 6,387 16.8
Lower tax rates enacted by BT L
local authority REH= (165) (13) (101) (0.4) (266) (0.7)
Income not subject to tax BRRZHA (4,299) (34.5) (3,958) (15.5) (8,257) (21.7)
Expenses not deductible for tax NI 1% 2 B % 2,707 217 - - 2,707 7.1
Tax losses not recognised RERRBER 2210 17.7 = = 2210 5.8
Others g ) 152 13 10 0.0 162 05
Tax charge at the Group's RASEERKX
effective rate AREZHEER 2,663 214 280 1.1 2,943 78
Tax charge from continuing RERREHE
operations at the BELZ£E
effective tax rate EENBAER 2,663 84.1 280 1.1 2,943 10.3
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INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory tax rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates,

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

9. FiE® (&)
RAARTREABD N BA T
2 Ak EEIE 2R B R E 2 BB
BIRER 2 BRI E R
ZRBIBRIE 2 W - AR B A B (8]

and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the EEME) HERRE 2HEROT : (&)
statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as
follows: (continued)
2023
—E=F
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
BB EfhinE ait
HK$'000 % HK$'000 Y% HK$'000 %
TR TR TR
Profit before tax from FEREEBELEN
continuing operations BREiADE 16,261 9816 26,077
Loss before tax from a —BERIBEXK
discontinued operation EENBTAER (60,743) - (60,743)
Total &t (44,482) 9,816 (34,666)
Tax at the statutory tax rate WEEREA B2 HE (7,340) 16.5 1,669 170 (5,671) 16.4
Lower tax rates enacted by BT VA
local authority REH= (165) 0.4 (101) (1.0) (266) 08
Adjustments in respect of HBTHEZ
current tax of previous HETIA
periods R - - (19) (0.2) (19) 0.1
Income not subject to tax BRR LA (2,803) 6.3 (1361) (13.9) (4,164) 120
Expenses not deductible for tax ~ R A[#17% 2 14,209 (31.9) - - 14,209 (41.0)
Tax losses not recognised AERNBER 4,339 (9.8) - - 4339 (12.5)
Others it 782 (1.8) 12 0.1 794 24
Tax charge at the Group's BASEERHRE
effective rate FAEZHEER 9,022 (203) 200 20 9,222 (26.6)
Tax charge from continuing RERBEHEL
operations at the REREXN
effective tax rate ELMBERR 9,022 55.5 200 20 9,222 354
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

10.

In March 2023, the directors decided to cease its cruise
ship charter service business and dispose of KML, an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
which was solely engaged in cruise ship charter services.
Upon completion of the disposal of KML on 28 April
2023, the Group had discontinued its cruise ship charter
March 2023, KML was
classified as a disposal group held for sale and the cruise

service business. As at 31

ship charter service business was classified as a
discontinued operation (the “Discontinued Operation”)
and was no longer included as an operating segment in
the prior year.

The results of the Discontinued Operation for the year

are presented below:

Revenue WA
Cost of services provided P 1R AR 75 X AR
Gross profit EX
Administrative and operating expenses 1T & A& & 5 &2
Foreign exchange differences, net PEH =% 558
Deficit on revaluation of a cruise ship B iy 2 B ik B Al

Loss for the year from the

REF-HERIKE

Discontinued Operation E(BEENER
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary SR B A A8 W=
(note 31) (FMt3E31)
Attributable to: AT AT :
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZZS N
Non-controlling interest FEERR B

ERIEREER

RZEZ=F=-H EFESFSRAERILER
WHHERGEY  YHEARAZ—M
MEIE2EMBRTKML  Z A aER
FHWMEERS - EKMLZ HESFER
TECFWMAZFNBEKE A&
EEREEBHREEREEL R _F
Z=F=R=+—H KMLEDEAEEF
ERENLESE MR EAFE B
HERBEBE A —HERIELE
¥ (IERIEKEEER] - BEAHE

EA 43 AK LN 37
RagEnEL o

REE  BRIEKEEBHEE RN
N

2024 2023
—ENE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
705 2,746

= (7,084)

705 (4,338)
(1,236) (20,824)
= Q)

= (35,580)
(531) (60,743)
9,834 -
9,303 (60,743)
5,442 (36,446)
3,861 (24,297)
9,303 (60,743)
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

As at 31 March 2023, amounts recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
relating to a disposal group classified as held for sale
included in exchange translation reserve of
HK$5,784,000 and non-controlling interests of
HK$3,855,000, respectively.

The assets and liabilities of the Discontinued Operation

classified as held for sale as at 31 March are as follows:

Annual Report 2024 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

10. BRI EE XK (8)

RZZEZ=F=A=+—8 "  REM:
HWmmRkZ2EERT  BOoHEAR

7 & B9 HH & 5 B A 7 1O B 3 1 48 I 3
IR &= 8 & 88 5 5l /5,784,000 7T
13,855,000/ 7T °

R=ZA=1T—B ' 2BERFEAEFENE
RIEBEXBOHEERBENOT :

2024 2023
—EBEomE —ET-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment M BENEE - 66,300
Cash at bank RITIRE = 17
Assets classified as held for sale NDEABEEGFENEE - 66,317
Liabilities EBE
Accruals and other payables & 5T 3R & E At FE 1< BR 3R
(Note) (B &E) - (14,253)
Deposit received BlkizS = (7,080)
Liabilities directly associated with the HEAYMAERESFENEE
assets classified as held for sale HEHENARE - (APEEE))
Net assets directly associated with the B EEEHEZERD
disposal group BE T = 44,984

Note: Included in accruals and other payables as at 31 March
2023 was an amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, New Century
Cruise Line International Limited, of HK$7,598,000.

Mizt: RZB-=F=A=+—HZE:
RIE R H A E A R RE BB AR
SEWME AR ZEZERRKRRNew
Century Cruise Line International
Limited &) 5 787,598,000/ 7t °
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

11.

The net cash flows incurred by the Discontinued
Operation are as follows:

Operating activities KREERE
Investing activities KREZE
Financing activities BMEEH

Net cash outflow WE& R Fa

FaN(BE)
EAX KABRILE

Earnings/(loss) per share:
Basic, from the Discontinued

Operation ST
Diluted, from the Discontinued g REERLE
Operation REEB

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share from the Discontinued Operation are based on:

Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary AN EBIRREZE A

equity holders of the Company FBEREERILKE
from the Discontinued Operation EBHEF (EEB)

Number of ordinary shares in issue RAFERFEGRER
during the year used in the basic B/ (B8)RER
earnings/(loss) per share calculaton 2 B#{TE@BREE
(note 12) (BigzE12)

Number of ordinary shares in issue RAFEEAEGREE
during the year used in the diluted BH,/ (B8 EER
earnings/(loss) per share calculation 2B #/TEBIE A
(note 12) (PHEE12)

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

HHELEEEEERLA

10. BRI BB EK (])

ERIIEEXEBEENRSREFBAN

HKO0.09 centi# 1l

HKO0.09 centi#& 1l

T
2024 2023
—EYEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FABT
(23) 7,371
= (7,366)
= (90)
(23) (85)
2024 2023
—ENF —E-=F

HK(0.63) centi& 1l

HK(0.63) centi# 1l

REDRIHEEEHOSRER R
B (B8) DA T SEHE -

2024
o 3

HK$5,442,0003% T

5,780,368,705

5,780,368,705

- HQJ%—I\

HK$(36,446,000)75 7T

5,780,368,705

5,780,368,705

EETESINEBEE_T _MF=FH
St HALEFERNEMBRE (ZF

—=FE|E) o
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company,
and the number of ordinary shares of 5,780,368,705
(2023: 5,780,368,705) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/
(loss) per share amounts presented for the years ended
31 March 2024 and 2023 in respect of a dilution as the
impact of the share options outstanding had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts presented.

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share is

Annual Report 2024 F3k
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A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

12 ARAEBERRESFEAEMN

BRER (&H8)
BREARFN(EHE) SBEHERARQ
AL ARRERE ABEARFE SR,
(BE)ERAFEERT LT EREE
5,780,368,705 (=ZF = = % :
5,780,368,7050%) 5T & -

HE_Z_NFR_ZT_=%=H
=T —HIEFE  WEBEEEH RN
BREARRF(EE) SEELFHE -
JRE R & RITE 2 BREEHRO TR
EREFR/(BR) SEEETREE

FREXRRN, (BHR) HEA TSR

based on: TE
2024 2023
—E-mEg —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Earnings/(loss) 2R, (EE)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary AEEREREFN
equity holders of the Company, (BB REAZARF
used in the basic earnings/(loss) LBk ERE ARG
per share calculation: wm A (ER)
From continuing operations REFHEREER 16,971 (420)
From the Discontinued Operation RKE—HBERIEEEER 5,442 (36,446)
Total Bt 22,413 (36,866)
2024 2023
—EEF —E-=F
Shares Bz 15
Number of ordinary shares in issue RAFEFEERER
during the year, used in the basic AR (BE) &R
earnings/(loss) per share calculation ZBEBETERIREE 5,780,368,705 5,780,368,705
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M ¥ RMsE

31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13. ¥ BERXEBURBEESE RS

LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets Owned assets
EREEE EEHER
Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land Buildings Total Buildings  improvements  equipment vehicles Total Total
BENE  GR-%E
AELH 8% At 5 %6 e bt ait it
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
TEn T TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TR T
31 March 2024 k-l 1.3
ZA=t-H
At 1 Aprl 2023: i S
mA-R:
Cost B 138,343 358 138,701 10875 5,443 4,548 2125 2% 161,692
Accumulated 2K
depreciation i (28378) (289) (28,667) (3317) (5.443) (3870 (1,495) (14,125) (42,792)
Net canying amount BEFE 109,965 69 110,034 7558 - 678 630 8,866 118900
At 1 Apil 2023, it St
net of accumulated RA-B fk
depreciation 2RNELAE 109,965 69 110,034 7558 - 678 630 8,866 118,900
Additons RE - - - - - 102 - 102 102
Depreciation provided ~~ RAFREZ
during the year nekR (4,645) (69) (@na) (339) - (397) (1) (859) (5,573)
At 31 March 2024, e
net of accumulated =t-H 4k
depreciation 2RNELAE 105,320 - 105,320 7203 - 383 503 8109 113,429
At 31 March 2024; RZZ-RE
== ¢
Cost KA 138,343 - 138,343 10875 5,443 4,650 2125 23,003 161,436
Accumulated 2K
depreciation il (33,023) - (33,023) (3,652) (5,443) (4,267) (1,622) (14,984) (48,007)

Net canying amount RESE 105,320 - 105,320 123 - 383 503 8109 113,429
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A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13.ME - -BEERREBURBES R

LIABILITIES (continued) (%)
Right-of-use assets Owned assets
pRELE fEnEE
Fumniture,
Leasehold Leasehold fixtures and Motor Cruise
[and Buildings Total Buidings  improvements  equipment vehicles ship Total Total
HENE G 2E
BELH g7 i B 3 Rkl it a4 ait ajt

HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TEn TER Thn TEn TER TER Thn TEn TER

31 March 2023 “EoCE

Zf=1-4
At 1 Aprl 2022: RZFZZ%

mA-R:
Cost or valuation KA E 138343 547 138890 10875 5,443 4498 2125 100,620 123,561 262451
Accumulzted 2k
depreciation fE (23,733) (344) (4077 (2,982) (5214) (3,476) (1337) = (13009)  (37,086)
Netcaryingamount B 114610 203 114813 7893 29 1022 768 100,620 110,552 205,365
At 1 Apil 2022, i S
net of accumulated BA-B Nk
depreciation ZENELTE 114610 203 114813 7893 29 102 788 100,620 110,552 205,365
Addiions HE - - - - - 5 - 7366 7418 7418

Defict on revaluation B f5 54 - - - - - - - (35580)  (35580)  (35580)
Depreciation provided ~ WAEE 2

during the year ERR (4,649) (134) (4779) (335) (229) (39) (158) (7,084) (8202)  (12,981)
Rsset reclassiied as assets EHAELER

of a disposal group ARBREREN

dassiied as held for el HEEEMEE

(note 10) (Rzi0) - - - - - - - (66300)  (66300) (66300
Bichange realignment B3 3% = = = = - - - 978 978 978

At31 March 2023, RZE-=%Z5
net of accumulated =t-R 1k
depreciation ZEMEZFE 10995 69 110034 7558 - 678 630 - 8866 118900

At 31 March 2023; RZE-=F

p=t-8:
Cost or valuation WA R 138,343 358 138,701 10875 5443 4548 2125 - 22991 161,692
Accurnulated 2k
depreciaon % (28378) (08) (867 (3T (5M3)  (810)  (14%9) - n) @)

Net carrying amount REA% 109,965 69 110,034 7558 = 678 630 B 8,866 118,900
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13. ¥ BERXEBURBEESE RS

LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

(i) The Group's right of use of leasehold land represents
prepaid lease payments. The leasehold land, together with
the owned buildings, is held for own use. The leasehold
land is held on medium-term leases expiring between May
2037 and December 2055.

(i) The Group leases properties used in its operations. Leases
for these assets are negotiated for terms ranging from two
to three years with no extension or termination options and

all the lease payments are fixed.

At 31 March 2024, the land and buildings in Hong Kong
with a net carrying value of HK$108,681,000 (2023:
HK$113,378,000) were pledged to secure a banking
facility granted to the Group (note 29).

In March 2023, the cruise ship with a carrying amount of
HK$66,300,000 was reclassified as assets of a disposal
group classified as held for sale in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The cruise ship charter
service business was classified as a discontinued
operation. Further details are included in note 10 to the
financial statements.

During the year, depreciation expenses of HK$5,573,000
(2023: HK$5,897,000) were charged to profit or loss
from continuing operations. In the prior year, a
depreciation expense of HK$7,084,000 was charged to
profit or loss from a discontinued operation.

In the prior year, the Group's cruise ship included in
assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale was
revalued on 31 March 2023 by HG Appraisal &
Consulting Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer, on an open market basis. A revaluation
deficit of HK$35,580,000 resulting from the above
valuation was charged to profit or loss from a
discontinued operation in the prior year (note 10).

()
B i

() A&EEHEE+tHwFERREABEMNAE
NHRE-HELHBERAEGNET A
BEAR - ET IRTHAEEREE
EHRZZE=+tHFRAE=-ZREF
TZRZEER -

(i A&EHERMEELLERER &
SEERERENHEHERNAME=F
THEERNKRILEEE FEREERN
REH REE °

RZE-_WMF=ZA=+—8 " KEZFE
£108,681,0008 T (=& = = F :
113,378,000 7T) 2 B8 L i R EF
EEER  URBAEEEE ZRI1TH
& (FzE29) °

R_E-_=ZF=ZA EEEHTHEAE
66,300,000 JT B I & 7E 47 & B T AR
RABH OB RVEABERENHE
EENEE BRHAERBEBKEHHE
RIEORIEEEE - BHEE— P&
BEHNI B IREMET10R o

MRAEE 55730008 L (Z T ==
4 : 5,897,000 L) (T ER X NIFE
KEEBWBZANR -REFE
7,084,000 THHIHER I N —HE K
I E BB AR -

REFE  ~&E a%&"*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
ENLHESEENEENTRN
i:ﬂ:wt—aaaﬁ%i;ﬁr%éé%fa@
R ET A RBERARARBREBEART
BETEMB REFE  FlBEELE
2 B E 4t 535,580,000 JT B 1 —E
ERIEEEEBHIBZ NN (M
10) °
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's cruise ship:

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

13. ¥ -BERZREURBESS

(&)

DFEEERX
TRETAEEBHO A FEEFERE

.
IN -

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZA=+—BRTEEHERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E B EyNE| EV Ny
TIHRE BREAE ERBAE
(B—ERX) (5-ER) (B=Ek) Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FHT FHT
Non-recurring fair value FRBEUEDT
measurement for: BE:dE:
2023 “T-=F
Cruise ship included in BRESEARRKA
assets of a disposal group HEMHESE
classified as held for sale HEERNH R - - 66,300 66,300

183



184

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B E B E R 2 A

Annual Report 2024 F3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 3R R B
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2023: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

13. ¥ -BERXREURBEESS

(#)

AT EEER ()

RAFE BEEE—BARE-BR
PAGEE DS 3 2 e DN YN B
AFEEHE(ZT_=F  8)

DERAFEERBRRANE=ZE RO
EBEFENHEK:

Cruise ship

B

2023

—E-=fF

HK$'000

FHET

Carrying amount at beginning of year REVINRE TR 100,620

Addition NE 7,366

Depreciation provided during the year RAEE 2 T E#E (7,084)

Deficit on revaluation = b &4l (35,580)
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group BB ROIERFEER

classified as held for sale FENLEEENEE (66,300)

Exchange realignment bEE 5 58 B 978

Carrying amount as at 31 March R=EA=+—HBRNERELHE =
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques

used and the key inputs to the valuation of a cruise ship:

Valuation techniques

(AR

Cruise ship Market data or comparative sales approach

& MSBRBE XA LR E A

Cost approach
A%

The market data or comparative sales approach considers
prices recently paid for similar assets, with adjustments
made to the indicated market prices to reflect the
condition and utility of the appraised assets relative to
the market comparative. Assets for which there is an
established second-hand market comparable are best

appraised by this approach.

The key input was the market price per unit, where a
significant increase/decrease in the market price would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value

of the cruise ship.

FHELEEEEERAA
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A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

13. ¥ -BERZREURBESS
(&)

N EEEBX (R
PATT A b B & 4 B P 5% A8 B9 fh (B BT &%
TEHAEBNHE

Significant
unobservable inputs Range
EATAHZRAR # &
2023
—EZ=F

Market price per unit US$8,374,300 to
US$10,252,300

8,374,300k L&

BB TIZER

10,252,300% 7T
Remaining useful life 14 years
Rt A5 T

MBI A LBHEEZEBROIRE
UEEMMNOER  YHEENT S
BRELAE  ARBAAHATLEERZT
LHAEEENMRIERE - BERL
AL E 2 — FHIGHEENZ AN

RERAE °

TEBGAERBEMMESER -MHE
BAREN B EEHBRH A FEE
RIEHE 0, o
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13. ¥ BERXEBURBEESE RS

LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The cost approach considers the cost to reproduce or
replace in new condition the assets appraised in
accordance with current market prices for similar assets,
with allowance for accrued depreciation arising from
condition, utility, age, wear and tear, or presence of
obsolescence, taking into consideration past and present

maintenance policy and rebuilding history.

The key inputs were the rate of newness and the market
discount rate, which a significant increase/decrease in the
rate of newness in isolation would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the cruise ship and
a significant increase/decrease in the market discount
rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease/

increase in the fair value of the cruise ship.

In the prior year, had the cruise ship been carried at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, its carrying amount would have been
approximately HK$66,300,000 as at 31 March 2023.

(&)

NFEEEBX(E)
RAEDRBEUEENRTNISE
% HBREGOR - Bg - iRH - FERE
TFHERBE MR RFTINE - WKE
BBENMBAENREBRNBERLRS -
AEEEEENEHMANBELEEN
XA

EE A B AR ERTHI0E 5
HEEBAREN WD RERBHA
FEEAEHD, R - B FTNEE
WA, 8 BB R AT
KB D,/ 0 -

REFE  WZSHHRIEELKARRE
WEKREBEYE AR _=F=
A=+—8 ' HERH % % 466,300,000/%5

JG °
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land
and buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leasehold land with
lease periods of 23 to 44 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land

leases.

Leases of properties generally have lease terms between
two and three years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside

the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use

assets and the movements during the year are as

follows:

As at 1 April 2022 RZEZ_FMA—HR
Depreciation charge mEEZEH

As at 31 March 2023 R-ZE_=F=H=+—H
and 1 April 2023 MN_ZE_=F1H—H
Depreciation charge HEEH

As at 31 March 2024 R=-Z-—_@W&E=HF=+—H

Bt 75 3R R P EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

13. 9% BERKEARBERR
(&)
AEBEREBEA
AEERHEEE EPT%?HE’JTHiiﬁz&E
FEHERFATHEARY - RREHE
# o NEBE LN —BEFHE ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
EMR-_T=2M+HF REZZFL
WA S E IR - BEREN K -
MENHER -—RA/PME=F - — &K
MmE  AEBERMAEELINEEND
HEEEESTEXZIRS -
(a) RIAEEE
RAEE  AEBEREEENK
HeRLBEBAEHNOT :
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
HELH BF Xl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THETT THIT
114,610 203 114,813
(4,645) (134) (4,779)
109,965 69 110,034
(4,645) (69) (4,714)
105,320 = 105,320
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31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follows:

13.

ME -BERRBUREESS
()
A B AER KA ()
(b) HEEE
RAEE BERGNEELER
EEEHNT

Lease liabilities

HE&SE
2024 2023
—E-F —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Carrying amount at REFEIH
beginning of year BRE®RE 72 206
Accretion of interest recognised RARFE R
during the year A 2IE N 1 4
Payments (BN (73) (138)
Carrying amount at 31 March R=ZA=+t—HOEEERE = 72
Analysed into: DR
Current portion ENE D - 72

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed

in note 37 to the financial statements.

HEBENIHBEIMERBHRE
37 A BEE o
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31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

13. ¥ -BERZREURBESS

189

LIABILITIES (continued) (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) rEBEEREHEA (E)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) BLHHE I8z AR A % 8R4
relation to leases are as follows: I
2024 2023
11 2 —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Interest on lease liabilities HEABENTNE 1 4
Depreciation charge of EREEERN
right-of-use assets TEER 4714 4,779
Expense relating to short-term leases HEMHHEEREANMX
(included in administrative and (BREETHR
operating expenses) KERZA) 504 541
Total amount recognised in TE1E8 55 A TR HY
profit or loss PR 5,219 5,324
The Group as a lessor AEBEREHBEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14)
consisting of five commercial properties in Hong Kong
and one commercial property in Singapore under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$15,288,000 (2023: HK$15,530,000), details of

which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

REERBEEHERHGHIREDE
(MzE14) (BEAREBENREEEY
EURMRFMEN—BEEDE) &
H-HERRXR—BRERKBPLPZMRE
© - W E AR & KA 5 k0% E 2
AEHE RNAFE  FEEERNMHE
WA B15,288,0008 L (ZFE =%
15,530,000/ 7T) - B M = & & 0 8 %
WAMFESA ©
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—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13.

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

The Group also leases its cruise ship under an operating

lease arrangement. The terms of the lease require the
charterer to pay a security deposit and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing

market conditions. Charter service income recognised by

the Group during the year was HK$705,000 (2023:
HK$2,746,000), details of which are included in note 10

to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2024 and 2023, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants

are as follows:

Within one year —F R
After one year but within two years —FREMEA
After two years but within three years MERE=FRA

Total A5

ME-BERREUARBEEAE
(%)

AEBEFEREBEA (E)
AEENBELEHERHS L& B
f-HERRERBRAAINRES -
I 48 5E AT AR B8 B B 89 T 35 AR OR TE B SR B
e RAFE AEERIANEER
B A /7050008 T (ZF =% :
2,746,000 7T) B BB EH R M KR
FWEE10A -

RZE-—MFR-T_=F=A=+—
H AEBREBEEBEPIT AT
B A 2 FH & 0 SR 2R EA R FE W /0 SR HT 3R R
ENRENT

2024 2023
—EC-E —ET-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#B T &t
10,973 9,483
6,189 3,258
1,615 1,795
18,777 14,536
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4. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 March 2024, the Group's investment properties
consist of five (2023: five) commercial properties in
Hong Kong and one (2023: one) commercial property in
Singapore. The Group’s investment properties were
revalued on 31 March 2024 based on valuation
performed by Knight Frank Petty Limited and PREMAS
Valuers & Property Consultants Pte. Ltd., independent
professionally qualified valuers, at an aggregate balance
of HK$555,300,000 (2023: HK$547,700,000). Each
year, the Group's executive directors decide to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group's executive directors have discussions with the
valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuations are performed

for interim and annual financial reporting respectively.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are

included in note 13 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not pledge any
investment properties to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group (2023: Nil) (note 29). Further details of the
Group's investment properties are included on pages 267
and 268.
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A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

14. REYME

RZZ-_MNEF=A=+—H  A5£EH
REMEBREAB(ZZE_=%F: 1}E)
EEQE ZEEMER—B(ZE_=

P E)URFNRZIEAEDE R
_7_E¢ A=+—0 Xr&EEHK
BEMEDBBEHBIEEEERGERD
H by Bl & ED 1T A R & Bl RPREMAS
Valuers & Property Consultants Pte. Ltd.

HEITHEEE G S #1E555,300,0008
7t (ZF Z =4 : 547,700,000/ 7T) °
BF AEBRPTEFATZEW—X
HSNEEEMEERKREY XN
B #EEABEMSHE BE B
UMERREEFERKE - KEEHRTT
EFHMEEMD ST R FHBR
EEFETHERIRBERRKRMEE
ERMIR o

RELLZHE REYEHEATE=
77 ARE-FHBERMIERRME
13 ¢

RZZE-_WMFEF=A=+—H ' ~&EEW
EREMREMEER  UBEFEE
EEZBRITMRE(ZZE_=F: &) (M
29) AKEREMEZE—FFE
BN E267K%268F °

191



192

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

Annual Report 2024 F3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥5 R R M 5E
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

HHELEEEEERLA

14. BENE (F)
AT BEBK
TEREAAKEEENEHATEEN

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

Recurring fair value

measurement for:

2024

Commercial properties

2023

Commercial properties

FREIELNT

BEE:

—E-ME
HEME

CE =

BENF

BEX:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZA=+-BRVEEFERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B BAH BAFRA
TERE BRGAE BEBAE
(B—-BRX) (BZBR) (B=ZEBX &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FTERT THET FTAET
= = 555,300 555,300
= = 547,700 547,700

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2023: Nil).

RAEE  BREE—BRREZBK
ZRBMR R EEE= B RBAR S
ATEEHE(CB=F &) -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. BEWE (R)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Addition (from subsequent
expenditure)

Gains/(losses) from fair value
adjustments, net

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 March

DR EERER (&)

EBEAENHE:

DPERAFEBEBRAAZ=BROAF

Commercial properties

[GEZ/ES

2024 2023

—E-NF —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERx FHET

REWERE S 547,700 556,308
NE (RBERE

X ) 531 -
ATEEERAEZ

sk (E518) - B8 10,149 (12,292)

ME H A& (3,080) 3,684

R=ZA=+—HHNEEL%E 555,300 547,700
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024

—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

Income capitalisation

approach method  S¥FRMHHEE
WA E R Capitalisation rate
BR{p =

The direct comparison approach method provides the
market value of an expropriated property by comparing it
to values obtained in the open market of similar
properties. It follows three basic steps in arriving at the
value of the properties, including identifying the highest
and best use of the property; identifying similar
properties that have been previously sold (the
“"Comparable Sales"); and adjusting the value of the

Comparable Sales.

The key input was the market price per square foot,
where a significant increase/decrease in the market price
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair

value of the investment properties.

Market rent per square foot

HK$250 to HK$340
2507 T 340/ T
2.75% to 3.00%
2.75%%3.00%

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. BEWE (1K)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEEREX (&)
Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques AT RREMRHEMRANGER
used and the key inputs to the valuation of investment MEkFERAEBNRE -
properties:
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range
B M EXFTUEERAE g E
2024 2023
—ECQmF —E-=F
Commercial Direct comparison Market price per square foot HK$13,400 to HK$15,000 to
properties approach method ~ &F FRWIHER HK$37,802 HK$21,800
[BEZZES BEERLEA 13,4008 T & 15,000 L=
37,8028 T 21,800/ 7T

HK$260 to HK$350
2604 T 2350/ 7T
2.75% to 3.00%
2.75%%3.00%

ERLBOABBLREAHMSREE
U EEEM R ENTSE
B HEBEWEEBEERKBE=EAZEX
T BREANENEARKERE
BREMEHENBLUME ([FTHLE
HED A LB ENEEEL S

K o

TEHAEBRBFIRMGER - TS
ERAREN R EEBRENER
FEEREBZM D -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

15.

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value determined by the income capitalisation
approach method is the sum of the term value and the
reversionary value by discounting the contracted annual
rent at the capitalisation rate over the existing lease
period; and the sum of the average unit market rent at

the capitalisation rate after the existing lease period.

The key inputs were the market rent per square foot and
the capitalisation rate, where a significant increase/
decrease in the market rent in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties and a significant increase/decrease
in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the

investment properties.

EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE 15.

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Equity investment designated EERRLAFEEFA
at fair value through other Htt2EWEN
comprehensive income RERE

Unlisted equity investment, RAFEEN
at fair value FELHAIEIRE

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the

Group considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group did
not receive any dividend (2023: Nil) from its unlisted

equity investment.

FHELEEEEERAA
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14.

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

BEM=E (&)

ATEERER (E)

A B ARCEREN D FEBERAE
MR A NFHLBBREHEH
FRONMEEREREENAN &
RERERENTHEN TSRS RE
ALt R B M -

TZHAERTFARMBESREXR
% - TI5HE € BB AR M, R
SEFREYERTEEKNELEM A
Do ARE AR R B AIEE R
LEBHBREMEATEERNBRL

21

R

o

=]

EEARATEEFAHME
HEBREHRERE
2024 2023
—E-NFE —E-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFE T BT
3,347 2,985

LRI ED MR MELEE /A
FEEFARGEZERD  RESAE
BERAABRENTEEBRAIE

BE_ZTE_ME=A=1+—HILFE
ARG B I ENE IE T AR R E EE
ARE(ZE_=F : ) °
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 16. ARFE - REREMEWERR
RECEIVABLES

2024 2023
—E-E —EC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET

Prepayments AT 3IE 1,958 2,161
Deposits and other receivables Re M H Mt EUER K 7,244 5,361
Total = 9,202 7,522
Less: Non-current portion W FERENE S (445) (546)
Current portion mENER o 8,757 6,976
Deposits and other receivables mainly represented HeREMEREREZAERERAZ
professional fees paid on behalf of borrowers and interest e FEE R A RRITE BT E WK
receivables for time deposits at banks. Where applicable, FE-ER AEERSHmERHZ
an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting EZREENBELBRCHERBLREE
date by applying a loss rate approach with reference to ETREIN - BRESIELFHE - U
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is J B R AR S B AR 2 AR 7 AR 5 T8RN (48
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of HE) °
future economic conditions, as appropriate.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate FHERANTBENSREE DA BT
to receivables for which there was no recent history of 3T HA S 4 30 R 5RI8 K 480 BA SR TE A0 SR ) FE
default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2024 and WEER - RZE_MER T _=F=

2023, the loss allowances were assessed to be minimal. A=+—H EEBEEHIHEATK-
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Loan and interest receivables EREREFE
Less: Provision for impairment losses

on loan and interest receivables

Loan and interest receivables,
Bk EE
W IERENES S

net of provision

Less: Non-current portion

ogr

Current portion mENE

The Group's loan and interest receivables, which arose
from the money lending business of providing mortgage
loans and unsecured personal loans in Hong Kong, are

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Except for loan and interest receivables of
HK$11,577,000 (2023: HK$14,998,000) as at 31 March
2024, which are unsecured, bear interest and are
repayable with fixed terms agreed with customers, all
loan and interest receivables are secured by collateral
provided by customers, bear interest and are repayable
with fixed terms agreed with the customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the reporting
dates is the carrying value of the loan and interest

receivables mentioned above.

B EUE R R A B
B R B s 1R

e E KA

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

17. ERERRFE

2024 2023
—ENEF —_E-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FAT
741,494 827,996
(16,978) (4,573)
724,516 823,423
(81,904) (167,711)
642,612 655,712

AEENRKERMMETIRENEE
REZIBERNEERLAERZHE
X5 WABTREEELN -

R—_ZE-_WNME=ZA=+—H" K
11,577,0008 L (=ZF = = &F :
14,998,000/ 7T ) B9 FE R & R & A 2 TY
| SR RIREE P E K E 5
BAEEN  FTAERKRER LB H
EFRHMIERMEER 58 RIRE
EFHENETHEANER E5RE
HENEERRGERAR A LREKE
HEFEEREE -
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 17.

The movements in the provision for impairment losses

on loan and interest receivables are as follows:

ERERRFE (&)
EWERENERREEEREZ S
T

2024 2023

—E-mEg —E-=4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

At beginning of year REFH) 4,573 1,779
Provision for impairment losses on loan  JEUR & 3k & | B &9 B B & 18

and interest receivables, net (note 6) B FE (M sEe) 12,405 2,794

At the end of year PSS 16,978 4,573

As at 31 March 2024, loan and interest receivables of
HK$6,622,000 (2023: HK$5,331,000) were past due.
Except for overdue unsecured personal loan and interest
receivables of HK$811,000 (2023: HK$762,000) with no
collateral, the overdue balances of HK$5,811,000 (2023:
HK$4,569,000) were mortgage loans and were related to

a number of third-party customers.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, provision for
impairment losses of HK$12,623,000 (2023:
HK$2,265,000) and a reversal of impairment loss of
HK$218,000 (2023: provision for impairment losses of
HK$529,000) were provided for mortgage loans and

unsecured personal loans respectively.

RZZE-_WMFE=A=+—Q0 " B8z
FEUE 3 % F B R6,622,0008 T (=&
Z =% :5,331,00087T) ° K FEUE K
R ABEREFE811,0008 T (=ZF
Z =4 : 762,000/ 7T) @ HA SN - @ B A
#:5,811,0008 L (=& = = F :
4,569,000 7T) /IEBE R RILTHES
BE=ZTEFPE# -

REBE-T-_MNF=A=+—HL*F
= ’%‘JE‘MﬂE%m&ﬁH%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ)\E
RET IR RL1E & B & $512,623,000% T
— T = =4 :2,265,000% ;t) &R E
B R E218,0008 T (Z T == :
B B 5 18 7 #8529,0007 7T) ©
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A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

17. ERERKRAE (&)
ZNER B R S AR B SRR (B R 1R R

17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment

losses on loan and interest receivables are as follows: gEpn T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B H-BR ESER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TAET FTET FTAET
As at 1 April 2022 RZZE-—FMA—H 815 648 316 1,779
Loan recovered or repaid FREREHEEERN

during the year B (147) - (77) (224)
Transfer to 12-month ECLs BEZT _(EAEEH

not credit-impaired FEREX(RERARAE)

(Stage 1) (F—F&) 175 (175) - -
Transfer to lifetime ECLs BREEEATERES

credit-impaired EREX(EEAME)

(Stage 3) (E=K&) (29) (473) 502 -
Total transfers between stages [l L St 146 (648) 502 =
Impact on year end ECLs F AR i A R B 2

exposures transferred between HER Y FRIED

stages during the year EREANTE (155) 37 2,518 2,400
Movements due to changes in F = SRR E

credit risk B EH 56 - (29) 27
New loans originated REMER 236 - 355 591
As at 31 March 2023 RZE=Z= ¢ A=+—H

and 1 April 2023 kZZE-=FMH—H 951 37 3,585 4,573
Loan recovered or repaid FARER @ FEEERD

during the year =5 (296) - (2,660) (2,956)
Transfer to lifetime ECLs BRERETENRES

not credit-impaired EREX (KMERRE)

(Stage 2) (BZRB&) (73) 73 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECLs BREEAFESRES

credit-impaired ERBAX(EEARME)

(Stage 3) (BE=FEER) (110) (38) 148 -
Total transfers between stages PREY v R R B (183) 35 148 -
Impact on year ended ECLs F R R Bk O R B 2

exposures transferred between E’]Lﬁﬁi”?ﬁ HA

stages during the year ERBXANTE 98 1,080 11,834 13,012
Movements due to changes in BiEERREEM

credit risk B E 159 1,017 917 2,093
New loans originated REFEN 256 = = 256
As at 31 March 2024 R-Z-_ME=A=t+-H 985 2,169 13,824 16,978
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. EREREFE (&)

For loan and interest receivables that are not credit-
impaired and without a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition (“Stage 1"), ECLs are measured at
an amount equal to the portion of the lifetime ECLs that
results from default events possible within the next 12
months. If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not yet deemed
to be credit-impaired, the ECLs are measured based on
lifetime ECLs. In general, when loan receivables or their
related instalments are overdue by 30 days, there is a
significant increase in credit risk. As at 31 March 2024,
provisions of HK$985,000 (2023: HK$951,000) and
HK$2,169,000 (2023: HK$37,000) were made under
Stage 1 and Stage 2 respectively based on assessment
from the ECL model.

In general, loan and interest receivables are considered in
default when the loan and interest receivables or their
related instalments are overdue by 90 days (“Stage 3").
As at 31 March 2024, loan and interest receivables with
an aggregate amount of HK$95,787,000 (2023:
HK$51,816,000) were in default under Stage 3 lifetime
ECLs and a provision of HK$13,824,000 (2023:
HK$3,585,000) was made.

A maturity profile of the loan and interest receivables as
at the end of each reporting period, based on the

maturity date, net of provision, is as follows:

Current RN ER
Over 1 year and within 5 years —FUERAFZA
Over 5 years AFNE

Total =18

HEERRB VIR ERERBZIEME
TREARENERERRFE (5
—BEBR)MmE c HHERBANIERE
REEFERERERERTE@AIE
RARTZ@EMAALIBROELNEHHI
DHEENE - MERNIEERR S
MisERECBEEEM(TE BRI -
BEAREGIECSERRE  BEERIE
KRNEBREFEPEREHABARE -
—MmE  EEKERNEBFBENSH
NEaaB=+08  BEERKRD EEHY
moR-E-_NME=/=+—H  RE
EHERBEREXNTE EF—BER
B PEE 9 RIVE L B #5985,000%8 7T (=
T = =% :951,000/% 7t) &2,169,000
BIL(ZEZ=%F : 37,0008 L) °

—RmE EREREFEHERED
SHEFRABNL+E ([FE=RE])
EREFRFABAISHEBIERLY - R
T-_HWNE=A=+—HB BRLHEAH
95,787,000 L (=& = = F :
51,816,000 L) 2 EWERKRFEE
BAMBAE -—BEERETEHREHE
FA8 K - 3 /F H # #513,824,0007 7T
— T~ =4 :3,58500087T) °

REREHREUWE R RN ERIZE B
B(EMREE) 2SI HBH[T

2024 2023
—EF-IF F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
642,612 655,712
37,684 113,752
44,220 53,959
724,516 823,423
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18. LEASE RECEIVABLES

Lease receivables FE U FH & 5K

The Group's billing terms with customers are mainly on
credit. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of
issuance. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management. The main type of collateral held by
the Group as security is deposits received from tenants
of HK$4,021,000 (2023: HK$3,431,000). As at 31
March 2023, the Group also held the deposit received
from a charterer as security of HK$7,080,000, which was
reclassified as liabilities directly associated with the assets
classified as held for sale. Lease receivables were due
from tenants and bear interest at a fixed rate on the

overdue amount.

An ageing analysis of the lease receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

Within 1 month — & AR

1 to 2 months —EMm1E A
2 to 3 months mE=EA
Over 3 months =@EANE

Total =
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18. EWFEHER

2024 2023
—B-QmF —EC-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THTT
1,242 357

Kﬁl@%ﬁﬁzxm%ﬁiﬁuﬁf
T - BEBFENELEZ=1TH
W%moﬁ—%ﬁ;ﬁﬁft@ NS
Bl IE 1 SK¥f R (B2 2 FE YR 00 LA BR 32
ZHl o mARBEEAEGEHEETRN 2
I AERERSBIERERZEMRME
LR ARHEP Y E4,021,0008 T (=
Z =% 3,431,000 ) 2iEE o A
ZEZ=F=ZA=+—8 AEENH
B A AWE A % £7,080,0007% 7T
EREF HEEEMoBAENEAR
ERENEEERABNEE - EUHE
ERTIMEF R F K6 & FE IR EE F X

FTR °

REZRAH NeEHREEEEE

RETHREDITOT ¢
2024 2023
—E-NE —ETE=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THE T THT
273 265
273 46
272 46
424 =
1,242 357
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18.

19.

LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns.
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, lease receivables are written off if past due for
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement

activity.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9 which permits the use of
the lifetime expected loss provision for all lease
receivables. The expected credit loss rate for the Group's
lease receivables is minimal for all the above bands of

lease receivables.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not pledge any
lease receivables to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group (2023: Nil) (note 29).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SECURITY BROKERS

The balances represent deposits with security brokers
with no recent history of default and bear interest at
floating rates. There were no overdue amounts due from
the security brokers. As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the

loss allowances were assessed to be minimal.

HHELEEEEERLA

18.

19.

W EER (&)
REREAH - NEERBBEEMG
BERBMEREXR  UETRESN - 18
RAWERELUNTRAEFP D EETD
B BEEAsEN B E B AER -
BT E R R NEERA RN RE
RHAISEBEEN  EAiRRK
KEBERNBANEGEBBKENG
Be—RME  BUHERMERESB
—FERWEETEMRBINITIES 5
S -

o4 o5 8 8 R 5 08 B 5 90 2 0 B 0% 10
BT AR IS RIA AR A - B A
70 B K B A R R (T S T
HIIER A o 5 R B B
TS - 7 R R e T RS
BT -

RZE-_WE=A=+—H AEBEL
ERAEMEKRBERER  URERT
AEEZRITRE (ZZ_=F : &) (M
#29) °

PE W 3% 35 AR 42 Y FRIE
EHRERRTHRBELF K LENES &
3 HA 7 6 /R R I8 RO 8% IR AR E B A K 5
B o B 5 A8 40 BY BRIE I A 8 B R
H-RZZBE_MFR-_T_=F=HA
=+—HB EEEGBHIER/RTK-
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security for loan and interest
receivables. The nature and carrying value of these assets
held as at 31 March are summarised as follows:

Repossessed properties KEEE
— commercial properties —EEME
— residential properties —EEMHE
— industrial property —TEWME
Total A&t

They are properties in respect of which the Group has
acquired access or control through court proceedings for
release in full or in part of the obligation of borrowers. The
estimated market value of the repossessed assets held by
the Group as at 31 March 2024 amounted to
HK$86,270,000 (2023: HK$62,120,000), which was
based on actual transaction prices listed on provisional sale
and purchase agreements that the Group had entered into
to dispose of the repossessed assets as at 31 March 2024
and valuation carried out by Knight Frank Petty Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, using the
market comparable approach that reflects recent
transaction prices for similar properties, adjusted for
differences in the nature, location and condition of the
properties under review. Each year, the Group's executive
directors decide to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuation of the Group's
repossessed assets. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group's
executive directors have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results twice a year
when the valuation is performed for interim and annual
financial reporting respectively.
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EEEE

7N 5 [ 0 B U S R e ) B B AS 4 AE HE AR
mBEEE - R=ZA=1T—"RHEHANH
RZEEEMMEREEESALT

2024 2023
—E-NEFE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FET
16,975 14,132
62,076 44,001
1,931 -
80,982 58,133

HAREEZEREEREFIGEAIE
IR - ERBRERANDIBK
BABEE BEASER_T_WE=
A=+—HEARHLEEEEEMI LA
BRREEBRMINERR SERIUAK
BB VEESABRMAERMIE R E6M1T
BRRARFEAMSLEE (REEUY
%r WX 5ERE U ERYENYE
*{Iﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁf’ﬁtﬂﬁﬁﬁ)iﬁ’_
E’Mafﬁ AEEBR-_T-_MNFE=A
E+—Elﬁﬁhﬁél’w&%ﬁ§w&§+ﬁiﬁ
B 18 /86,270,0008 T (Z T = = £ :
62,120,000 7T) - B4 - AL B #H 1T
EEREZEM—FINEFHEHEER
SEEGEEENIISDMGE - HELAB
EMSMmE B2 BUIMISEH#HE
HEKE - AEERTESTHEBMS
RIF R EFHMBRESFRITMHE
el b EREREEERNK -
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s repossessed assets

20. LEEE (&)
RAEE AEBEBEEENEESHE

and the movements during the year are as follows: T
Commercial  Residential Industrial
properties properties property Total
[EEL/ES TEmE TEM% At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET FAET FHET
At 1 April 2022, net of R_ZE__FMHA—-A
accumulated impairment (M EERMER) 14,132 39,226 - 53,358
Possession of properties NEMEEEE - 21,882 - 21,882
Sale of repossessed assets HERELEE - (15,166) - (15,166)
Provision for impairment losses BREAENREER
on repossessed assets BE - (1,941) - (1,941)
At 31 March 2023 i ——e
and 1 April 2023, net of ZR=+-HE
accumulated impairment “E-=%MA—H
(B RIERMER) 14,132 44,001 - 58,133
Possession of properties BENEEEE 10,924 71,753 2,229 84,906
Sale of repossessed assets HEREEE - (36,498) - (36,498)
Provision for impairment losses BREEENREER
on repossessed assets, net BiE 38 (8,081) (17,180) (298) (25,559)
At 31 March 2024, net of RZEZMF
accumulated impairment =A=1+-H
(MBRRBHER) 16,975 62,076 1,931 80,982
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, a total provision
for impairment losses of HK$25,578,000 (2023:
HK$1,941,000) was provided for nine (2023: five) of the
residential properties, two (2023: Nil) of the commercial
properties and one (2023: Nil) industrial property of
which the net carrying amounts exceeded the market
value of the properties less costs to sell and a reversal of
impairment losses of HK$19,000 (2023: Nil) was
provided for one (2023: Nil) of the residential properties,
of which the actual selling price less costs to sell was

higher than its net carrying amount.

The movements in the provision for impairment losses

on repossessed assets are as follows:

At beginning of year R EE 4]
Provision for impairment losses on

repossessed assets, net (note 6)
Write-off €=

At end of year NG ES

HEEENRERIER
Bty 3 (fY5Ee)
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20. WLEEE (&)

HE-_Z-_NF=ZA=+—HLFE "
REEMEEFPNE(ZT_=F: 1
B) BEVEEIMEBE(ZT==%:
BIR—B(ZTE_=F:8)TEME
ZEHFHEBREEMENT HEBER
HEKAGTRABEBEEES H
25,578,0008 T (=& = = % :
1,941,000 ) " kst —B(ZZT =
FE)ETEMEZERSBREERK
AaREEmFREARAEEERED
19,0008 L (ZE=Z=F : &) °

HEEENHRESEREEHNT

2024 2023
—EF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
1,796 -
25,559 1,941
(5,302) (145)
22,053 1,796
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued)
Details of the Group's repossessed assets and
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March
2024 and 2023 are as follows:

20. HEEE (&)
RZEZMFERZTZ=F=A=+—
H FRAASEEBEEENFBEARA
FEBEBRERDT

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

W=A=+-AAFEEHERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B EXT ERAT
TERE BERBAE BEBAE
(B-BR) (BZEBR) (B=ZEX &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET THET THET
Recurring fair value BEULNT
measurement for: BEMNE:
2024 b3
Commercial properties EEYE - - 17,570 17,570
Residential properties FEEWME 38,660 - 28,080 66,740
Industrial property IEME - - 1,960 1,960
Total At 38,660 - 47,610 86,270
2023 —T-=f
Commercial property HEME - - 15,400 15,400
Residential properties EEMmE 14,400 - 32,320 46,720
Total = 14,400 - 47,720 62,120
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued) 20. IKEEE (&)
Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique NTAREBEEENRFEENMGER
used and the key input to the valuation of the fair values RANGERTREZHABOHE

21.

of repossessed assets:

Valuation technique Significant unobservable input
1k {8 £ i EXFABEBAE
Commercial, residential Direct comparison Market price per square foot
and industrial properties approach method HFHRMSER
ME TERIEDE BELBOX

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21. B AFEET AEBZNRERE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2024 2023
—E_NFE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET

Listed equity investments, BEAFEEN
at fair value EHREERE 15,375 =
The above equity investments were classified as financial BN EMRERETDFEEE - AitH
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were BARATEEFAEGNERMEE -

held for trading.

At 31 March 2024, the Group’s equity investments RZZE_WME=A=+—H x&EEA
amounting to HK$15,375,000 (2023: Nil) were pledged 2153750008 T (ZE_=F &) 2
to secure banking facilities and securities margin account BRIERECEER  UREBRTEAEE
facilities granted to the Group (note 29). ZIRITHMERBSREBZCELBE (K

£¥29) o
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

22,

Be MRITHET
EHFR

ReMREEEY

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on

daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are

made for varying periods of between one day and twelve

months depending on the immediate cash requirements

of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-

term time deposit rates. The bank

balances and time

deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

RERATEEY
2024 2023
—EMEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHET
90,846 111,127
427,405 344,883
518,251 456,010

RITRE DHIRES B RITFERMRLF
BHEHE - BEMEMERZFHREE
NF—HE+_@AATSE RFLEH
ZEEREREME  WIHSHHTEH
TFRM KGR - |RITHEFEREREFRTS
FRAMEERFEY B HERREL
8% 2 BR1T ©

23. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS 23. EETMIE - HtEFAERRRE K
RECEIVED 7e

2024 2023

—E_-_ME —E-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FABIT

Accruals FESTFIA 3,020 3,040

Other payables and deposits received HtpEANERRE KRS 9,857 6,549

Receipt in advance T8 YR IE 168 -

Total = 13,045 9,589

Portion classified as DI EIERE
non-current liabilities BENE D (2,620) (1,184)
Current portion mE R o 10,425 8,405

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on 90-day terms.

HENERS T ER—RARNLT
BRGHE -
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24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 24 FEBEBEEE BE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BERIBEEREERAFE ZEEH W
during the year are as follows: K
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
2024
—E_F

Accelerated tax
depreciation on
property, plant
and equipment

M- BERRE

9 hn 328 B 75 4T B
HK$'000
FERT
At 1 April 2023 RZZEZ=%FMH—H 26,693
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss RARF R Bz AR
during the year (note 9) ZIRIEREIE (MH5E9) 247
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZZE-_ME=HA=+—8H

at 31 March 2024 ZIRERIBEERE 26,940
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24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 24,

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets
during the year are as follows: (continued)

EERBEE BE(F)

BEREMBAREBEBMNEERAFE ZE BN
(&)

Deferred tax assets EEBEEE
2024
—2opE
Provision for Losses
Provision for  impairment losses available for
impairment losses on loan offsetting
on repossessed and interest against future
assets receivables taxable profits Total
EREE BUERR A 8
Wi HENHE ARERH
FERR EER® -EilleA fif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
At 1 Apil 2023 W-E-=£mA-A (265) (163) (8473) (8901)
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss WA EEBER
during the year (note 9) STAZERBIE (H39) (2,165) (359) (667) (3,190)
Gross deferred tax assets R-Z-ME=A=1-H
at 31 March 2024 LELHEAERS (2,430) (521) (9,140) (12,091)
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24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 24 EEBEEE BE (#)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BRERBEEBEREERAFTE 2EEH0M
during the year are as follows: (continued) T (%)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBEEE
2023
—E=%F

Accelerated tax
depreciation on
property, plant
and equipment

WME - BE REE

IR BT E
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2022 RZZEZZFMA—H 25,934
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss RAFEEER R AR
during the year (note 9) ZRERIE (H5E9) 759
Gross deferred tax liabilities R—ZZE_=F=HA=+—H

at 31 March 2023 ZIEETIB R BB 26,693
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24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 24 EEBIEEE &E (&)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets
during the year are as follows: (continued)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 April 2022

Deferred tax charged/
(credited) to profit or loss
during the year (note 9)

Gross deferred tax assets
at 31 March 2023

i/ GrA)Z
EEHIA (H9)

LERHREES

RZE-ZENA—H
REFEEBRRA

W-E-_=f#=fA=1-H

e

#

BEREMBAREBEBMNEERAFE ZE BN

T (8
EEHBREE
2023
—TCICF
Provision for Losses
Provision for impairment losses available for
impairment losses on loan offsetting
on repossessed and interest against future
assets receivables  taxable profits Total
BREE EYREHRR A {5
ERE MBHR(E RRERM
ERAMH ERf&fE B B At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER T
- (241) (8,124) (8,365)
(265) 78 (349) (536)
(265) (163) (8,473) (8,901)
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24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 24 EEBEEE BE (#)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE MR R &
in the consolidated statement of R 2 IEEF IR
financial position BEFH

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised Rz & WA T

in the consolidated statement of R ZIELERIA
financial position BEFH

Net deferred tax liabilities in respect of ~ HRAFEL L EBKHN
continuing operations BTN IR B EFHE

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$339,330,000 (2023: HK$321,889,000). The tax
losses in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets of
HK$46,849,000 (2023: HK$44,639,000) have not been
recognised in respect of tax losses because these tax
losses have arisen in companies that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax

losses can be utilised.

HIVET S - MR KNS T BT
BAERBED T o AT H e
BHhsRR 2 AR RETHARB LS
i

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&xT FET
2,002 -
(16,851) (17,792)
(14,849) (17,792)

AREBREABAEADEEIE
339,330,000 T (=& = = & :
321,889,000 7T) - RBEBE L 2T
HEEERARAERHEESEEERE A
Bl Z RRFERBE A o NEB W KRHZ
EHEEBEERAECHEBEE
46,849,000 L (=& = = & :
44,639,000 7T) r AZERBEETY
REEEBE BB AR MARA
AARAIBEE L FERTOR M IAEHZ F B
HEE -
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24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 24 EEBIEEE &E (&)

At 31 March 2024, there was no significant unrecognised RZZE-_MFEF=A=+—H  x&EEZ
deferred tax liability (2023: Nil) for taxes that would be MEARYEERELBNMAI 2
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's BBAHRERERRERELCHBASE
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax TEZ=F8) EWZEREE
should such amounts be remitted. H AEEWEBINGEAE -
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the RN &) | H AR BRI B I A S B AA]
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. FrigfiER -
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. &
Shares iR 43
2024 2023
—E-EF —EC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT THETT
Authorised: ETE
40,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 40,000,000,000 % & i% M (&
HK$0.0025 each 0.0025/8 7T 2 EimAx 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITEER
5,780,368,705 ordinary shares of 5,780,368,7050% & I [ &
HK$0.0025 each 0.0025/8 7T 2 & B 14,451 14,451
Share options i IR
Details of the Company's share option scheme and the AR A) B IR AE AT B LA AR IR 7% 5T 81 M &
share options outstanding under the scheme are included RITER B 2 F BN YRR M

in note 26 to the financial statements. 726 °
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4

September 2012, an ordinary resolution was passed for

the adoption of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”).

The Scheme was operated by the Company for the

purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible

participants who contribute to the success of the Group's

operations.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

(a

(b)

Participants

Participants are any directors (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company and
employees of the Group and any advisors
(professional or otherwise), consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters,
and service providers of any member of the Group
who the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) considers, in its sole discretion, have

contributed or will contribute to the Group.

Subscription price
The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion but in any event

shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.0025
each of the Company (the “Shares”) as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of grant
of an option (the “Date of Grant”) which must

be a business day;
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26. iB IR EFE

R-EB-——FAAOBRITZARA
REFAGL —HEBRZRCABBL
PABR 40 B8 v st &1 ([ &A1 81)) -

ZAtEIZ B SRR EEERINE
HEMZAER2EEL TR RER

Zat Bl FHBIT

(a) 2EE
SEERARNFERNES (BFEH
TESE - ERITESE LB T IERT
ER)RAEEZEERAQNAE
S ([E5g) REBHBER
t}ri‘?ﬁﬂ%@ﬂ$’$l{’ﬁﬂj,ﬂl§ﬁ2
ET—JEEFEJ(EEﬁ%mii}ﬁ) B

DR ABRE HER - KR
BA - BF EBEH 62%K
B BRARNEBERNKEAR
Al RIS GLRERS -

nu\

(b) REE
REERRESSREABEHNEE
o EER A A SER THIFA
THREE

() AN2RAAEFREME0.0025% T
2 Bt (Thfn ) & B AR #E 3%
HESM(EREBRH) (WEAR
BER) M HE (BB
RETBWMERMEERLE)
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Scheme are as follows: (continued)

(b) Subscription price (continued)

©

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the Date

of Grant; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

Maximum number of the Shares

The maximum number of the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence
of shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed 10%
of the nominal amount of the aggregate of the
Shares in issue on the adoption date of the Scheme
(the "Scheme Mandate Limit"). Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme and (as
the case may be) such other share option schemes
of the Company will not be counted for the purpose

of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

HHELEEEEERLA

26.

BRESE (&)

Zat Bl FHBIT

(&)

(b) REBE (&)

©

(i) BROEEHEFEL A B O E
EXRBRTFHRHE (AER
BRPTABMRAEERE)
K

(i) B{H EfE

I A7 £ PR

REBERBLER - IR A REZ
at & R AN A AME AT A B AR AT &
& E’U%H&%%Mﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂﬁ
I ER - BT BBBN &SR
%WEIEHE?%G%H%%@@%%&HOO/O
(TETEIRERE]) - BETEIXE
IREEE - RIFZTE & (BBAB
U E) AN A B A B AR g Rt

EIMFRRERRNBRESTFE
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Scheme are as follows: (continued)

(d)

(e)

®

Maximum number of options granted to
each participant

The maximum number of the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each grantee under the Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any Shares
subject to options granted during such period under
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
other than those options granted pursuant to specific
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting)
exceed
(the “Individual Limit").

1% of the Shares in issue for the time being

Period of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in a period notified by
the Board to each grantee at the time of making an
offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years from

the Date of Grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme expired on 3 September 2022. No
further share options shall thereafter be offered
under the Scheme but the share options which had
been granted are still valid, unless otherwise lapse

or expiry of the share options.
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26. BRERT & (&)

Zat 8l FHBWT

(d)

(e)

®

(#8)

ESRERBREREZLR

AR ANEEA+ @A RREZ
ArEIEENBRE (BREETER
RITEEREIHE) T ATTER AT
TREETHORN LR TF (&
REBBMEAREARFEAEM
IR SR LB BE A M (T
AERm A TEERRERRER
RRE LRHHEMRHNZERE
) BEERSZETROMI%
(TEAFREE] -

fBIR R 2 1T E
BRETREEHRBRERES
SHMEEEREAZHREAITE - 1

ARE L EHES T FRRER -

N

izt 8l 2 5 8RB W
TEER T _FNAA=HE
c HIg MSBREBEZEERRK
Hipfg ik - BEERKE 2 BRE
TMARB - BRIEBAERBKE
o BIERR

=1l
N
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EEE{t

217



218

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B E B E R 2 A
Annual Report 2024 £

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 3R R B
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Scheme are as follows: (continued)

(g) Acceptance of options
The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days for the Scheme, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total

by the Grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, 116,200,000
(2023: 16,600,000) share options had lapsed. An
aggregate amount of HK$5,068,000 (2023: HK$794,000)
was transferred from share option reserve to retained

profits upon lapse of the share options.

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme during the year:

26. BRERT & (&)

a8l BT - ()

(5) BEXBRE
BRZE mEE A HE
ZHNBR EABARBINAH
1TBETZEBAREINAUEZE
THhkEZZ2H -

BRETERTHESE ABRDIRKE N
EBRRARGREZERN -

BHE-_Z-_NF=A=1+T—HLFE -
£116,200,000H (=T == &F :
16,600,00017) ERR#EE KW - # &
5,068,000/ 7T (=& = = £ : 794,000
B IT) B B AR RE LK A R BB R R
#ARBRF o

RAFE - BIFZT M ATEZE
fRiERFIBT

2024 2023
—ECQmE —T_=fF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of

exercise price  share options  exercise price  share options

¥ ¥ 19
TEE BREHE TEE BREHA
HK$ per share ‘000  HK$ per share '000
BRET T BRET T
At beginning of year REH] 0.1532 116,200 0.1532 132,800
Lapsed during the year ~ RAREEZ R 0.1532 (116,200) 0.1532 (16,600)
At 31 March R=B=+—H

- 0.1532 116,200
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26. EIRESHE (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share RMEER - MARTTEZEREZITE
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period BRITEHAT :

are as follows:

2023

—Eo=fF

Number of share options Exercise price* Exercise period

B ERE TR E" 171E HA
‘000 HK$ per share
+ BRETT
116,200 0.1532 03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—E-=FAA=RZE
—E-_=FNAZH

There was no vesting period for the outstanding share BEYRERENEEMHARITEZEREL

options granted to employees and directors. mEELY-

*  The exercise price of the share options was subject to * O MREEBRKAKRET ELRQA
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other fRAEEEHEMBUES  BRENT
similar changes in the Company's share capital. FEEEETHE -

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no REEBR  BIEZETE - AR B E

share options outstanding under the Scheme (2023: TABERERARTRE(ZZE =%

116,200,000). 116,200,00017) °
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27. RESERVES 27. #1E

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 111

and 112 of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from:

(i) the Group’s reorganisation on 13 June 1990,
representing the excess of the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued under the Group's
reorganisation, and the nominal value of the shares
and share premium of the former holding company

acquired by the Group; and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant

to the capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Group is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances

prescribed by section 54 thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options

lapse or expire or be forfeited.

The exchange translation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the

financial statements of foreign operations.

AEBEZFEBERBELNAFTEE MBESF
EzREZHNIFHEHREFEIIT1R112
B aEageRED -

AEEZEBERABRKE

() AEER-NNAZTFRNA+=R#E
TZEH  RARARBEAREE
ARTEEIT G EE B AR B AT
B 2 AR R IR A T E B AR 0
BEMZELD &

(i) RE—AANESA-AEFZK
A B T PR B R

REBAREZEQIBIFRREYEERT) -
EZEPI B4 2 ETIHERT - &
SEZEHRBRADIKR TR -

BEREREERCEROLBFTELR
Bz RV EE FBERYBRERME
24NN BERNNRZ T BR#E
—SEE-ERMBRERITER &
MeRBeERERNEER  HMHE
128 B s K Bk B SOR MR - R B R
TREGEREREEN -

[E X AR ERIMEERBEO M
BERFAELNMBHEBELEZE -
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29.

30.
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RESERVES (continued)

The merger reserve represents the difference between (i)
the amounts at which the assets and liabilities are
recorded under a business combination under common
control in prior years, net of any reserves of the acquired
entities, and (ii) the fair value of consideration paid for
the business combination.

The asset revaluation reserve represents cumulative gains
and losses arising on property revaluation as a result of
the change in use from owner-occupied properties to
investment properties. Such items will not be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The fair value reserve represents the subsequent changes
in fair value of the equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income since its
initial measurement. With the exception of dividends
received, the associated gains and losses are recognised
in the fair value reserve. Amounts represented in the fair
value reserve are transferred to retained profits upon

derecognition of the financial assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had an
outstanding guarantee of HK$70,000,000 (2023:
HK$70,000,000) given to a bank to secure a general
credit facility granted to a subsidiary of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the assets pledged to secure the Group's
banking facilities and securities margin account facilities
are included in notes 13, 14, 18 and 21 to the financial
statements.

COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not

have any significant commitments.
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i R ()

AR AP BIEF BT HREH
CEAGREHENAERBESE D
I T 8 R 0 (T B 4) Ry BE R 3
AENNRENRATEERS ZHH
£R -

BEERHESARNAEHEANEE
BRREMEMETMREBAELEN
REWRERERE - ZFEERAKERE

B reEHMHEERT

N EERE/EE/EAFEETA
Hip 2 ERSABREREBEGE
IARE) 2 BN FEEED - b AT
B S50 - HREE W K BB E R FEE
ERAER - NS REER LR -
RAFEERFRBANSREEEREA D
FlJ o

RREE

RBMER  NRARB TFRITZAREE
YR58 /470,000,000 T (ZE=-=4:
70,000,000 7T) F tERA KB 2 —@E
B ARMER —REERME 2HEM -

BEEEKH
EEERMEBAEBRITRHERBHRE
SHRFPAMEMBRZEENFBIHRY
WEARMTEIZ 14 - 18K%21 °

¥
RIREERAR - AR R AEAEAEG -
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31. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 3. HEWE AT

2024
—E-NE
HK$'000
TER

Net assets disposed of: HEMEEFE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB M&RE 66,075
Accruals and other payables (Note) JE & SR I8 T2 E At B A< BR R (PR 3E) (21,790)
44,285
Exchange translation reserve b 5, (9,487)
Disposal expenses incurred HEEEEFENER 350
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 10) HEMEB AW (HEE10) 9,834
Total consideration BRE 44,982

Satisfied by: XRAR

Cash Be 44,982
Note: Included in accruals and other payables as at 28 April Mz RZZE_=FWMA -+ /\H ZES

2023 was an amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary, New Century
Cruise Line International Limited, of approximately
HK$7,572,000.

FEREMENERRE BEENA
SEKEBARZIEERERRNew
Century Cruise Line International
Limited#) FRIB 497,572,000 7T °

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HNRLEMNBARMNRERASEEY
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: BERADHAT :

2024

—E-WEF

HK$'000

FTHERT

Cash consideration HeRE 44,982

Disposal expenses incurred HEZSHELENER (350)

44,632
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(a) The Group had the following transactions with

related parties during the year:

Salary paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) X &MELEZ
Cheow Leng e

Salary paid to Mr. Wilson Ng XNEEKEEZET

Salary paid to Mr. Huang Wai lp SN &EEFEXE2H S

Management fee paid to a X RAEE R R Z
related company ERE

Service fee paid to a RN N
related company AR 75 &

Notes:

(i) The salary was paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng,

(i

who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the

Company.

The salaries were paid to Mr. Wilson Ng and Mr.
Huang Wai Ip, who are discretionary beneficiaries of a
discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding

company of the Company.

(i)

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

N.BEHAERS

(@) RAFE AEBHBHB T 25

R
2024 2023
—E-OE TEC-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=2 FE& T FET
0 138 133
(i) 1,091 945
(i) 366 -
(iii) 105 103
(iv) - 145

B 5
(i) HeHINTFEBBLEE EB

—(A2EEEZR T ARETEA
Mm% ERERITAARRRRE
& A @]Huang Group (BVI) Limited
ZEEbRER o

FehXNTHEEXREELER
ErL BRER—EZERFTEZ
ERZEA MZEREREE
ANQ Bl £ AR B A BlHuang Group
(BVI) Limited % S04 2 -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

©

The Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii) The management fee was charged based on an
agreement entered into between the Group and a
related company, Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
("Huang & Co"), for administrative services provided
at a monthly rate of approximately HK$8,730 (2023:
HK$8,580). Huang & Co is beneficially owned by Mr.
Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng.

(iv) The service fee was paid to Universal Shipmanagement
Pte. Ltd. ("USM"), a related company, for the provision
of handling the drydocking arrangement of a cruise
ship on behalf of the Group. USM is beneficially
owned by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng.

Due to the intermediate holding company

The Group had an outstanding balance due to the
intermediate holding company of HK$80,000,000
(2023: HK$80,000,000) as at the end of the
reporting period. This balance is unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

Commitment with a related party

On 1 April 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into a service agreement with three-month
termination notice with Huang & Co, a related
company of the Group, for the provision of
administrative services to the Group. The
management fee paid to Huang & Co for the year is
disclosed in note 32(a)(iii) to the financial
statements. As at 31 March 2024, the Group had a
total future minimum management fee payable to
Huang & Co amounting to approximately HK$26,000
(2023: HK$27,000).

HHELEEEEERLA

32 BB A RS (&)

(a)

(b)

©

RAFE  AEBEBB T 2R S
mTr ()
MaE - (B8)

(i) EEBRAEENE —BHEH QA
Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
([Huang & Col) BtArHR 1T HUR
B BE KRSAEEE
#)8,730/ T (ZF Z =4 : 8,580
L) ° Huang & Cof & MR B 5t 4
BEmlEh o

vy RBEEDRARRAEERIEH SR
ML N T —EEE L
AlUniversal Shipmanagement Pte.
Ltd. ([USMJ) » USMER 55 AR 8% 55 4=
B o

FE T R PR A A
RS BR - AEB R EER
RAFRBZRERNEHR B
80,000,000 L (Z T = =4 :

Ik

80,000,000/ L) ° *ﬁ‘ﬁ% E T E
B 2B RBRERER

B 38 B 5 B R
R-ZE—=FMNA—H ~NEE—

I8 A A B AR &R B — R BB 2 A
Huang & Cor]l Z IRI& %% - AB A
ARASBERETHRY  AEKR
IFBMBMA=EA - RAFE XN
FHuang & Col) & 12 & 1 Bf 15 ¥ &
M 5E32(a) (VN RE - R-F—m
F=Z=RA=+—RH FXEEEH
Huang & CoMy R R EE R B HE R
#26,0008 L (=T = =% :
27,000 7T) °
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Due to a non-controlling shareholder of the Group's

(e)

FHELEEEEERAA
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32. BB AR5 ()
(d) EAASEBIHERRZFERER

subsidiary H) FIE
2024 2023
—E-mE T4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 TER FET
Loan advanced from a rEEMBARZ
non-controlling shareholder FEERR AR R
of the Group's subsidiary BT 2B 0 24,087 71,823
Accruals and other payables BREEESERESR
included in liabilities directly SENEEREAM
associated with the assets B B E ) EETRUIE K&
classified as held for sale H oAb e BR X (i) - 7,598
Notes: B & -
(i) Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement entered (i) REAEERAEER—FHMHEBL

into between the Group and New Century Cruise
Line International Limited (“NCCL"), the non-
controlling shareholder of New Century Maritime
Limited (“NCML"), a subsidiary of the Group,
NCCL shall not demand repayment of this loan
unless a resolution in writing signed by all
shareholders of NCML for the demand of
repayment has been duly passed at its general
meeting. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. NCCL is beneficially owned
by Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Company.

(i) The balance was unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

The compensation of key management personnel of

the Group has been disclosed in note 8(a) to the

financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a) to (d)

above also constitute connected transactions or

continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

A]New Century Maritime Limited
(INCML 1) Z 3F = B IR RNew
Century Cruise Line International
Limited ([ NCCL ) 5T 3Z 2 B& 3R 1#2
& RIENCMLE 2 BRI EEE
RERZEBMARRE R HRER
Ag FIEXEB - B AINCCLE T
SEREEZEER -ZERB
EER RERAEREZRERE -
NCCLA AR A 2 & & ER A A
Huang Group (BVI) Limited & z5 %
5o

(i) ERAZHRSEER RERAR

() REBEXEEBABZHFMERNY
B KM E8(a) A EE o

Fii(@)E(d)BZ BB T X 5 T EK £
MRUNETOAZERRE 2BEZXH N
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF . MERERERMEE

CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing ARETDHELENAESY
activities
Loan advanced
from a Amount
non-controlling due to the
shareholder intermediate
of the Group's holding Lease
subsidiary company liabilities
X&E
WEARZ
FERRR JE A3 e
BHZER ERARRE HERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET
At 1 April 2022 RZEZ—4§MA—R 71,823 40,000 206
Changes from financing cash flows ~ BERETEELNZ - 40,000 (134)
Interest expense MERX - - 4
Interest paid classified as PEREEHENEN
operating cash flows BT 2 - - (4)
As at 31 March 2023 RZE-_=f=A=+—H
and 1 April 2023 E=—ZE-=FMA—H 71,823 80,000 72
Changes from financing MERTREELMN
cash flows =z (47,736) - (72)
Interest expense FIBEX - - 1
Interest paid classified as PEREEHEREN
operating cash flows BRH & - - ©)
At 31 March 2024 R-ZE-ME=A=+-H 24,087 80,000 -
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 34 EEERFEREZNR D&

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS B2HEBRF
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material BEREEREZNAEENE TN
non-controlling interests are set out below: FHEHENOT
2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=

Percentage of equity interest held by FFERERZAEN

non-controlling interests: BRAEZBDL :
ETC Finance Limited SRFTBERRA A 40 40
Kingston Maritime Limited* - 40
New Century Maritime Limited 40 40
Century Rich Investments Limited* 40 40
2024 2023
—E-F —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to £ B F I ERE= M

non-controlling interests: TEEBH(EE) :

ETC Finance Limited SRR HHRA A 8,508 18,556
Kingston Maritime Limited* (212) (24,295)
New Century Maritime Limited 3,989 (100)

Century Rich Investments Limited* 293 (1,183)
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 34 BEEERFEREZNRDE

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) BEZHEB AR (&)
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material EERFEEREZNAEENE QRN
non-controlling interests are set out below: (continued) HIBEYMT : (8)
2024 2023
S —Eo=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Accumulated balances of REBEEH
non-controlling interests FIERER D
at the reporting date: E- g
ETC Finance Limited SR EHERA A 364,134 355,626
Kingston Maritime Limited* - (57,155)
New Century Maritime Limited (24,085) 17,698
Century Rich Investments Limited* - 15,158
Dividend paid to non-controlling XN FHRERESR
interest: R :
Century Rich Investments Limited* 15,450 -
*  Disposed of on 28 April 2023 * RIEZ=FMA=+/\BHHE

*  Struck off on 1 May 2024 L ORZE-—NMFERAR—HBHHSI
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries, excluding the

subsidiary under a discontinued operation. The amounts

are disclosed before any inter-company eliminations:

2024
—E_NEF

Revenue and other income
Total expenses
Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

for the year

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net cash flows from/(used in)
operating activities

Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities

Net cash flows used in

financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in

cash and cash equivalents

DONSER L ON

M 88
AEFEEF/ (BE)
AEEZERE,/
(B @R

mEEE
FRDEE
mEAE
FRBRME

gREDFRE/ (M)
ZBEREFE
REESMEG/ (FA)
ZBEREFE

BEEBMA

ZBEREFE

RERRAEFENL
#m/ (Rd) %8

FHELEEEEERAA
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34 BEEERFERERZNB D B
BE2HEAT (&)
TRERLAMBAANS BHSE
BT EE—EE KGR M
BAT - EESE AR AME

SHAIM S 58 ¢
ETC New Century Century Rich
Finance Maritime Investments
Limited Limited Limited

SRAHE
BERAH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAT
80,356 38,976 740
(57,600) (143,434) (9)
22,756 (104,458) (731)
22,756 (104,458) (731)
1,012,497 4 -
102,193 - -
(207,052) (60,216) B
(96) - -
95,025 34,909 (34,265)
(28) 83,608 -
(553) (119,340) (38,626)
94,444 (823) (72,891)
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries, excluding the

subsidiary under a discontinued operation. The amounts

are disclosed before any inter-company eliminations:

(continued)

2023

—E-=F

Revenue and other income
Total expenses
Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

for the year

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net cash flows from/(used in)
operating activities

Net cash flows used in
investing activities

Net cash flows from
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents

HHELEEEEERLA

3. AREARFERERNIRD
BAzHELQTE (&)
TRETELAMBERANSBHES

o TR -EERIE

5 375 0

BRR - IR EE/BARHEM QA BE
AT SR (8)

ETC New Century Century Rich
Finance Maritime Investments
Limited Limited Limited
SRAE
BRAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FEL TEL
WA RE A 76,083 4,068 (2,942)
HYeH (29,496) (10) (15)
AEEEF/ (B]) 46,587 4,058 (2,957)
AEEZERE/

(B#R) 2% 46,587 4,058 (2,957)
MENE E 903,531 223,802 73,002
EmEBEE 186,226 = -
REEE (204,874) (179,556) (35,107)
FRBEE (96) — -
meEBME/ (FB)

ZESREFE (40,448) (7,135) 26,267
REZBMA

ZBREREFHE (46) - =
REEHME

ZEEMEFE 99,289 = -
RekBReEENZ

#m/ (Rd)F8 58,795 (7,135) 26,267
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5. 7 ENE sz I A

RBERR SEERMIAZEESHE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period m
are as follows:
2024
—E-E
Financial assets
TREE
Financial asset
Financial assets Financial at fair value
at fair value assetsat  through other
through amortised  comprehensive
profit or loss cost income Total
RAYEE DEB#HRE BRAFEETA
FAREN RN Hit2E k&
tREE SREE WemEE CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TART TERT TERT
Equity investment designated EERRATER
at fair value through other AR EE
comprehensive income KaEnRERE = - 3,347 3,347
Loan and interest receivables EREZKFE - 724516 - 724,516
Lease receivables ERBER - 1,242 - 1,242
Amounts due from security [EREH LN
brokers HR - 9,341 - 9,341
Deposits and other receivables & & & H i UL BR 3%
(note 16) (FitzE16) = 7,244 = 7244
Equity investments at fair value R AFEEFA
through profit or loss BRNRERE 15,375 - - 15,375
Cash and cash equivalents e RRRERY = 518,251 = 518,251
Total G 15,375 1,260,594 3,347 1279316
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HHELEEEEERLA

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

35 RERE s zEem T A (&)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHR ISP IAZERSHA

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period UlN

are as follows: (continued)

2024
—E-MME
Financial liabilities

THEE

Accruals

Other payables and deposits received
(note 23)

Amount due to the intermediate
holding company

Loan advanced from a non-controlling

shareholder of the Group's subsidiary

Total

(#)

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
LA#E 84 B A<
STEK
cRAeE
HK$'000
FTHERT
FE &t 5/ I8 2,054
Hitp AR RE KRS
(Mf5E23) 9,857
JE& {<F Hp P 422 A
NGIF O 80,000
REEBWE R R 2 FFERBRE
B2 ER 24,087

= 115,998
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2023

—ToZF

Financial assets

TREE

Equity investment designated EEREATEE
at fair value through other AFARMEE
comprehensive income W R R IR E

Loan and interest receivables EREZREFE

Lease receivables BT ER

Amounts due from security brokers & It 7 5 & 42 H) 2B

Deposits and other receivables B RE MR KRR
(note 16) (Ft3E16)

Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY

Annual Report 2024 F3k
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5. 7 ENE o2/ I A (&)

REBEHRR SEeRIAZEESHE
mr ()

Financial asset
Financial at fair value
assets at through other

amortised  comprehensive

Total A&

cost income Total
NEHEA A HAFEEA
SFEM H 2 m ks

EREE NEMEE B&r

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FBTT FHBT

- 2,985 2,985

823,423 - 823,423

357 - 357

27 - 27

5,361 - 5,361

456,010 - 456,010

1,285,178 2,985 1,288,163
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

35 RERE s zEem T A (&)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEPRR SEERITAZERESHE

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period R (8)

are as follows: (continued)

2023
—E-=F
Financial liabilities
TRIBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
LA 85 B A
FTER
TREE
HK$'000
FHET
Accruals FE &t 5k I8 2,077
Other payables and deposits received HibENBRRRERIRS
(note 23) (P 7E23) 6,549
Amount due to the intermediate JE A~F R i 422
holding company NGO 80,000
Loan advanced from a non-controlling AEBWB AR ZIFZEREKR
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary B ZER 71,823
Lease liabilities HE&E 72

Total

AEf 160,521
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

as follows:

HFHELEEEETR QA
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—E-MFE=/=+—H

EMIAMNDFEERLTFE
BEREX
BEASHEARTHEEABELEN -
AEESRTANKRESERATEE
M

Carrying amounts Fair values
RESHE AVEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—EoNE _—T-_=-% ZBZWNE _"—T_=f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TER TET
Financial assets tREE
Equity investments at fair value XA FEBEA
through profit or loss BRrRERLE 15,375 — 15,375 =
Equity investment designated EERBRATEEFA
at fair value through other H i 2 TE s Y
comprehensive income MR & 3,347 2,985 3,347 2,985
Loan and interest receivables EWEZR KA E 724,516 823,423 723,498 823,337
Total Gl 743,238 826,408 742,220 826,322

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, lease receivables, amounts due
from security brokers, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company, a loan
advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the
Group's subsidiary, lease liabilities and the non-current
deposits received approximate to their carrying amounts
and accordingly no disclosure of the fair values of these

items is presented.

EEEDENE RELREFEY -
EWAER - BB AFKLONKIE B
REBRMNRIE R A EKERRD
TREE  BREEMBENKRKLERT
RENEHMAE BT REZERIFRK
B ANEENBAEZ R RN
ZEF HEABUNERBEWRS
MAFEEAH EEERAMSERAS
LI 51| % F TR B MR FEBERE -
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 6. EMIENAFEERAFEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's management is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. At each reporting date, the Group's
management analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. Independent professional valuers
are engaged for the valuation as appropriate. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the Group's
management. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for

interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the loan and interest receivables is
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for loans with similar terms,

credit risk and remaining maturities.

EERX (&)
rEEEREEAEETERMIARTE
B ECBERERF RERELE -
AEEEEEE MM IAGEC#
HUEEHEMACEIEZEGAE BT
BEMEMTEEEZR2EMGLE 4
ERAEEEREEENRIE - HEBR
BRERETFMRARPHARFEIR

WERHEEZZE SN -

TREEMNBENAFEEREREER
RPPTZENEMXHRRBTANS

B AEREFBFREE - THTTER

BRRTIAAGET A FEE :

R E R A B A FEERA B ATA
ARBELGX FERRISTIHA
MERMANEGEERARRRSREN R
MfbEt -
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on

quoted market prices.

The fair value of the unlisted equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income has been estimated using a discounted cash flow
("DCF") model. The valuation requires management to
make certain assumptions about the model inputs,
including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit rate
and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates
within the range can be reasonably assessed and are

used in management's estimation of the fair value.

The directors believe that the estimated fair values
resulting from the valuation technique, which were
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which
were recorded in other comprehensive income, were
reasonable. For the fair value of the unlisted equity
investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, management has estimated the
potential effect of using reasonably possible alternatives

as inputs to the valuation model.
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6. tEMITAENAFEERAFEE

EREX (&)
EMREREN DT EEATISRER
% ]

BER/EAFEEFARMEE N
FLEMERRERENRAFEESEBITR
BenE(HRASRE]) BRAMGE -
HEEREEEREABABHELET
Bk BFEBENRSRE HRX F
EXRRBMN - EHBE RN TR
BERALEEFNE  LAREEEHA
FEENGE -

E=RE HERWMEENGTAFE
BEEELEREAMBRARA) &
HEAFEEZS (HeKERNEm:
HREAN)BEE BHEEREAF
EBEAHRMEE RS IE EHRER
ERMAFEE BBECMHTARER
EMNEBEREBREGEEANEAED
BEZE
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. TRMIANAFEERLTE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BEEX (&)
Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable NTEIR B _MFR T _=F=
inputs to the valuation of financial instruments together A=+—HRE@EzBIAKENERT
with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March ARG ABREUARTEEGRE DN :

2024 and 2023:

Valuation Significant

technigue  unobservable input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
EERH EXTIBRGAE HE NYEEHBAENSRE
Unlisted DCF method  Long term growth rate ~ 2024: 3.0% 5% increase/decrease in growth rate would result
equity investment IR B £ for cash flows for ZEZME 3.0% in an increase/decrease in fair value by
FLMRERE TEZE subsequent years (2023 3.0%) HK$12,000 (2023: HK$11,000)/
BREFERNRAES (ZTZ=F:30%) HK$12,000 (2023: HK$11,000)
mEHERE BREEM/ RSN EHATEBEM

12,0007 (ZE-=%: 11,000%87) /
w12, oooz%n(_z__ﬁ : 11,000/ TT)

Weighted average cost ~ 2024: 16.0% 5% increase/decrease in WACC would result
of capital ("'WACC")  —Z =% :16.0% in a decrease/increase in fair value by
T B AR (2023: 16.8%) HK$112,000 (2023: HK$104,000)/
(TIEFHER (ZZZ=%F:168%)  HK$127,000 (2023: HK$117,000)
KA ]) Mg ERKAE N,/ D 5%E G

ALBERL112,0008T(ZE-=F:
104,000%7T) / #10127,000 7T
(ZEZ=%:117,000%7T)

Discount for lack of 2024: 15.7% 5% increase/decrease in DLOM would result
marketability ZEZME 15.7% in a decrease/increase in fair value by
("DLOM") (2023: 15.7%) HK$31,000 (2023: HK$28,000)/

BEmERBMERN  (ZE-Z=F:157%)  HK$31,000 (2023: HK$28,000)
([Hzmmn@E BZ M RBMERNEN/BD50gER
il AFEERD31,0008T(ZE==F

28,000%7T) /% 131,000/%8 7T
(ZE==%:28,000%7T)

Discount for lack of 2024: 17.4% 5% increase/decrease in DLOC would result
control ("DLOC") ZEIME  17.4% in a decrease/increase in fair value by
ERSS g | I 3 (2023: 17.4%) HK$35,000 (2023: HK$31,000)/

([ tlERrM]) (ZT-=%:174%)  HK$35,000 (2023: HK$31,000)
R R HEITIEA R D5% e B
ATEEERND3I50008 L (ZE_=F:
31,0008 7) /4 1135,000% T
(ZZ==%:31,00087)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

DLOM and DLOC represent the amounts of premiums

and discounts determined by the Group that market

participants would take into account when pricing the

investments.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2024

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Total

As at 31 March 2023
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other

comprehensive income

36.

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

EMITENAVFEERATVE
EHEX (&)

BR = 57 B ME AT 0 S R = 4 AR AT H0
RAKBEMEENS2EEERRETE
BREEZEMHRERTESHE -

AV EEER
TREMASESR T AN R FEERT
EER :

B FEESENEE

Fair value measurement using

AFEETERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
g EXT EXRFA
mEHRE BERAAE BRGAE
(5—BR) € =1 -9 (B=BRX) A%t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT AT THT TET
R-Z-ME=A=1+-A
BRTFEEFA
BRMRERE 15,375 - - 15,375
EEAEATEA
ATAEM 2 E KRR
MRERE - - 3,347 3,347
At 15,375 - 3,347 18,722
RZZZ=f=A=+—-H
EERERTERE
AR R E RS
HRERE - - 2,985 2,985
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The movements in fair value measurement within Level 3

during the year are as follows:

ERMIAMAFEERATE
EEX (&)

AP EERR (&)

RAFE  F=BRAXFEETEN
Z2EHmT

Equity investment at fair value through & AFEEF AEMEE

other comprehensive income: W IRERE
At 1 April REA—H
Total fair value gain recognised in FEE 2 E s R
other comprehensive income AT EEKNR AR
At 31 March R=A=+—8H

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured
at fair value as at 31 March 2024 and 2023.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2023:
Nil).

2024 2023
—EMEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T THET
2,985 2,040

362 945

3,347 2,985

R-E-_NER T -_=ZF=ZA=1+—
B AREBTETMIZAFEETED

TRAE-

RAFEE SREEMEELE —EBIR
F_BRZEBBEMEELE=ERE
ARBEATFEEAE(ZT _=F:
®) -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 March 2024
Loan and interest receivables

Repossessed assets

Total

As at 31 March 2023
Loan and interest receivables

Repossessed assets

Total

BEER (&)
DNFEERERX(E)
RENFEENEE

Fair value measurement using

6. tEMITAENAFEERAFEE

AYEETERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B EXT EXAH
TERE BERAE BERAE
(5-BR) (BZEBR) (BZENR CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FHET FHET
R=ZZ-mE=A=+-H
BN EFRFE - - 723,498 723,498
BREEE 38,660 - 47,610 86,270
&t 38,660 - 771,108 809,768
RZZE-_=f=A=+—-H
FE W E F A & - - 823,337 823,337
BEEE 14,400 - 47,720 62,120
&t 14,400 - 871,057 885,457
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. K EMEERERBE

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as lease receivables, amounts due
from security brokers, loan and interest receivables and

other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Most of the Group's revenue and costs were
denominated in Singapore dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.

AEBZIESHMIABKEESNEH
R MFESRTIAZIEZBENTIA/AR
KELERE AKEAEREAEMER
BEREE  PlonREEER - BIE
FREWFIA - BRER RN E R EAM
ERNRRR  HEERNHELEEPESL -

AEBeRMTIAES 2T EZRABRRIME
Rk EERR - REE S E R & E
EBREAR EFSEHABREEZLS
[\ 2 R BB R e

S = B

AEEHRHEIZEERR - ZFRRT)
ARKREEMABRREREAINZE
BETEEMEL - AEB 2 KO W
ARBRATIAF T R AT REEE
iz o AN B A3 S SME PR - A
m-EEEETNERIERE - Wi
REFBERZEHHRERIINERR -

o
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Singapore dollar exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit after
tax (arising from Singapore dollar denominated financial
instruments) and retained profits (due to changes in the

fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2024 —E-—mE

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BT i
against the Singapore dollar N TRz (B

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens {7 7T i,
against the Singapore dollar ¥ NBoTHHE

2023 SR =S F

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens fisl 78 7T 5,
against the Singapore dollar st (E

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens 4% 7T %
against the Singapore dollar N T HE
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37. B BEAREERRERBE (&)

S L B ()
TERERNBERAREMERRIT T
B M AR TEE K A] gL HIR A IR E)
ZERT  NREBBRB &GN (F A
METAEEEUMESRTAMEL)
krBaH (HE¥EERBEATE
ELREH) SRPHHRE -

Decrease/

(increase)

in profit

Increase/ after tax and
(decrease) decrease/
in foreign (increase) in
currency rate retained profits
BRBL &R

WA (1)

ShE B 3 R AR B35 Al
2m, Of4) WL ()
% HK$'000

FHET

10 2

(10) @)

10 3
(10) (3)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. i EREE B EREE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk
As at 31 March 2024, the credit risk of the Group was

primarily attributable to lease receivables, amounts due
from security brokers, loan and interest receivables and

cash and cash equivalents.

The Group provides services only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the

Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

One of the Group's main income generating activities is
lending money to customers, and therefore, credit risk is
the principal risk. It is the Group's policy that all new
loans are subject to stringent credit check procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of its customers before the loan applications are accepted
or rejected. If there is no independent rating, risk control
assesses the credit quality of the customer by taking into
account the financial position, past experience and other
factors of the customer. The Group holds collateral
against certain loan and interest receivables in the form
of first legal mortgages over individual properties located
in Hong Kong which mainly comprise residential,
commercial, industrial properties and car parking spaces.
The Group approves and grants loans to its customers
pursuant to its pre-approved credit policy with tightened
management measures whenever an adverse condition
in the property market occurs. The Group has loan
committees of different levels comprising directors and
senior management to approve and grant different loan
products with various loan-to-value ratios and loan

amount requirements.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The directors and senior management consider that the
credit risk arising from the loan and interest receivables is
significantly mitigated by the properties held as collateral,
with reference to the market values of the properties
which are valued by independent third party valuers as at

the end of each reporting period.

/mpairmem‘ assessment
ECL measurement

The Group measures loss allowance under the HKFRS 9
ECL model. The measurement of ECLs is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default (i.e., the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default
and the exposure at default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECLs reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of

default occurring as the weights.

ECLs are based on the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.

The Group calculates ECLs based on a three probability-
weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the effective
interest rate. A cash shortfall is the difference between
the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the entity

expects to receive.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. i EREE B EREE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERM (&)

L 1EEF I ()
HHE R A E (&)
TXHRTERERBRNFTEES - B
TETERNT:

Impairment assessment (continued)
ECL measurement (continued)

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below

and the key elements are as follows:

The probability of default (“PD") is an estimate of the EAMER ((BEHOBXR]) AEBFERM

likelihood of default over a given time horizon.

The exposure at default (“EAD") is an estimate of
exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting
date, including repayments of principal and interest, and

accrued interest from missed payments.

The loss given default (“LGD") is an estimate of the loss
arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time.
It is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to
receive, including from the realisation of any collateral or
credit enhancements that are integral to the loan and not

required to be recognised separately.

When estimating the ECLs, the Group considers three
scenarios (a base case, a bull case and a bear case).
Each of these is associated with different PDs, EADs and
LGDs. When relevant, the assessment of multiple
scenarios also incorporates how defaulted loans are
expected to be recovered, including the probability that
the loans will cure and the value of collateral or the

amount that might be received for selling the asset.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)

ECL measurement (continued)

Elements of the ECL models that are considered

accounting judgements and estimates include:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(V)

)

The Group's estimation of probabilities of default to

individual group;

The Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime

ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

Development of ECL models, including the various
formulas and the choice of inputs over determination
of the period over which the entity is exposed to
credit risk based on the behavioural life of the credit
exposure, loss given default and collateral recovery

of the credit exposures;

Determination of associations between macroeconomic
scenarios and economic inputs, such as delinquency
ratios and collateral values, and the effect on
probabilities of default, exposures at default and

losses given default; and

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive

the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Group's policy to regularly review its

models in the context of actual loss experience and

adjust when necessary.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  37.

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
ECL measurement (continued)

The Group categorises the credit quality of its loan and
interest receivables according to 3 different stages under
the ECL model:

Financial assets are classified as Stage 1 if:

(i) Repayment on schedule;

(i) Overdue within normal credit terms (within 30 days)
with supportable evidence for repayment (e.g.,
communication records, draft/signed documents),

subject to individual analysis;

(i) No change in debtor's credit rating (market or

internal); and

(iv) Significant credit risks and events (both economic
and industry-related) related to the debtor are not

observable or expected in the market.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
ECL measurement (continued)

Financial assets are classified as Stage 2 if:

(i) Delayed repayment;

(i) Overdue over 30 days but within 90 days, with
supportable evidence for repayment (e.g.,
communication records, draft/signed documents),

subject to individual analysis;

(iii) There is a change in debtor’s credit rating (market or

internal); and
(iv) Some credit risks and events (both economic and
industry-related) related to the debtor are

observable or expected in the market.

Financial assets are classified as Stage 3 if:

(i) Delayed repayment;

(i) Overdue over 90 days, without supportable evidence

for repayment, subject to individual analysis;

(iif) There is a significant change in debtor's credit rating

(market or internal); and

(iv) Significant credit risks and events (both economic
and industry-related) related to the debtor are

observable or expected in the market.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. i EREE B EREE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

The Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group monitors all financial assets that are subject to
impairment requirements to assess whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If there has been a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group will measure the loss allowance

based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECLs.

The Group collects performance and default information
about its credit risk exposures and analyses all data
collected using statistical model and estimates the
remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are
expected to change over time. The factors taken into
account in this process include macroeconomic data such
as delinquency rate on residential mortgage and
residential property price index. The Group generates a
base case scenario of the future direction of relevant
economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios. The Group then uses
these forecasts, which are probability-weighted, to adjust

its estimates of PDs.

The Group has monitoring procedures in place to make
sure that the criteria used to identify significant increases
in credit risk are effective, meaning that significant
increase in credit risk is identified before the exposure is

defaulted or when the asset becomes 30 days past due.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group has controls and procedures in place to
identify when the credit risk of an asset improves and the
definition of significant increase in credit risk is no longer
met. When this is the case, the asset may move back to
Stage 1 from Stage 2, subject to payments being up to
date and the ability of the borrower to make future

payments on time.

Default and credit-impaired

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group).

In respect of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate. In particular,
the following qualitative indicators are taken into account

in determining the risk of default occurring:

(i) Probable bankruptcy entered by the borrowers; and

(i) Death of the debtor.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. i EREE B EREE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group uses forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort in its assessment
of significant increase of credit risk as well as in its
measurement of ECLs. The Group uses internal and
external information to generate a base case scenario of
future forecast of relevant economic variables along with
a representative range of other possible forecast
scenarios. The external information used includes
economic data and forecasts published by governmental

bodies and monetary authorities.

The Group uses multiple scenarios to model the
nonlinear impact of assumptions about macroeconomic
factors on ECLs. The Group applies probabilities to the

forecast scenarios identified.

In applying the forward-looking information and
probabilities to the forecast scenario identified for
assessing the ECLs as at 31 March 2024, the Group has
taken into account the possible impacts associated with
the pandemic and the overall change in economic

environment.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. M EMEE BZERBEK (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without

undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 March.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

As at 31 March 2024
R-EB-WE=HA=+—H

EERE (&)

515 R 8 A KRR F AR B R 7 4
TRETR=ZA=T—HREAEED
EEL EETEE‘M%%?E%& =EER
B HEXZUBHENSER (BRIFER
@ﬁﬂ?ﬂi/ﬁ?ﬁ“ﬂ?\%xﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘xﬂﬁﬂﬂ
AR AERIGR) - AR F R HRE
B e

FENERATHEENREAR -

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZEAEH
EREX BEFENRBEARA
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
E-KE H-RR Z=RR @StrE Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TER TER
Lease receivables G - - - 1,242 1,242
Amounts due from security JEW & 7 18 42 89
brokers R 9,341 = = - 9,341
Loan and interest receivables EWERRAE 595,963 49,744 95,787 - 741,49
Financial assets included in BELTENTE ke
prepayments, deposits and RE AR KRR
other receivables MeERMEE
— Normal* —E&* 3,949 323 2,972 - 7,244
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASZED
~ Not yet past due — K8 H 518,251 - - - 518251
Total A&t 1,127,504 50,067 98,759 1242 1,271,572
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

As at 31 March 2023
R-ZEBE-_=F=H=+—H

Lease receivables U E R
Amounts due from security B 3B 4 IR A £
brokers HIB

Loan and interest receivables
Financial assets included in

FEREF kA B
BREBMNFE #e

prepayments, deposits and T E At M AR R
other receivables MEREE
~ Normal* —E&*

Cash and cash equivalents RekHeEEN
— Not yet past due — R

Total A&t

HHELEEEEERLA

7.0 ERREEEERBKR (&)

FERER (&)
REERARRFEBER D E
(%)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZEAES
ERRX EEFEHRBEREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-BER F-BR F=BER BrE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TAT TAT TR
= = = 357 357
27 = = = 27
686,464 89,716 51,816 = 827,996
2,524 233 2,604 = 5,361
456,010 = = = 456,010
1,145,025 89,949 54,420 357 1,289,751

& The credit quality of the financial assets included in

prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered

to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no

information indicating that the financial assets had a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.

*OBREEMNFR  Ee kHEMERK
HesBMEEERNABHBELEER
XPTREENEERR B MHKER
gEeBELA EEEAZERER
[EFE] KA eBMEENEEES
SRAR[FRE] -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. M EMEE BZERBEK (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERR (&)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging R 7 [ [ DA R R AL B [ R 5 HE
(continued) (%)

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/ EEEREBNIEEE/RS5HA K
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry B E RITERFETEE c ARAE
sector. There are no significant concentrations of credit & 1 FE e T B RUA K R MCE SRR N B R
risk within the Group as the customer bases of the BEEWMEZ M Btk KREBEI &
Group's lease receivables and loan and interest BRGEEETRBROBR

receivables are widely dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's AEBREEMEWENR  BRER R
exposure to credit risk arising from other receivables, loan AME - EREEFARERESFLECLH
and interest receivables, lease receivables and amounts REZEZERR ZFASEREERIMS
due from security brokers are disclosed in notes 16, 17, WARMFEI6 17~ 18K 19 »

18 and 19 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk REBELEKE

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEBURBRRTYTE T AEEREES
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the RRER e ZTAZECRMIARSH
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial BE (flm: BKRHEER  BYWEFL
assets (e.g., lease receivables, amounts due from security LCHRBBUAREREREFE) MER
brokers, and loan and interest receivables) and projected FHERBALEEFR 2BESRE °

cash flows from operations.



256

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B E B E R 2 A

Annual Report 2024 F3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥5 R R M 5E
31 March 2024
—E-NFE=Z/=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2024
—EZWmF

37. M EREE B ERBE &)

RBEEREE (%)
RIFCSATHRFTRER

AT #E SR E

ERREHRzERAEIHA

3 to
On  Less than less than 1to5
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=f@R
EEX S EHR
HE =@ A +=fAR —Enf CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TERT TET
Amount due to the intermediate & R 4% I A2 &)
holding company I 80,000 - - - 80,000
Loan advanced from a AEERBLAR
non-controlling shareholder IR R
of the Group's subsidiary B ZEH 24,087 - - - 24,087
Accruals JEAt 3R - 2,054 - - 2,054
Other payables and Hit AR R
deposits received Blize 317 5,863 1,057 2,620 9,857
Total = 104,404 7917 1,057 2,620 115,998




POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as

at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

(continued)

2023

—E-=F

Amount due to the intermediate
holding company

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary

Accruals

Other payables and
deposits received

Lease liabilities

Total

TR A ]
KA
REEHERRLZ
FERBRR
B ZERK
JEST 3R
H N ER R
ElRE
HEAR

A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
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37. B BEAREERRERBE (&)

RBESREK (&)
RIBCRIARITIRENR - A THIIAE
ERREHRzeMBENHA - (B)

3t0
On Less than less than Tto5

demand 3 months 12 months years Total

=& A

EEX IS ZPR
BE =f@A +=f@A —Z1F At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THEL THT TET THT
80,000 = = = 80,000
71,823 = = = 71,823
= 2,077 = = 2,077
282 3,319 1,764 1,184 6,549
= 34 39 = 73
152,105 5,430 1,803 1,184 160,522
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. i EREE B EREE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk fR #E B 4% L B
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity P (B 15 [ B 2 4 PR 48 8K 7 2 M A
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of BFEEEHMEHNERESFLTE

equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group was exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 21)
as at 31 March 2024. The Group's equity investments
were listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and were
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the

reporting period.

The market equity index for the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and its

respective highest and lowest points during the year were

BETHENER R-_FT_-_MNE=H
=+—H - AEEFMEYEOEEEREA
BIRE D EREAFEEFABRAMR
RIRE N AR E (f5E21) - K&
BB ERN TR ED XN
HEHRETIGRERTE -

RBERARNROER S BEERBER
B BERBMIMOMERERE AR
RAFEEEBNERS MREMHET

as follows:
31 March High/low 31 March High/low
2024 2024 2023 2023
—E-mE B/1&8 —T-=F =/ &
=A=+-—H “E-_NE ZA=1+—H —EC-=fF
Hang Seng Index BAEEH 16,541 20,865/ 20,400 22,701/

14,794 14 3187



37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
10% change in the fair values of the equity investments
of the Group, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax, based on their carrying

amounts at the end of the reporting period.

2024
Equity investments listed

in Hong Kong

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FHELEEFTEERQA

Annual Report 2024 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R EE

Carrying
amount of
equity

investments

RERE
R & 8
HK$'000
THT

—g2-ng
RES LA

B & 15,375

31 March 2024

—E-MFE=/=+—H

BB A LB ()
TRRREFA 8 BRETE TN
Bkt R BB 7]
RRARBEARZBELR HA%
B 5 E 2 2 T B (E 5 31 000
2 SRR -

Increase/
(decrease)

in fair value

AVEME
2/ (42)

%

10
(10)

37. B BEAREERRERBE (&)

FEA RERK

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit

after tax and
increase/
(decrease) in
retained profits
BRBE &R A
#m,/ ()
RRE A
#m,/ (B)
HK$'000
FHET

1,284
(1,284)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its businesses and

maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

HHELEEEEERLA

37. M EREE B ERBE &)

AAREE
AEBEAEE Y T EAEARIRAE
BREEE AN R RBRE AR %
PSR bR R (-

REERBLBREALEEEERR
BRIz B ERERNEBIMUFE -
REFRPBREREE  AEEFAE
PR 2RSS - MARRIR B E R 1T
AR o REBE DRI E b 2 (£ /] B AR
HMERH -HEZT-_WHFR_T-=
FZA=+—RHLFE BHEEREEX
BER - BURSOREWMEIRES o



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total indebtedness divided by equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The Group's policy is to maintain
the gearing ratio below 50%. Total indebtedness
represents a loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, an amount due to
the intermediate holding company and lease liabilities.
The gearing ratios as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March

2023 were as follows:

FHELEEEEERAA
Annual Report 2024 %%}
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A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+—H

37. B BEAREERRERBE (&)

EXEE (&)
AEENAEAEEBEXREZEE
K BREAELEELSBEBRIALRRD
AR AEGLRER AEBEZBELE
BRE G FLL EERFS0% AT o BEH
BASEWNBE AR FERRRERARN 2
BEX ENFEERARREBEUAREE
BE-RZE-_WNF=A=+—HAk=

Loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary

Amount due to the intermediate
holding company

Lease liabilities

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company

Gearing ratio

T-ZFZA=t+—HzBEKREAGL
RSN
2024 2023
—E-MmF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE T T T
AEBKBRARZ
PR AR R BT 2 B K 24,087 71,823
FES R EERA T
A 80,000 80,000
HEARE = 72
104,087 151,895
KRNBEHER AEMR
E 2= 1,561,876 1,548,147
ERHE B E LK 6.7% 9.8%
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

38. A2 B B B 7 AR R &

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of BN B E B RA B ISR R R A
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BERMT
follows:
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE KRR 2,051 252
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z®E 1,090,245 1,091,913
Equity investment designated BEREAFER
at fair value through other P AH M2 E WS
comprehensive income BRI E 3,347 2,985
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 1,095,643 1,095,150
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Amounts due from security brokers JE W5 5 48 40 Y IR 9,341 14
Prepayments, deposits and TR KIE - 'ER
other receivables H 1 & AR R 1,970 1,640
Equity investments at fair value BRAFEESA
through profit or loss BERRRE 17 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEY 224,218 184,227
Total current assets MBEERTE 250,904 185,881
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREBAE
Lease liabilities HERE 1,866 A
Other payables and accruals H fth & < BR BRI R 5T R IR 2,583 2,630
Due to subsidiaries J& 1Y B 18 2 R kIR 646,670 575,244
Total current liabilities mEBEARE 651,119 577,874
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEEERE (400,215) (391,993)
Net assets BEFR 695,428 703,157
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA 14,451 14,451
Reserves (Note) (k) 680,977 688,706
Total equity AT 695,428 703,157
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

At 1 April 2022 i ——-s
mA—A
Total comprehensive income/ AEEZERE/
(loss) for the year (B8 8%

Transfer of share option reserve 1B A% 4 5 iU
upon the lapse of share options S B Ik {5

(note 26) (HfE26)
At 31 March 2023 R-E==%
and at 1 April 2023 =A=+-Bk
R=ZE==F
mA—A
Total comprehensive income/ REEZHENE/
(loss) for the year (BB @8

Transfer of share option reserve 1B AR 4 5K 3 s
upon the lapse of share options ~ E#E E MR
(note 26) (FzE26)

At 31 March 2024 R-Z-mf
=H=ERE

Annual Report 2024 F3k
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A ¥R R MR

31 March 2024
—E-MFE=/=+—H

38. AR B M B AR R & (8])

B &
ARABFEHBRENT
Share Share
premium option  Contributed Fair value Retained
account reserve surplus reserve profits Total
R 17 BRE B4 AYVEE RE
18 iR e B G4 A At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
354,993 5,862 162,587 1,260 174,712 699,414
= = = 945 (11,653) (10,708)
= (794) = = 794 =
354,993 5,068 162,587 2,205 163,853 688,706
- - - 362 (8,091) (7,729)
= (5,068) = = 5,068 =
354,993 = 162,587 2,567 160,830 680,977
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38.

39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)
The contributed surplus of the Company arose from:

(i)  the reorganisation mentioned in note 27(i), representing
the excess of the nominal value of the Company's shares
issued under the Group's reorganisation and the then
consolidated net assets value of the acquired subsidiaries;

and

(i)  a transfer from the share premium account pursuant to the

capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances prescribed by section 54

thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should

the related options expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 20 June 2024.

HHELEEEEERLA

38.

39.

RAT I BAARR R (R)

s - ()
RRBZEHBHKE

() M7tz ER/RBARAREAR
SEBAMBETRHEEBRBRKS
MBARERZGAEEFEIHD
K

(i) BEBE-NAANFRAZRETZRA
BT ARDEERTPEL -

RIEARECBIFREE) (KER) &
ZOEBIBSMEFTAMZ BEFTB/RT  XARZ
BHEGA DK TFRE -

BREREREERL  BFTEZBRE
ZRFEE FFIEN YRR T4
MAERNNRZEARRE—FTHEE-F
ERBRERTER FHSRRaEEE
Bt i (B B 2k fisl A R 8 B A8 i i sl 1508 MR
B AIEHSEBEESREEM -

Bt ISRk 2
B REEN - E-MEA -+ HE
=B R o



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements, is set out below.

RESULTS

CHELEEEEBAERAA

Annual Report 2024 F3k

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFURBME

AEEBEREMKFRAREC TENE

ERMBHRROLERE

ERERMNBENT -

E

Year ended 31 March

BZE=-A=1+-HLEE

BE - AEMFE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-_ME -—T-=F —ZT--F -—B--& -—ZE-ZTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAEL FET FAEL TET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(mE5) (&E75) (E75)
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(=) (Bt zE) (PzE)
REVENUE FROM CONTINUING  REREEKEL
OPERATIONS KA 88,291 80,068 80,741 100,360 81,189
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM REERHELE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS ERELENRF 25,688 16,855 49,614 32,390 7,878
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ~ AFE-EB LI
FROM A DISCONTINUED REEBEEN
OPERATION wBAl (BE) 9,303 (60,743) (56,449) (112,325) 40,757
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ~ AAFER A
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS EEREE
OF THE COMPANY A/ (BE) 22,413 (36,866) (1,501) (56,712) 15,461
Note: The financial information for the years ended 31 March 2022, iz : 2T -_—_F=A= -1—— H - —E=-—
31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 has been restated to FEF=ZH=+—RBE-_ZE-_ZTEF=HF=+—
reflect the effect of a discontinued operation. HIEFER Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ«‘éﬂ AR —

HERIEEEEBNZE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFPRBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- AREEBERAEVHBEESHEED FRHK
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial BEZMBEHRERMNLEEESE = BEMIE
years, as extracted from the published audited financial TRERNBENT - (&)

statements, is set out below. (continued)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE - BERFERES
INTERESTS
At 31 March
R=B=+-8

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-ME -—ET-=F C-—E--F <—T--& —T-TE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT FEL FiEx FTEL
TOTAL ASSETS LEAH 2,036,187 2,081,374 2,071,036 2,130,282 2,168,656
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEaE (134,262) (201,900) (153,282) (164,390) (152,196)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ~ K ##% (340,049) (331,327) (338,050) (383,351) (399,233)

1,561,876 1,548,147 1,579,704 1,582,541 1,617,227




INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Description

R

Shop No. 23A,

Ground Floor (Level 2),
Kwai Chung Plaza,

7-11 Kwai Foo Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong
BEMREBEERT- 115

ERBESMT (FE) 23A% M

Ground Floor including its cockloft,

Chi Fu Building,

No. 301 Portland Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BETLEEHE A E30195%
EEBHT (BEEEE)

Shop 5, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BENER AZIT L H43HR
BT+ Ei5 i R 55E

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7
Annual Report 2024 F3k

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
YZEFTE

31 March 2024

—E-MFE=/=+—H

REWEE
Percentage
Use Nature of interest
HREEZ
A& F =K Btk
Commercial Medium-term 100
[EES leasehold
FHEIEE
Commercial Medium-term 100
EES leasehold
FREIFRE
Commercial Medium-term 100
[EES leasehold
FREIR &
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

MEEFTR

31 March 2024

—ToUE=RA

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Description

R

=+-8

Shop 3, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,
No. 43H Dundas Street,

Mongkok, Kow
Hong Kong
EENETA

loon,

BT L H43HR

BT L RS T35

762/764/766/768

North Bridge Road,
Singapore 198730/198732/
198734/198736

15th Floor, Katherine House,
Nos. 53-55 Chatham Road South,

Tsim Sha Tsui,
Hong Kong
EBNBERY

RPN 151E

Kowloon,

NH 3R B 28 B 53 = 5555

HHELEEEEERLA

BREWE (&)

Use Nature

A& =R
Commercial Medium-term
[HES leasehold
FREIFEE

Commercial Freehold
EES KA FERE
Commercial Medium-term
EES leasehold
FREIRE

Percentage
of interest
hERZ
BoO

100

100

60
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